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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; THURSDAY, JUNE 19, 2008 

P R O C E E D I N G S 

* * * * * 

3 

THE COURT: Page 9, State of Nevada versus 

Rickie Slaughter, C-204957. 

Ms. Kriske and Mr. DiGiacomo for the State. 

Mr. Slaughter did you have a chance to talk to 

Ms. Kriske and Mr. DiGiacomo? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I did. 

THE COURT: I will say that I agree that 

anything I said to you is a matter of public record, 

whether it's on the record because it's part of the plea 

canvass and part of sentencing and things like that. You 

and I never had any conversation down the hallway or 

anything like that. 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

THE COURT: So to the extent you want to 

utilize anything that was said by myself to you, in terms 

of convincing me what to do in this case, it's part of 

your plea canvass and your sentencing. 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, it was to the 

extent -- well, you were present when we had a 

negotiation. That was off the record, obviously, and to 

get to your recollection of what had been heard and things 

App.0409
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like that. I didn't know about the recusal issue. But I 

do want to preserve a proper record of everything that 

occurred for the Supreme Court when we go back up there. 

I wanted to present your testimony, Ms. Krisko's and 

everybody else. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Judge, just for the 

record, we do object. 

If you have no recollection of an off-the-record 

conversation with Rickie Slaughter, and I don't have any 

recollection of that occurring, and I don't believe 

4 

Ms. Kriske has a recollection of that occurring, this is a 

situation --

THE COURT: More importantly for what he 

just said, I don't have any recollection whatsoever of 

being present. And even if I was in court while you all 

were discussing a negotiation, I don't have any 

recollection of hearing anything related to negotiations 

that you all talked about. 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, the prior transcript 

from two years ago, you indicated in that transcript -- if 

you wanted to look at it -- that you did have an 

indication of that. 

THE COURT: I don't know if I read the one 

from two years ago, but I would hope that two years ago I 

would recollect whatever it was that had just taken place. 

App.0410
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You know what, I'm getting old. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: The transcript doesn't say 

that. The transcript says I remember back at the time of 

the plea that there was a discussion of this. Yeah, there 

was. It's on the record. That's when the discussion 

occurred. 

THE COURT: I guess what I'm getting at, 

Mr. Slaughter, is if you're hoping to have me as a witness 

tell you that I remember you all having negotiation talks 

and here's what you all were saying, I don't remember any 

of that. That's not generally something that -- (a) I 

cannot get involved in that. I can't and would not try 

and facilitate negotiations in some fashion. That's up to 

you and the State. 

But more importantly, I don't remember anything you 

all were talking about in terms of your negotiations. 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, if you are 

THE COURT: If you're persistent in 

wanting to try and have me as a witness, then, yeah, I 

can't preside over a case in which I act as a witness. 

THE DEFENDANT: I mean, the indication I 

got was -- is, I guess, your recollection now and from 

statements in the record. That's what I was trying to 

get. 

THE COURT: Is the transcript from two 

App.0411
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• • 
years ago the sentencing transcript? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. It's the habeas 

transcript. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: The habeas transcript 

where he said, yeah, I remember what the issue --

6 

THE COURT: And I still do remember the 

day you pled, because it was the only time I was sitting 

in Judge Togliatti's courtroom, because that's where we 

were hearing the trial in there. You were pro per. And I 

remember that you entered a negotiation and we took a 

plea. Then later on I sentenced you. That's the extent 

of it. 

THE DEFENDANT: I think it went a little 

further. It goes a little further than the transcript. 

Sp that's my position. 

THE COURT: Okay. State. 

MS. KRISKO: Here's what we talked about. 

You know, I'm using the word waive, but Mr. Slaughter 

doesn't want to agree to that. 

I'm out of the jurisdiction and I don't know if he's 

going the be able to compel me. I'm not going to 

voluntarily going to come back to testify. I'm here now. 

I'm ready to go. I think that the information that I have 

is probably more valuable simply because I did have 

conversations with Mr. Slaughter, representing himself, 

App.0412
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that were done not on the record. 

My understanding is everything that you heard or 

spoke about is on the record. And so having you be a 

witness and recusing yourself and bringing in another 

judge, I think, is not appropriate. And I don't think 

it's necessary. 

But if that's what he maintains, that's what he 

maintains. He did ask me about doing an affidavit. I'll 

make a sworn statement, if you want me to make that now, 

as to what my recollection is. But he won't have the 

benefit of asking me questions that go beyond that. 

7 

THE COURT: Here's the thing. After 

hearing from Mr. Slaughter this morning as to what it is 

he would purport to want me as a witness on, I'm satisfied 

that I have no information whatsoever on that. No 

recollection of hearing your conversations about any 

negotiations that you all engaged in. 

So I'm not going to recuse myself. We'll go ahead 

and have our hearing today. But let me go ahead and take 

a bit of a recess and you get everybody else out so they 

can get back to do what they need to do. We'll come back 

in and get started. 

THE DEfENDANT: To the extent that I do 

need this, I would ask for the record to be expanded to 

include this transcript in the prior habeas. 

App.0413
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THE COURT: Any transcripts in the case 

are obviously usable in terms of whatever we're going to 

do right now. 

THE DEFENDANT: All right. 

Also, one more thing. One of my documents seemed 

to -- got left at the prison that I might need, which is 

the original petition I filed. If I could get a copy of 

that for the hearing. 

THE COURT: I'll look in the file and see 

if we can locate that. 

We'll be in recess. 

(Brief recess taken.) 

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Rickie 

Slaughter, C-204957 on page 9. 

This is the time set for an evidentiary 

hearing in regard to Mr. Slaughter's motion to withdraw 

8 

plea. I think all the witnesses here are present that you 

have discussed, Mr. Slaughter. Other then, I don't know 

if your father is present. 

THE DEFENDANT: No. But I do have an 

affidavit, if the court is willing to accept that. 

THE COURT: We'll get to that. 

I know my law clerk contacted Mr. Wommer who is 

present. Mr. Conklin is present. I don't know if he got 

hold of Mr. Gowen or not. 

App.0414
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MS. KRISKO: We did personally serve 

Mr. Gowen. 

THE COURT: Okay. Obviously Mr. DiGiacomo 

and Ms. Krisko are present. As well as myself. 

Mr. Slaughter, if you would call your first 

witness. 

THE DEFENDANT: Call James Conklin. 

THE COURT: Mr. Conklin, if you would come 

up here for me please, sir, and take the witness stand. 

Remain standing and raise your right hand when you get up 

there, if you would, please. 

THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear that the 

testimony you are about to give in this action shall be 

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so 

help you God. 

THE WITNESS: I do. 

THE CLERK: Be seated. State and spell 

your name for the record. 

C-O-N-K-L-I-N. 

THE DEFENDANT: James B. Conklin, 

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. You were private detective on my case, 

App.0415
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correct? 

A. 

Q. 

• 
That's right. I was. I am. 

Do you remember, prior to actually -- the 

day prior to the day I took the plea negotiation, do you 

remember negotiations being offered? 

A. No. I really don't know. 

Q. Okay. Do you recollect the day of the 

plea -- the day I took the negotiations? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

April 4, 2005? 

Yes. 

You were present during the negotiations, 

all that, right? 

A. I was in court, yes. 

Q. Matter of fact, did you send me -­

THE DEcENDANT: Your Honor, may I. 

10 

THE COURT: You have something you want to 

give to Mr. Conklin? 

here. 

THE DEcENDANT: Yes. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: May I see it first, Judge? 

THE COURT: Show the State the exhibit. 

THE DEcENDANT: Also I have this affidavit 

BY THE DEcENDANT: 

Q. The first letter -- you have two letters 

App.0416
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• 
there, right? 

A. 

Q. 

• 
Yes. 

They're from you addressed to me, right? 

A. Yes. 

Q. In first letter dated in 2005, December 8. 

11 

The postmark on it is December 9, 2005. 

your letter, your handwriting? 

Is that actually 

A. Yes. 

Q. In there you indicated towards the center, 

you state that I recall prosecutor Krisko offering 15 to 

life, and you would be given an opportunity to 15 to 40 

years at sentencing. You also attach some notes to this. 

Are those present? 

notes. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes, they are. 

To those notes -- could you read those 

It says April 4, 2005. It says pled guilty, 

max 15 to life. Argue for 15 to 40. Sentencing for June 

6, 2005. 

Q. I remember this was a couple of years ago, 

so I'm not sure how crisp your recollection is. But is it 

fair to say that your impression of the negotiations, as 

far as the minimum that I was supposed to serve was 

supposed to be 15 years? 

A. Yes. 

App.0417
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Q. Do those notes, would you say they 

accurately reflect that impression? 

A. Yes. 

Q. There's also the other letter there, just 

the affidavit attached to that, right. If you want to 

open it up I believe it's November 13, 2007? 

A. Yes. This is the affidavit I wrote dated 

November 13, 2007. 

Q. I would also ask you, if you can remember, 

12 

to the best of your recollection, do you remember if I 

declined the offer at first or accepted it immediately, or 

do you remember any of that? 

A. I really don't remember the details of the 

negotiations. I do believe you plead guilty to it. 

Q. You don't remember if I declined at first 

before accepting the plea. Or how many times -- do you 

remember whether we invoked the negotiation process on 

more than one occasion? 

A. 

Q. 

I don't recall that. 

All right. Thank you. 

THE DEFENDANT: Nothing further. 

THE COURT: Mr. DiGiacomo. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DIGIACOMO: 

Q. Those notes you have in front of you about 

App.0418
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what the negotiation was, do you have any recollection of 

when you took those notes? 

A. I probably wrote those notes right after the 

procedure. 

Q. So the plea goes down in court and when 

you're done with the plea in court you write the notes you 

wrote in there? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. So the information in there may have come 

from the actual plea canvass conducted by the court. And 

that's your understanding of what the deal was from the 

plea canvass that took place in the courtroom, correct? 

A. Yes. That was my understanding of it, 

afterwards. Correct. 

over? 

Q. Your understanding after the procedure is 

A. Yes. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Nothing further. 

THE DEFENDANT: May I have a little? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. As far as your understanding, does that stem 

from the overall negotiation process or -- you didn't look 

at any extraneous documents in these notes. This is from 

App.0419
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your impression? 

after? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

My impression after the hearing. Correct. 

Right. That would be immediately right 

Yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: Can I offer those. 

THE COURT: Yes. We'll mark those as 

Defendant's Exhibits 1 and 2. 

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. Like you said, your recollection was that 

the minimum I would serve would be 15 years, right? 

A. Yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you. Nothing 

further. 

THE COURT: Any recross? 

MR. DIGIACOMO: No. 

THE COURT: Mr. Conklin, you may step 

down. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter, you may call 

your next. 

THE DEFENDANT: Call Mr. Wommer. 

THE COURT: Come up here please, sir. 

14 

THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear that the 
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testimony you are about to give in this action shall be 

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so 

help you God. 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE CLERK: Be seated. 

your name for the record. 

State and spell 

THE DEFENDANT: Paul Wommer, W-O-M-M-E-R. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. Mr. Wommer, you had represented me prior 

until I went prose in this case? 

A. 

Q. 

That's correct. 

As I remember, on the day of the 

negotiations, do you recollect -- you weren't there the 

entire proceeding, but you came in sort of in the middle. 

Is that fair to say? 

A. I have a vague recollection of the day that 

the negotiations were finalized. But I do remember the 

gist of what took place during the negotiation process. 

Q. You say you remember the gist. Concerning 

that gist, what was -- what would be your recollection of 

the impression of the minimum I was supposed to serve on 

that plea? 

A. I remember that the State indicated that the 

minimum would be 15 years and the maximum would be life, 

App.0421
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but you were able to argue for a lesser -- a lesser 

back-end sentence. But it would be a minimum of 15. 

And I remember -- and I clarified certain things 

for you during the negotiations process. I didn't 

participate in the negotiations, but when you had a 

question about what that meant, I explained it to you. 

Q. Okay. And what would you say your 

explanation entailed that the minimum would be 15, no 

more? 

A. I remember that everyone's impression was 

16 

that the minimum would be 15. What the top end of the 

sentence would be would be left to the judge after hearing 

argument from both sides. 

Q. May I ask you another question. Do you 

remember me declining offers during my trial? 

A. Yeah, I do. I don't remember exactly what 

those offers were, but I remember you rejected them. 

Q. Would it be a couple? 

A. 

Q. 

It was more than one. 

Moving on to the day of sentencing, you were 

present at a conversation -- were you present at a 

conversation between me and Ms. Kriske before the 

sentencing actually that took place Outside in the 

hallway? 

A. If I was present, I don't remember what was 
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said. 

• 
Q. 

A. 

• 
You don't remember what was said? 

No. I vaguely remember was this the 

conversation that took place in the jail room right 

Outside in the hallway here? 

Q. I think we were in a different courtroom, 

17 

but it was Outside in the hallway. Right Outside the door 

of the courtroom. 

A. I remember us being there. I do not 

remember exactly what was said. 

said. 

passed. 

Q. I know you say you don't remember what was 

That's understandable with all the time that's 

But I would ask you, do you have any impression 

concerning whether I presented a concern to want to 

withdraw my plea during that conversation out there? 

A. Not at that time. I don't -- if that was 

discussed, I would like to believe I would have remembered 

it. But I do not remember the withdrawal of the guilty 

plea, even being discussed. 

Q. So you just don't remember -- is it fair to 

say you don't remember? 

A. I do not remember the gist of the 

conversation that took place that day. 

Q. 

A. 

Or any of its contents, correct? 

Correct. 
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Q. Okay. Just to clarify. You're saying, 

hypothetically if it did happen you might remember, but 

you don't remember? 

A. I'm just saying that, if there was a 

discussion about the withdrawal of a guilty plea, I 

probably would have remembered that, but I don't. 

now. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

And you just don't remember overall? 

Correct. 

Okay. 

THE DEFENDANT: That's all for right 

THE COURT: Mr. DiGiacomo. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: A couple of questions. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DIGIACOMO: 

Q. You indicated that the State's position 

was -- the agreement was to receive a sentence of 15 to 

life, correct? 

Correct. 

18 

A. 

Q. And he had the right to argue for 15 to 40, 

correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Correct. 

Ultimately it was the judge's call as to 

what the sentence was going to be? 

A. Correct. 

App.0424
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Q. Then there was a written guilty plea put 

together, correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

One of the counts was first degree 

19 

kidnapping with substantial bodily harm, which would have 

carried either a 15 to 40, or 15 to life, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Then all the parties agreed that every other 

sentence for all the other crimes that he was going to 

plead to would run concurrent to that first degree 

kidnapping? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that some of those crimes had a deadly 

weapon enhancement. In fact, the guilty plea said that 

the deadly weapon enhancement for the other concurrent 

sentences had to run consecutive, correct? 

Like attempt murder with use of a deadly weapon, 

the guilty plea agreement would have said --

THE DEFENDANT: Maybe I want to show 

him. 

THE COURT: Hold on. 

THE DEFENDANT: Restate your question from 

the beginning. 

BY MR. DIGIACOMO: 

Q. You understand that there are other crimes 

App.0425
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other than the one first degree kidnapping with 

substantial, correct? 

A. Yes. 

20 

Q. And one of those crimes was a attempt murder 

with use of a deadly weapon? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You understood that the deadly weapon 

enhancement had to be consecutive to the underlying 

attempt murder conviction? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

But then those two sentences were to run 

concurrent to the 15 to life, correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

During this time period, there was a written 

guilty plea agreement drafted? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And during the plea canvass the judge 

specifically indicated to -- or requested of Mr. Slaughter 

as to whether or not there was any other agreement, other 

then what's contained in that written agreement, 

correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

To your recollection, other than what's 

written in that guilty plea agreement, there wasn't any 

other extraneous promises made to Mr. Slaughter? 
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A. Not to my knowledge. 

Q. And, in fact, the agreement was that we 

would have no opposition to concurrent, but certainly the 

judge had the right to run those sentences consecutive to 

a longer time, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And it is your recollection that 

Mr. Slaughter, after reading that guilty plea agreement, 

understood the guilty plea agreement, correct? 

A. Yes. Because I was present when he read 

it. 

THE DEFENDANT: Object. 

THE COURT: What's the objection? 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, he I believe 

Mr. Wommer stated that he didn't partake in the 

negotiations, but he was there afterwards and answered a 

question. 

THE COURT: I'll allow him to answer the 

question. Go ahead. Restate the question. 

BY MR. DIGIACOMO: 

Q. Was your understanding that Mr. Slaughter 

understood the contents of the guilty plea agreement, 

correct? 

A. I remember that Ms. Krisko had the 

agreement had to go upstairs and get the agreement and 
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brought it back down. Mr. Slaughter read the agreement at 

counsel table. And I was sitting next to him as he was 

reading it, in case he had any questions about anything in 

the plea agreement. 

Q. So to your recollection, at least, there is 

no other agreement out there other than what's written in 

that guilty plea agreement itself, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. As to this meeting right before sentencing, 

it's your position that had Mr. Slaughter told you that he 

intended or that he desired to withdraw his guilty plea, 

you would have recalled -- or you believe you would have 

recalled something of that nature? 

A. 

substantial. 

objection? 

Yes, because that would have been 

THE DEFENDANT: Objection. 

THE COURT: Hold on. You have an 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: What is it? 

THE DEFENDANT: I think that 

mischaracterizes the testimony. He said he didn't 

remember. 

I believe he said that he would remember for sure 

that if that happened, he would remember that that was a 
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concern. I think he said overall he didn't remember. 

THE COURT: Expressing that you don't 

remember something and expressing an opinion as to whether 

or not other things are or are not substantial are 

different. 

questions. 

Mr. Wommer? 

I'll allow the answer to stand. 

THE DEFENDANT: All right. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Thank you, Judge. No more 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter, any redirect of 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. Mr. Wommer, I believe, just on that prior 

examination, you said that -- a question concerning 

extraneous negotiations or deals, things like that. You 

said you didn't recollect any, correct? 

A. Well, if you're talking about were there any 

other agreements than the agreement that you reached with 

the State, I don't know of any other agreements. 

Q. Right. Would it be fair to say -- to your 

recollection -- that the agreement I entered into was for 

an aggravator or total minimum would be 15 at the 

bottom? 

A. Yes. 
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That's in fact a recollection? Q. 

A. Because I do remember that being brought up 

during the negotiation process. The bottom would be 15. 

Q. That would be regardless with all the 

sentences? 

A. Yes. It didn't have anything to do with the 

top end, but the bottom end would be 15. 

Q. Okay. 

THE DEFENDANT: Nothing further. 

THE COURT: Mr. DiGiacomo? 

MR. DIGIACOMO: No, Judge. 

THE COURT: Let me ask you a question 

Mr. Wommer. 

In this particular case there was an important 

distinction between some of the language that's been 

talked about here today. 

Are you saying that you understood that Mr. Slaughter 

had been told he was going to receive a total minimum of 

15 years, or that the negotiation is for a minimum of 15 

years, maximum life, or maximum 40 years? 

I don't think most plea bargains are talked about in 

terms of total minimums, low end of something. That's why 

I'm asking. 

THE WITNESS: Repeat that question 

again. 
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THE COURT: Are you saying that you were 

aware that Mr. Slaughter was being told that he would have 

a total minimum 15 years, or just that the negotiation is 

for minimum 15, maximum life? 

THE WITNESS: I don't think there was any 

mention of the word total, or any discussion about total. 

My memory is that the minimum sentence would be 15 years. 

If your Honor --

THE COURT: You answered my first 

question, was the word total used. 

THE WITNESS: The word total was not 

used. 

THE COURT: My second question is was 

there any discussion saying you're going to be out in 15 

years? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

So that was never -- that was never discussed. Or at 

least I don't remember that. I just remember that the 

minimum sentence would be 15. What the top end that the 

court imposed was at the discretion of the court. But 

there was never any discussion that Mr. Slaughter would be 

out in 15 years. 

THE COURT: All right. 

THE DEFENDANT: Can I respond? 

THE COURT: Yes. 
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THE DEFENDANT: With a question? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

26 

Q. You actually weren't present for the actual 

negotiation. You were present during the signing; is that 

correct? The signing of the plea agreement. 

A. I was present during the signing of the plea 

agreement, because you were sitting next to me as you 

were -- I was sitting next to you as you were reading 

it. 

I remember when the offer was first presented to 

you because, once again, I think we were sitting at 

counsel table when Ms. Kriske walked by and made the offer 

of 15 on the bottom. And I don't remember the other part 

of the discussion that was had, but I do remember the 

offer being conveyed while we were sitting at counsel 

table. And I remember you turned to me and you asked me 

questions about that offer. 

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, there is some 

evidence that needs to be proffered that I don't have. 

It's the court minutes of that hearing, which actually 

show -- we actually had litigation about this in the past, 

concerning modification of the record. The court minutes 

show that he wasn't present for the entire hearing. 
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THE COURT: Which hearing are you talking 

about? The plea hearing? 

THE DEFENDANT: The plea hearing. 

believe April 4th, at the bottom. 

I 

THE COURT: For the record, the court 

minutes of April 4, 2005 reflect that Mr. Wommer was not 

present when we initially began to get ready for trial. 

The prospective jury panel was not present either. 

Mr. Slaughter was making certain motions about 

investigator photo lineups, request to continue, things of 

that nature. I denied the request for continuance. 

Then it reflects that Mr. Wommer is now present. The 

matter recessed for parties to discuss negotiation. 

Matter recalled. The same parties present. Then the 

plea takes place. 

THE DEFENDANT: You said, matter reset for 

discussion of negotiation. 

THE COURT: After I denied the motion to 

continue, the minutes reflect that Mr. Wommer was then 

present, and we took a recess for the parties to discuss 

negotiations. 

THE DEFENDANT: Do those minutes reflect 

there was another recess before the negotiations were 

resolved? 

THE COURT: The minutes do not reflect 
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another recess before the negotiations were ultimately 

entered into. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: The transcript didn't 

either. 

28 

I may. 

page 23. 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, the transcript -- if 

It notes two recesses. One on page 21 and one on 

THE COURT: Let me grab the transcript. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: But that's not 

negotiations. Apparently you left to go to the restroom, 

Mr. Slaughter. 

THE DEFENDANT: It's my position there was 

a negotiation that took place at both of these recesses. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Really? Because the 

transcript says, quote, ''The officers address -- together 

the other officer is going to say, I'm not doing it. 

Then at the recess when you walk back in the door it 

says, after you stepped Outside we were talking about the 

jury selection process. Okay. So it's clear we remained 

in the courtroom. 

On page 21, Judge. 

THE COURT: Which -- I know the recess 

referred to on page 23 is when we recessed for 

negotiations to be discussed. Then when we came back on 

calendar there were no other recesses. 
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The plea bargain went through. Thereafter, you pled 

guilty. 

THE DEFENDANT: We was talking about the 

recess on page 21. It's just my -- for the record, it's 

just my position that negotiations took place then when I 

came back and that, in fact, Ms. Krisko states on 23, ''I 

think we might want to take a minute or two." It sounds 

like we want to discuss negotiations again, which I 

believe supports that. 

I believe that can be brought out in testimony. 

just wanted to know what was on the minutes. 

THE COURT: Anything further for Mr. 

Wommer? 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

I 

Q. Your recollection is that you believe you 

were there during the negotiations? 

A. Initially, yes. When the offer was 

proposed, I was seated next to you. 

Q. One more time. You say your recollection of 

that would be -- when you say the minimum would be 15, do 

you understand that as -- how do you understand that? 

What do you mean? Explain that for me, if possible? 

A. My understanding that the absolute minimum 

sentence that you would have received would have been -­

no matter how the sentences were run, the minimum sentence 
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you would have received would have been 15 years. 

Q. At the bottom? 

A. Yes. What sentence was at the top end was 

left to the discretion of the court. 

Q. Okay. And that was concerning the entire 

plea agreement, all the charges? 

A. Yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you. Nothing 

further. 

THE COURT: Anything further, 

Mr. DiGiacomo? 

MR. DIGIACOMO: No, Judge. 

THE WITNESS: May I be excused. 

THE COURT: You may be excused. Thank you 

very much. 

Mr. Slaughter, you can call your next witness. 

THE DEFENDANT: I would like to call 

Ms. Krisko. 

THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear the 

testimony you are about to give in this action shall be 

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so 

help you God. 

THE WITNESS: I do. 

THE CLERK: Be seated. State and spell 

your name for the record. 
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THE WITNESS: Susan Krisko, K-R-I-S-K 0. 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

31 

Q. Ms. Krisko, you were th·e prosecutor in this 

case? 

A. 

Q. 

Correct. 

Did you remember prior to the day of the 

negotiations, do you remember if there were a few 

negotiation offers -- a few plea offers? 

A. Actually, I don't. I do not remember being 

involved in negotiations prior to the start of the trial. 

I remember that we were prepared to go to trial once 

before. We were sent to Judge Cory's courtroom. You 

asked for a continuance that we objected to. We were told 

to leave the room and you did a Ferreta canvass. At that 

time you had an attorney. 

So I know we were previously ready for trial. Then 

we were ready for trial the second time, the day that you 

pled. 

Q. So you are saying, no, you don't remember if 

any offers were made before -- prior to the day we took 

the 

A. 

Q. 

I don't. I don't remember. 

The day of negotiations, do you remember 
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that day? 

A. I remember the day before your sentencing 

much better. I vaguely remember the day of -- the day you 

entered your plea. 

Q. Do you remember how many times negotiations 

were discussed -- possible negotiations that day, or 

whether it was more than once? 

A. Actually I don't. Simply because I know 

discussions were discussed in my office between my 

co-counsel and myself much more so than I ever discussed 

them with you. 

Q. Well, I'm saying did we discuss negotiations 

that day, off the record, more than once, or do you 

remember how many times, if possible? 

A. I thought there was only once. I know I had 

to go upstairs and get paperwork. And I wouldn't have 

done that had there not been an agreement. 

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, may I. 

THE COURT: Yes. Show it to 

Mr. DiGiacomo, whatever the exhibit is. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. What you have there is a transcript of the 

plea canvass from April 4, 2005 in this case? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

I believe on page 23, line 7 through 9, can 
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you read that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Out loud. 

A. I think we might want to take a minute or 

two. It sounds like we want to discuss negotiations 

again. 

Okay. Again, right? 

That's right. I used that word. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

any better 

A. 

Does that -- does it invoke any memory of it 

make it clearer at all? 

It does not refresh my recollection. 

However, it wouldn't be unusual for there to be need for 

clarification, if you had a question or something and 

wanted to talk about it. 

Q. You said clarification, if I wanted to talk 

about 

A. Often times -- I've handled a few pro per 

cases, and when I've talked about negotiations, sometimes 

there needs to be clarification. Somebody doesn't 

understand something about the negotiations. 

Q. Right. Okay. That would be like clarifying 

what maybe the negotiations entailed? 

A. Correct. And if there was a difference, we 

would have done different paperwork. 

Q. May I ask you, do you remember the 
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negotiations in this case? 

Yes. A. 

Q. May I ask what's your -- what did it 

contemplate to you? 

A. The contemplation was you were going to 

34 

plead to a number of felonies. Those felonies would be 

run concurrent to the kidnapping, I believe, with use of a 

deadly weapon, which would have been 15 to life, or 15 to 

40. 

THE COURT: Substantial bodily harm. 

THE WITNESS: With substantial bodily 

harm. Sorry. 

THE DEFENDANT: For the record, we can 

take -- I'm assuming the court can take judicial notice of 

that transcript -- page 23 lines 7 through 9. 

THE COURT: I'll take judicial notice of 

what Ms. Kriske read out loud. It was on page 23 of the 

April 4, 2005 transcript. 

THE DEFENDANT: Also, just for future 

reference, a lot of these exhibits I believe the court 

will probably take judicial notice of. 

THE COURT: Any transcripts are part of 

the court record. As are the pleadings that are on file 

in the case. 

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. 
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BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. You said -- I apologize. You said your 

memory of the negotiations was I would plead to several 

felonies and what was it? 

A. Plead to several felonies -- the spirit of 

35 

the negotiations were that you would received a 15 to life 

sentence. You would receive sentences on the robbery with 

uses. I believe those were the other charges you pled to. 

And that those would be running concurrent. 

Q. Would it be fair to say that negotiations 

or the spirit, as you termed it, entailed that I would be 

eligible for release within 15 years? 

A. Eligible for parole within 15 years. I know 

that I never would have given the suggestion that you 

would have absolutely been out in 15 years. I have no 

control over the parole board. 

Q. No. I'm not saying released guaranteed. 

But eligible for parole release? 

A. Eligible to go before the parole board, 

yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: I'd like you to take a 

look at this. 

THE COURT: Okay. The transcript? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. This is actually an 

opposition from Ms. Krisko, dated -- it was filed April 
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18, 2008. Opposition to petitioner's motion to withdraw 

guilty plea. 

THE COURT: All right. 

THE DEFENDANT: It would be page 9. 

THE COURT: Go ahead. 

THE DEFENDANT: I apologize. 

THE COURT: She has a copy. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. On page 9 

Line 14? 

36 

A. 

Q. Lines -- yeah, that would be 13 through 14. 

Well, actually, first, this was authored by you, right? 

You wrote this? 

A. I have to say it was authored by an intern. 

And I did review it and sign it. 

Q. 

A. 

It was authored by an intern? 

Yes. 

Q. It concerns a lot of factual matter. Can 

you explain to me how that works? 

A. Sure. I reviewed it. If there's something 

I needed to add, I discussed it with the intern. Then he 

authored it. And I went through it and signed it. 

Q. So would it be fairly characterized as you 

being the author of the motion? You review it and make 

sure everything is correct, what you want to say, right? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. Before sending it out and -- actually you 

sign at the bottom, right, on page 9? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, at page -- that same page, lines 13 

through 14, can you read that for me? 

A. Sure. The Defendant's sentence was to be 

that he would be eligible for probation, if -- and that is 

italicized 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

if he was granted parole at 15 years. 

Eligible for release? 

If you were granted parole. 

Right. Right. 

So, I mean -- you know, you made a statement a few 

lines back where you said that it would just be that I 

would be eligible for parole, not released. So would that 

invoke the contemplation that the total -- the 

negotiations for the total of the minimum would be 15 

years, right? Is that fair to say? 

A. I don't think it's fair to say. I don't 

think that we necessarily disagree. My understanding was 

that at 15 years, you would be eligible for parole. That 

was always our understanding. That was the spirit of the 

negotiations. I don't disagree with that at all. 

Q. Thank you. That would be regardless -- not 

withstanding the other sentences, all of that, eligible 
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for parole is at 15, right? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Few more questions. 

A. I'm sorry. Can I add that's provided that 

the judge went along with that. Because we also told you 

that we had no way of making sure he would do that. 

Q. Right. Right. The initial petition filed 

in this matter, did you -- do you remember filing an 

opposition to that? 

A. I don't think that I did that one. I 

believe that was Mr DiGiacomo who did that one. 

Q. All right. 

THE DEFENDANT: Judge? 

THE COURT: Which one do we have now? 

THE DEFENDANT: This is State's opposition 

filed November 17, 2006. 

THE COURT: You can approach. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Can I see that first, 

Judge. I don't have a copy of it here. 

THE DEFENDANT: For the record, your 

Honor, all of these are being noticed, right? 

THE COURT: They're all part of the file. 

Anything we use is part of the file. 

THE DEFENDANT: All right. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 
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Q. You have the opposition filed in response to 

the initial petition filed in this case back in 2006, 

right? 

A. My name is on it. I can tell you just 

looking at this that I didn't do this. This would have 

been, I believe, our appellant division. It is not 

uncommon for them to put the attorney's name on that. 

don't even think that I ever saw this. 

Q. Is that right. 

I 

THE DEFENDANT: Is it possible to see the 

file to see if there's a signature on that? My copy 

doesn't have a signature. 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter, your file is so 

big that there are multiple volumes of it. All I have 

with me today is what I needed to decide and be prepared 

for this hearing. 

THE WITNESS: I can tell you that it's 

electronically signed. 

mine. 

It wasn't even a signature of 

THE DEFENDANT: But your name is at the 

bottom of this document? 

THE WITNESS: My name is at the bottom, 

yes. Absolutely. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. So is your testimony that you didn't have 
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anything to do with this opposition? 

A. No. But that's not uncommon on appellate 

issues. 

Q. This would have been a post-conviction 

matter, same as now. It wasn't at the Supreme Court. 

This was in this court. 

A. Right. But then you filed -- okay. I did 

not see that. It's not uncommon for these to go to our 

appellate division. 

Q. May I ask you a question. How -- all right. 

If you didn't see this, would anybody else in the office 

that may have seen this -- although there's no signature 

on here -- or nobody's name -- there's quite a bit of 

factual statements in here? 

They would have gotten it, I'm assuming, from the 

transcript? 

Q. Well, actually -- if I may? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: I apologize. I don't have 

extra copies. 

Footnote 3, number 10, it's concerning a factual 

matter that isn't discussed in the transcript concerning 

one of the victim's -- a dispute I had with an alleged 

victim in the case that had lost their eye. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 
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BY THE DEFENDANT: 

How would they get that information? Q. 

A. Because our appellate division will talk to 

us about causes, but they're filing oppositions. 

Q. So is it possible you consulted with them 

concerning this? 

A. Right. I said I did not write this. They 

very well may have talked to myself. They may have talked 

to Mr. DiGiacomo. Both of us have been on the case since 

the trial stage. 

Q. They wouldn't have allowed you to review 

it? 

A. It's not a matter of them not allowing us to 

review it. It's more to do with just being able to get to 

it in a timely manner. 

Q. There is a statement in here I would like to 

read. I would like to ask you a question in response to 

that. 

Page 4, it says, specifically Defendant alleges 

that the prosecutor misrepresented the law when she 

assured him that he would have the opportunity to be 

released from prison in 15 years. 

It says -- it further goes on to say, contrary to 

Defendant's allegation, the record clearly indicates that 

his sentence does allow him the opportunity to be released 
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in 15 years? 

It then goes on -- never disputes that allegation. 

And that wouldn't be disputed by you, right? Correct? 

A. I can't tell you that I know how to answer 

that. You're saying that you wanted to be released in 15 

years. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

release. 

A. 

The opportunity. 

The opportunity. 

Which would be eligible for possible 

I 

That's my understanding. You would be 

eligible for possible release. 

Q. Okay. Going on to -- I'm just having 

trouble understanding how he wrote this in your name. 

apologize. 

At the sentencing hearing -- you were present at 

sentencing, right? 

A. I was. 

I 

Q. Do you remember -- you said, I believe, in 

your earlier testimony, you said you remember that better 

than you remember the day of the plea negotiations, 

right? 

A. I do, yeah. 

Q. Do you remember there was a conversation 

took place between you, me, and I believe Mr. Wommer was 
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also present? 

A. That's correct. It was in the other 

courtroom. In the other court building. We were not in 

this courtroom. It was out in the corridor that leads 

into the courtroom. There was a correction's officer that 

was also there. 

Q. Right. I couldn't find that correction's 

officer. But there -- at that discussion, what -- do you 

remember we discussed concerns, you know, concerning the 

hearing that was coming on, whether it be -- just issues 

we discussed -- preliminary issues before the hearing? 

A. The issues I remember you bringing up were 

you were in fear that the judge in this case would not 

follow the recommendation by the State. I believe that's 

even addressed in the transcript. Because my feelings was 

that I was not going to go back and have a new guilty plea 

done up to change the language. 

You wanted it to say, stipulated. And I said, are 

not opposing it. I'm not sure with phraseology it was. 

But that was the concern that I remember you having the 

most. 

Q. Do you remember any addition concerns that 

were presented at that discussion? 

A. I don't. I remember your biggest concern 

was that Judge Herndon would not follow what we were 
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trying to accomplish. 

Q. Did I ask you -- but you -- is it fair to 

say, do you really remember what my basis was for 

believing he might not go that way? 

A. No. I'm saying I remember it better than 

the other day. I'm not saying I remember verbatim what 

was going on. I remember the major concern that you 

had. And just from reviewing the transcript, you also 

filed a couple other motions. And your concern was just 

that he made run things consecutively. 

Q. Outside of that transcript, referring to 

discussions Outside. 
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A. Outside the transcript I absolutely remember 

you being concerned about the wording we used, because you 

thought Judge Herndon might run things consecutively. 

Q. And you said -- okay. Let me ask you this. 

Can I, your Honor? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. You have the sentencing transcript dated, I 

believe, August 8, 2005. The day I was sentenced in this 

case. 

Now, the page -- the particular page you're looking 

at, towards the bottom -- I believe it starts line 20, 

begin to address a few issues, correct? 
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A. I did. And actually -- is that what you're 

talking about? 

Q. Yeah. Can you read that from lines 20 --

from page 4. I believe that's what you're on. The next 

page to line 9. 

A. I did. And what actually happened is just 

to maybe forestall some of the other arguments that 

Mr. Slaughter had out in the hallway, we made the 

agreement that we would argue for 15 to life. I did not 

tell him that I would agree to have my secretary go 

through the pain of writing up a new guilty plea 

agreement, but we will stipulate, we will agree, we will 

not oppose whatever words he wants. That's fine. 

In addition, I think his concern is that this court 

is going to somehow fashion something that goes beyond the 

contemplated negotiations. 

Q. Right there. You said -- can I get that 

back, your Honor? 

THE WITNESS: Well, yes. But it does go 

on to talk about we couldn't tie his hands to anything. 

Q. If you're finishing the sentence, go ahead. 

Okay. 

Now you stated -- you addressed the issue, is it 

fair to say, you addressed the issue concerning the 

word? 
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A. Right. 

Q. Then you state, in addition, I think his 

concern is that this court is somehow going to fashion 

something that goes beyond the contemplated negotiations. 

Now, my question is the contemplated negotiations 

was for the minimum of 15, right? 

A. Right. And you were afraid he was going to 

run things consecutively. 

Q. Now, this ''in addition,'' would that present 

another concern that maybe was happening -- occurred in 

that conversation? 

A. I can't say that it would, just because I 

would imagine you would have brought that up, if it had. 

Q. Let me ask you this. Actually, I did get 

that later. 

On page 4, lines 21, you say -- the beginning was 

the court asked you if you received the amended plea 

agreement. You said, I did. 

And you say, and what actually happened is -- then 

you stop out aways -- just to maybe forestall some of the 

other arguments -- plural -- do you think you would have 

used that to reference something else that happened to be 

discussed Outside? 

A. Mr. Slaughter, when I used that, we had 

talked for quite a number of minutes out in the hallway. 

App.0452



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 
I remember that. I remember we talked about your major 

concerns. And I assume that those were the two concerns 

that I was talking about. The fact that we want -- you 

wanted the wording changed. And that the judge was not 

going to follow the concurrent time. 

47 

Q. Would you know why -- what my basis was that 

I might have conveyed to you concerning why I felt that if 

you said somehow fashion, which means, like, it was kind 

of a complex issue maybe that started, why the negotiation 

wouldn't be consummated? 

A. I remember you had a very determined way of 

doing the negotiations, because we wanted to stipulate to 

a sentence and you wanted the right to argue. Because you 

wanted to be able to argue for 40. And we wanted to be 

able to argue for life. So I do remember at the 

negotiations you went with, right to argue versus 

stipulated. 

Q. To your recollection do you ever remember me 

presenting you with my intentions to withdraw a guilty 

plea? 

A. That I don't remember at all. I think I 

would have remembered it. Because you actually had filed 

two other motions right before that and none of them were 

given to us. But you never filed a motion to withdraw at 

the time of sentencing. I mean, that's in the transcript 
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also. 

Q. You said none of them were given to you. 

You say you got the motions in the transcript. It says, I 

did. 

A. I think it talked about I'm sorry. I 

can't remember if I got them from you in court or I got 

them beforehand. I never did an opposition to them that I 

remember. 

THE DEFENDANT: I would ask the court to 

take judicial notice -- I don't have the motion here. It 

was a motion filed. I believe it was stamped received 

August 4, 2005. I believe it ended up getting filed four 

days later on August 8, 2005. 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: What was the title of 

that? 

THE DEFENDANT: The title, motion to 

withdraw guilty plea. I believe there was no decision on 

it. It was vacated on August 23rd, the minutes reflect I 

believe. 

THE COURT: Hold on a second. What was 

the date you are referring to again? 

THE DEFENDANT: The date of the hearing 

was August 23rd. 

THE COURT: That I don't have. 
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THE DEFENDANT: It should have been filed. 

It's not on the calendar at all? 

THE COURT: It's not on the calendar at 

all. I don't recall it ever being mentioned at 

sentencing. It's not a part of the sentencing minutes. 

THE DEFENDANT: Actually I have a calendar 

printout from your clerk. That's about as close as I got. 

They had a hearing scheduled August 23rd, 2005. 

It says Defendant pro per motion to withdraw guilty 

plea. 

I don't have the actual motion, but I remember the 

date. It's actually in all the pleadings, in my brief to 

the Supreme Court too. 

THE COURT: I don't have it. And I've 

read the sentencing transcript again before we got started 

today. And I have it here in court as well. I don't 

remember anything being mentioned about a motion to 

withdraw guilty plea. 

THE DEFENDANT: I actually -- it wasn't 

brought out while anyone testified. 

THE COURT: That's what I'm trying to get 

at. You're saying you filed a motion and nobody ever 

decided it. Or you filed it and withdrew it. 

THE DEFENDANT: I filed it. What I'm 

saying is this was advanced in the briefing. I filed the 
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motion before sentencing, based on -- based on 

misrepresentations. That's what it says in the motion. 

And it was based on my concerns. 
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I didn't have the exact statutes, just hearsay from 

other inmates where I was housed, that the sentences might 

not run the way I was told, as far as the contemplated 

negotiation, right. So I filed that motion to address 

it. 

What I advance happened is during our discussion that 

I was just referencing to Ms. Krisko on examination, we 

discussed -- I presented my intention to withdraw because 

I believed that negotiations might have been 

misapprehended. And I was told that that wasn't a basis I 

could withdraw my plea on. 

What happened is when I came in the court -- and it's 

in the sentencing transcript -- I didn't want to look 

stupid, you know. I had been told by Mr. Wommer and 

Ms. Krisko -- I think she might dispute some of that -- I 

had been told by them that it wasn't a basis to withdraw 

my plea on. So I didn't want to look stupid. So what I 

did, I asked the court concerning those weapon 

enhancements. I believe that's at -- let me find the 

sentencing transcript. 

THE COURT: Let me cut to the chase here. 

You didn't mention this motion at all at sentencing? 
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THE DEFENDANT: Correct. 

THE COURT: All right. All right. That's 

all I was trying to get at. 

Go ahead and continue on with your questions of 

Ms. Krisko. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. Well, what I did was offer -- is it possible 

to take notice of that motion. I know you said, I don't 

have it? 

THE COURT: I don't have it. I don't have 

it filed. I don't have it in the court minutes. I don't 

have it in the sentencing transcript. I can't take notice 

of something I don't have any notice of. 

THE DEFENDANT: I have a calendar printout 

from the clerk. 

THE COURT: I need to have it. You want 

me to take notice of it, not that you're telling me that 

there was something somewhere. Sometimes things get 

mailed in and people withdraw it. 

Just go ahead and continue on with your questions for 

Ms. Krisko right now. Okay. 

THE DEFENDANT: All right. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. Most cases dealing with proper person 

defendants, when they mail in a motion and it's filed it's 

App.0457



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 
usually sent to the district attorney's office, isn't 

it? 

A. No, that's not correct. That actually 
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happened again with your brief here. You filed them with 

the clerk's office. They don't have a duty to turn around 

and send them to us. So I had to pull off your latest 

brief. And that's also why I didn't have your reply and 

it continued before, because if you don't send them to us, 

we don't always get them. 

Q. You never -- I guess it would be your 

testimony you didn't receive that motion? 

A. I don't remember seeing a motion from you on 

a motion to withdraw. 

Q. Did you ever review the initial petition 

filed in this matter -- the petition I filed? 

A. I don't believe so. I don't believe I did. 

I know that your petition -- I believe jour petition went 

down to our appellate division. They responded. 

Mr. DiGiacomo did the writ hearing. I only got involved 

after the hearing got reset -- the evidentiary hearing got 

discussed, then I got back involved. 

Q. So --

A. I can tell you on that one with my 

signature, I know it's also not mine because I do my own 

motions. I don't have other people do them. So I would 
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have signed it. 

Q. The one with your signature? 

A. The one that has an electronic signature. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

You are saying that's not yours? 

I didn't write it. 

I got it. I got what you're saying. 

THE DEFENDANT: The initial petition, 

there is an allegation that are advanced where I mention 

that discussion -- that same discussion I was alluding 

to. And I expressed that I did -- my intentions of -- I 

expressed my intention to Ms. Krisko to withdraw the 

plea. 
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I guess I just ask for judicial notice of that. And 

also the fact that in the pleadings they didn't -- they 

don't controvert that in the opposition where Ms. Krisko 

told us she didn't author that. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: I don't know if you can 

take judicial notice of a conversation. 

THE COURT: I'm not taking judicial 

notice. 

THE DEFENDANT: Not the conversation. 

Just that it's in the initial petition and that they 

didn't controvert it in their opposition. That's what I'm 

asking. The pleading is on file. 

THE COURT: All right. Just so the record 
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is clear. I will take judicial notice now, Mr. Slaughter, 

that you filed a motion to withdraw guilty plea. That was 

filed with the clerk's office at 2:38 in the afternoon of 

August 8, 2005, which would have been eight hours --

excuse me about five hours after sentencing had already 

taken place. And that the hearing date given was August 

23, of '05. That would have been vacated, because you had 

already been sentenced. 

Part of my confusion was, since you never mentioned 

at sentencing you had apparently sought to file this 

motion, I had no knowledge of the motion since it hadn't 

even been filed yet. 

THE DEFENDANT: Do you take notice, 

there's a received stamp on there -- a date received. 

date it was received. 

time. 

I'm just trying to establish the 

THE COURT: That's the handwritten, I 

mailed it to the DA's office. 

The 

THE DEFENDANT: No. On the front. The 

first page. It should be at the bottom left-hand corner, 

says received August 4, 2005. 

THE COURT: What I'm telling you is if you 

want me to know about something and take action on it 

you've got to tell me about it. There was nothing raised 

at sentencing you'd ever filed a motion discussing your 
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withdrawing your plea. 

Since the court didn't have it, there's no way I 

could address anything at the time you were sentenced. 

And you didn't raise anything. 

THE DEFENDANT: Absolutely. 

THE COURT: Let's keep going. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Uudge, and chance we can 

get it printed, just so we know what the allegation was. 

THE COURT: There's a copy. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURT: I will tell you, for the 
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record, it's a very short motion that says, quote, ''in the 

instant case the Defendant wishes to withdraw his plea due 

to misrepresentations made by the DA, Ms. Susan Krisko, 

and Marc DiGiacomo, and Defendant's stand-by counsel Paul 

Wornrner that affected the voluntariness of the plea." 

"Because of the numerous misconceptions and direct 

consequences of the plea, the Defendant respectfully 

requests the honorable court grant the Defendant the 

assistance of counsel to review the record for all 

improprieties." 

That's the end of that's essentially it. That's 

kind of repeated again in a section titled closing and/or 

relief sought. There's nothing else that's gone into. 

In conjunction with that, I will say there's a motion 

App.0461



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 
to appoint counsel that I did take up at time of 

sentencing. And I appointed Mr. Wommer to represent 

Mr. Slaughter in his sentencing at his request. 

THE DEFENDANT: Correct. 

THE COURT: Anymore questions, 

Mr. Slaughter? 

moment. 

THE DEFENDANT: That would be it for the 

THE COURT: Mr. DiGiacomo. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DIGIACOMO: 
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Q. Ms. Krisko, at some point in time the guilty 

plea agreement had to be reduced to writing; is that 

correct? 

A. 

Q. 

correct? 

A. 

That's correct. 

And Mr. Slaughter was a pro per defendant, 

Correct. 

Q. You went upstairs and had a guilty plea 

agreement generated? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that guilty plea agreement contained all 

the terms and conditions of the agreement, correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

At the time that this guilty plea agreement 
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was created was there any discussion of a statute that 

talks about how sentences or viewed by the Nevada 

Department of Corrections? 

A. No. 
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Q. Was there any discussion of the structure of 

the sentence in the sense that NRS 213 whatever it 

is -- 2131, in anyway affects the sentencing structure? 

A. No. 

Q. Essentially what you agreed with 

Mr. Slaughter was that he would receive a 15 to life for 

the -- or 15 to 40 years for the first degree kidnapping 

with substantial bodily harm? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you would agree that he would receive a 

sentence for all the other crimes that he was going to 

plead to? 

A. 

Q. 

concurrent? 

court? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

correct? 

Yes. 

And all those crimes would be run 

Yes. 

And that the sentencing was up to the 

Yes. 

Initially, that's in the plea agreement, 
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A. 

Q. 

• 
Yes. 

Then the day of sentencing itself, 

Mr. Slaughter indicated to you that he was concerned the 

judge would give more than 15 to life, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you said, look, I don't think he will. 

I'm willing to agree to say that we stipulate that it's 

going to be 15 to life? 

A. Correct. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

And the judge followed that? 

Or 15 to 40, because --

He wanted to argue for that? 

Yes. 

And you did that at sentencing too? 

Yes. 

At any point in time do you feel you 

misrepresented anything to Mr. Slaughter? 
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A. No. And, quite frankly, the fact that they 

had to have AG opinion come down and even interpret that 

statute, I had no belief that -- I had no knowledge about 

the statute applying in this case. 

Q. As far as you're concerned, did you fulfil 

the terms and conditions of the plea agreement? 

A. I did. And I've been trying to ever 

since. 
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Q. And, in fact, when Mr. Slaughter raised the 

issue, at least when it originally came up, he filed a 

writ in this particular court and I'm the person that 

handled it, not you, correct? 

A. 

Q. 

That's correct. 

And after that time period the Supreme Court 

order came down asking for, basically, an opinion from the 

attorney general ordering this evidentiary hearing? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And after that we learned from the attorney 

general that they are taking the interpretation different 

than necessarily you or I would take it, correct? 

A. Absolutely. I'm not sure how they came up 

with that. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Interpretation. 

Yes. 

In fact, you don't know what the judge's 

interpretation of that particular statute is? 

A. No. 

Q. That is the position of the State of Nevada 

that we're more than willing to allow Mr. Slaughter to 

have 15 to life sentence, correct? 

A. Absolutely. I have had a couple of 

conversations with Mr. Slaughter where we agreed -- I 

proposed that we would withdraw the deadly weapon 
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enhancement because the spirit of the negotiations has 

always been that he would be eligible for the parole board 

and release, if they agreed, at 15 years. 

Q. And Mr. Slaughter indicated to you that he 

doesn't care how it is we propose to fix it so he does 15 

to life, he just wants out of his plea? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

So it's not that he wants specific 

performance of this agreement between us, he wants out of 

his plea? 

Yes. A. 

Q. Let's talk about at the sentencing -- prior 

to the sentencing, you were present for that conversation 

with Mr. Slaughter? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And during that conversation you have no 

recollection of him telling you that he wanted to withdraw 

his guilty plea? 

A. No. I remember him being very concerned 

about the judge giving him a different plea, and my -­

THE COURT: Different sentence. 

THE WITNESS: Sorry. A different 

sentence, but my complete unwillingness to go up and have 

a new guilty plea. 

I remember being very adamant that he was not going 
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to make us do a new guilty plea just to write the 

different wording that he wanted. 

BY MR. DIGIACOMO: 
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Q. You recall that the Defendant file a motion 

for an amended guilty -- amended plea agreement? 

A. I did recall that after reading the 

sentencing transcript. He had two. He had that motion 

and one to have counsel appointed. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Nothing further. 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter, anything 

further. 

THE DEFENDANT: Um -- yeah. Yeah. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. Just in reference to that, would you say you 

are certain that there was nothing else brought up at that 

conversation, or would you just say you don't remember? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Far as far as what I -­

At the sentencing hearing. 

As far as what you're asking me, I do not 

remember anything that had to do with how the prison was 

going to commute your time. If that had been a 

conversation we had, I'm sure that would have stuck out in 

my mind. 

Could there have been other things we discussed I 

don't remember, yes. 

App.0467



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 
Q. And those other things we possibly could 

have discussed that you don't remember, could have 

possibly been my intention to withdraw, correct? 

A. I think that you talked about wanting to 

62 

withdraw if I wouldn't give you the wording you wanted. 

Again, my complete memory of that instance was you had a 

very strong opposition to the wording that we used, that 

you had agreed to in the guilty plea. And you wanted that 

changed. I was equally adamant that I didn't want to make 

a secretary go about changing just the wording to make you 

happy. 

Q. That might be a peripheral matter, but it's 

true you did change that wording, correct? 

A. I was not willing to take up and make a 

secretary retype an entire guilty plea, correct. 

Q. But you basically, in response to my 

question, I guess you're saying that you didn't 

don't remember if anything else was discussed. I'm 

you 

asking, can you certainly say for certain that nothing 

else was discussed in that conversation based on your 

memory? 

A. I can say I certainly never discussed with 

you how computation would be done at the prison, because I 

had no knowledge of that. I can say I absolutely did not 

have that conversation with you, because I mean I was 
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shocked when I saw the way that the computation was being 

done. 

Q. 

A. 

I was in reference to regard to withdrawing. 

Well, I guess then what I mean with the 

motion to withdraw, or, in fact, with that word, is you 

may have used the word withdraw to talk about the fact 

that you wanted the wording to be different. 

I can't say that you didn't use that word. But 

your whole concern, that I remember, was the wording, and 

I thought we had gotten it to a point where you were fine 

with it. I wasn't going to have new paperwork done. I 

wrote what I wrote. And we went forward. 

Q. Okay. One last thing. Considering your 

statement where you say just to maybe forestall some of 

the other argument, would you say that you're referencing 

numerous arguments, plural arguments, more than one had 

happened in the hallway? 

A. 

Q. 

You had two that I remember. 

Two. 

A. Two. Making me have a new guilty plea done. 

And having the judge run things differently. Those are 

the two arguments. 

Q. Having things run different? 

A. Having the judge run things consecutively 

versus concurrent. I do remember you being very worried 
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that you somehow would not get the benefit of what the 

bargain was. 

Q. And somehow that's like -- it kind of 

64 

canotates (sic} when you say probably something complex we 

was talking about, something that, you know -- you say 

somehow -- you also reference -- you say that in the 

transcript also? 

A. I'm sorry. I don't understand. 

Q. What I mean is you say the court is somehow 

going to fashion something that goes beyond the 

contemplated negotiations. I think we got it. 

A. Meaning consecutively. 

THE DEFENDANT: Nothing further. 

THE COURT: Mr. DiGiacomo. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: No. 

THE COURT: Ms. Krisko, you can step down. 

Thank you very much. 

Mr. Slaughter, you may call your next witness. 

THE DEFENDANT: Call Mr. DiGiacomo. 

May I ask a question. I don't know -- just for the 

record if given what I stated earlier, the recusal 

issue, if that's entirely appropriate with Mr. DiGiacomo 

conducting examination and testifying. He has an adverse 

position to this habeas proceeding. 

THE COURT: Well, I mean, to begin with 
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it's too late to raise that issue, now that we're three 

witnesses into the proceeding. But nonetheless, I'll 

allow him to go forward. So, go ahead. 

You can question 

would, please. 

raise your right hand, if you 

THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear the 

testimony you are about to give in this action shall be 

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so 

help you God. 

THE WITNESS: I do. 

THE CLERK: Be seated. State and spell 

your name for the record. 

THE WITNESS: Marc DiGiacomo, 

D-I -- capital, G-I-A-C-O-M-0. 

THE DEFENDANT: For the record, I object 

to that. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 
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Q. Mr. DiGiacomo, you were present in court the 

day of the negotiations as well; is that correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Correct. 

Would you say you participated in the 

negotiation process? 

A. Sure. As a lawyer on the case, I assume I 

did, yes. 
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Q. Do you remember Ms. Krisko stated on her 

examination, would your recollection be similar to her? 

A. I don't know in all regards. My 

recollection is what's in that guilty plea agreement is 

what the agreement is. 

Q. Well, I'm asking you on memory, not the 

document. With regard to the contemplation of the 

negotiation, as far as the minimum being 15 years before 

an eligibility of release, would you say that's a fair 

statement? 
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A. I would say this to you Rickie. I would say 

we made you an offer of negotiation. That offer of 

negotiation, in my mind, when I read it, is 15 to life. 

That's what you got. And there was no discussion of 

computation at that time. No discussion of structuring of 

sentences. Nothing like that. 

We said we want you to plead to this. This 

sentence, concurrent, take it or leave it. That's my 

recollection of the conversation. 

Q. 

A. 

That's your recollection? 

I don't remember giving you legal advise or 

talking about what the deal was. That was the deal. And 

we told you you could take it or go to trial. 

Q. So you don't remember any other negotiations 

or clarifying negotiations or anything like that? 
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A. The only thing I recall was that your desire 

was to argue for the 40 -- 15 to 40. Because initially we 

made you the offer of 15 to life on the first degree 

kidnapping. And you wanted it. And Ms. Krisko was 

upstairs getting the guilty plea agreement, and I had to 

call her and tell her, give him the right to argue over 15 

to life versus 15 to 40. That's my only recollection of 

any additional negotiation that happened. 

Q. Okay. You said any additional negotiation 

that happened? 

A. Correct. 

Q. As far as you know -- to your understanding 

far as the negotiation process and in your practice, if a 

negotiation is entertained, the process of negotiation, if 

it's not accepted, then the hearing proceeds, correct? 

A. Yeah, I guess so. 

Q. Right. Right. Right. It wouldn't proceed 

if the negotiation was accepted, right? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Do you remember -- do you have memory of --

I don't know if you remember it or not -- concerning the 

point in that hearing on August 4th, when you did the plea 

negotiation, where Ms. Krisko referenced we would like to 

discuss negotiations again? 

A. No. I mean I don't have anything 

' I 
I 
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independent of what is in the transcript as it relates to 

negotiations. I recall that you came to court in like 

shorts and a T-shirt where your gang tats could be seen. 

There was some discussion about that. You left the room 

to change into pants we brought down to VWACK (ph). And 

you came back in and at some point we had negotiations. I 

don't recall what prompted them, or if there had been 

conversations over the years of this case about 

negotiations before. 

Q. No. Would you say you are involved -- would 

you agree that the contemplation in the negotiation was 

for the minimum overall to be 15 years minimum? 

A. When you say the contemplation, what I'm 

telling you is this is what the deal was. We told you 

these are the crimes. These -- this is the sentence. 

We'll run these things concurrent. We'll give you a 

written guilty plea agreement. You can take it. You can 

leave it. 

Ms. Krisko and I both think that that agreement 

means you are eligible for a parole hearing in 15 years. 

But we didn't have a discussion about the structuring of 

the sentences or anything. We made you the offer. You 

can take it, or you can leave it. You chose to take it. 

Q. So you say when -- that you both believe the 

minimum would be 15, right? That's what you just said? 

_I 

App.0474



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 69 

A. I disagree with the attorney general's 

opinion as to that statute. 

Q. I'm just asking. You said you both thought 

the minimum would be 15. That be something that would 

possibly be conveyed during the plea negotiations? 

A. 

Q. 

What do you mean? 

Would that be conveyed to a person the 

negotiation is being offered to? 

A. It's in writing. 

Q. Right. 

A. It's a guilty plea agreement. 

Q. All right. Yeah. In fact, you excuse 

for a second. You explained the negotiations to the 

court, do you remember that? 

A. 

Q. 

negotiation? 

A. 

I read it this morning. 

I mean, you explained it at the plea 

I don't have an independent recollection. 

It seems like something I would have. said. 

me 

Q. You don't have an independent recollection. 

So you just only recollect what's in the transcript? 

A. 

Q. 

As to what I explained to the court, yeah. 

As the negotiations pretty much you only 

recollect what's on the plea agreement as you said earlier 

and the transcript? 
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A. I do not recollect having conversations with 

you. Mr. Wommer was here. Your investigator was here. I 

remember there being an offer being made to you, and then 

you saying I .want the right to argue for 40 years. Me 

calling Ms. Krisko and saying it doesn't matter, we'll 

give him the right to argue for 40 years instead of a life 

sentence. 

The guilty plea agreement was done. I don't 

remember having a long discussion with you about the 

consequences of your plea at all. 

Q. So you say you called Ms. Krisko -- you 

called her and told her? 

A. To change the plea agreement after 

because you wanted the 40 years instead of life. 

Q. This would be after the plea negotiations 

was resolved? 

A. Well, at some point. 

Q. When do you recollect that this took 

place? 

A. It had to be on the break, because 

Ms. Krisko was in the room with me when we put the 

negotiations on the record. 

Q. It had to be on a break? 

A. I don't see it in the transcript. I 

wouldn't have made a phone call on the record. 
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THE DEFENDANT: Can I? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MS. KRISKO: Can you tell me what you're 

referencing, please. 

THE DEFENDANT: Sorry. It's the plea 

canvass transcript at page 25, lines 4 through 7. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 
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Q. On that page -- you have the plea transcript 

in front of you, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Lines 4 through 7 -- well, actually you can 

read it. You can read from the back. 

You have the transcript? 

MS. KRISKO: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: Read from where the court 

asked what the negotiations are? 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. Yes. Is that where the court starts. Line 

14, page 24. 

A. THE COURT: "Why don't you tell me, please, 

Mr. DiGiacomo, what the negotiations are.'' 

MR. DIGIACOMO: "Yes, Judge." 

"The Defendant will enter a plea to -- let's make 

sure we read all of these off.'' 

"Count (1), attempt murder with use of a deadly 
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weapon." 

"Count (2), robbery with use of a deadly weapon." 

''Count (3), first degree kidnapping.'' 

''Count (4), first degree kidnapping with use of a 

deadly weapon." 

72 

"The State agrees to retain the right to argue for 

15 years to life sentencing as to Count (3), but 

stipulates that life without the possibility of parole is 

not an available sentence for the court." 

"The State will not oppose concurrent time between 

counts, and the Defendant has agreed to retain the right 

to argue for 15 to 40 years, as to sentencing on Count 

(3)." 

"The sentencing, Judge, the negotiation is either 

15 to life, or 15 to 40, depending on the court's decision 

at sentencing. The sentencing is to be before this court, 

is my understanding, Judge.'' 

Q. Good. You say at line 4, you say 

essentially, Judge, the negotiation is either 15 to life 

or 15 to 40? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And are you saying essentially the 

negotiations, as a whole, is 15 to life or 15 to 40? 

A. I'm saying your sentence is 15 to life. My 

interpretation, you got the sentence you bargained for. 
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Q. Would that be regardless of the entire 

agreement, right? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

15 at the bottom? 

Yes. 

No other sentences starting afterwards? 

You are asking me do I agree with the 

interpretation of the attorney general, no. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

That's not what I'm asking you. 

We're arguing apples and oranges. 

I'm not asking you that. 
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A. You got a sentence of 15 to life, everything 

else was run concurrent. 

Can I ask you the question? 

Sure. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. What I'm asking is it a fair statement that 

the deal we entered into was for me to get a minimum of 15 

with no sentences starting afterwards? And you agree with 

that contemplation of the negotiation as Ms. Krisko 

stated. 

A. As Ms Krisko said that was the spirit. I 

don't think -- we didn't have that discussion at all. 

So --Q. 

A. You didn't say is there any sentence going 

to be running after that 15 years on the bottom. We 
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didn't have that conversation. The question you're asking 

me is, did you get a 15 to life with everything else 

concurrent based upon the structure in the plea agreement, 

the answer is, yes. We don't disagree with that statement 

Rickie. 

We didn't provide you any legal advise about the 

way the sentences are going to be structured. I don't 

know that we necessarily agree with the way the AG claims 

the sentence should be structured. 

Q. You are saying you don't think -- you are 

saying essentially would it be fair to say during the 

negotiations, when you offered this negotiation, I was 

informed that this deal would allow me to serve a minimum 

of 15. That's what the deal was. 

A. I don't know that you were informed. That's 

the way I read the guilty plea agreement. 

Q. You have no independent recollection Outside 

of that, as far as 

A. 

Q. 

questions. 

BY MS. KRISKO: 

No. 

-- the minimum. 

THE DEFENDANT: I don't have anymore 

THE COURT: Anything Ms. Krisko. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 
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Q. You have stated quite a few times the guilty 

plea agreement is as you believe the negotiations was, 

correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Did you have discuss with Mr. Slaughter his 

computation of good-time credit? 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Did you ever tell him he would get so many 

days off for doing things that he was supposed do in 

prison? 

A. No. It's not something I normally 

discuss. 

Q. Did you ever discuss with him how a parole 

board would go and whether or not he would get paroled the 

first time? 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Did you or anyone, to your knowledge, 

discuss anything about the way the sentence would be 

handled from the timekeeper in this case being the 

prison? 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Was that -- is that something you ever 

typically discuss in negotiations? 

A. I can't recall ever doing that. 

Q. I believe you already stated it, but, the 
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attorney general came down with the decision, and up until 

that time period, was it your understanding concurrent 

meant concurrent? 

A. 

Q. 

I still think concurrent means concurrent. 

So when you gave this negotiation, along 

with myself, it was your understanding that concurrent 

would be everything going together? 

A. Correct. 

MS. KRISKO: Nothing further. 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. You represented the State on the first 

initial opposition before the Supreme Court ruled in the 

case, right? 

A. At the first hearing, yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: Can I, your Honor? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 

Q. That transcript you have, is that of the 

prior writ of habeas corpus? 

A. 

Q. 

It appears to be. 

I mean, it's filed stamped, right? It reads 

writ of habeas corpus transcript. 

A. Yes. It appears to be. 
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Q. Page 6 -- if you turn to page 6. Can you go 

to lines 24 through 25 -- on page 6, 24 through 25 -- page 

7, 1 through 6. 

A. This is you speaking. 

Q. Yes, sir. 

A. ''I think this indicates the intention of the 

negotiation and supports my allegation that I was told the 

deal would give me an opportunity to be released in 15 

years." 

Q. 

A. 

And 3 through 4. 

''THE COURT: I absolutely agree with you. 

But there is no dispute as to that.'' 

''Answer: Right.'' 

I don't think anybody disputes that. 

Q. Well, just on your testimony you said that I 

was never informed that I would be able to serve a minimum 

of 15. You never objected to any of this at the hearing, 

did you? 

A. I still don't object to it. 

Q. Right. So what I'm asking is do you object 

that I was told that this deal would give me an 

opportunity in 15 years? 

THE COURT: This has been asked and 

answered. Let's go ahead and move on. 

BY THE DEFENDANT: 
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Q. Well, did you object at this hearing to that 

statement that I made right there? 

A. No. I don't know who you're talking about 

told you, but certainly that wasn't a discussion I had 

with you. But I don't think the court disagrees with your 

position in that. I don't disagree with the court. 

Q. All right. And the court kind of goes on on 

page 7 saying you understood that it was an opportunity 

that you could be paroled at 15 years and have no other 

sentences start. 

And I kind of went on through this hearing for 

awhile, but I state quite a few times that I was told by 

the State that I would have the opportunity to get out in 

15 years, pursuant to this deal. And you never objected 

to any of this, correct? 

A. I don't see an objection here. I don't know 

that it was relevant at that point. 

Q. I mean, when it came to your time to 

argument, you didn't object to any of those things, 

right? 

A. It wasn't relevant. You, me, the court, 

everybody thought you were eligible for parole at 15 

years. 

Q. Did you object to the statement when I said 

that I was informed by the State at the negotiations that 
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this deal would give me an opportunity to get out in 15 

years. You never objected to that, did you? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

BY MS. KRISKO: 

No. 

Huh? 

No. 

All right. 

THE DEFENDANT: That's it. 

MS. KRISKO: Briefly. 

FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION 
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Q. Was it your understanding that Mr. Slaughter 

was representing himself? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Correct. 

Pro per? 

Correct. 

He had ever available -- strike that. When 

he represents himself pro per, have you ever talked to a 

pro per defendant before? 

lawyer? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

BY MS. KRISKO: 

Yes. 

Is it your understanding that they are their 

Correct. 

THE DEFENDANT: I object. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

to them? 

A. 

Q. 

• 
The onus is on them to know the law? 

Correct. 
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It's not your duty to provide legal counsel 

I don't. 

In this case, did you ever tell 

Mr. Slaughter, I can tell you how the computation is going 

the be done at the prison and it will be done this way so 

you will be out? 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

Did you ever discuss that stature that the 

Supreme Court is actually discussing in this particular 

case with Mr. Slaughter? 

A. No. 

Q. To your understanding had anyone from your 

office, including myself, do that? 

A. No. 

MS. KRISKO: Nothing further. 

THE COURT: All right, Mr. DiGiacomo, you 

can step down. Thank you. 

Mr. Slaughter, do you have any further witnesses? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. I would like to 

place my own testimony. Also, your Honor --

THE COURT: We're going to need to take a 

lunch recess before we continue on. 
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My main concern was to get Ms. Kriske on the stand 

before she needs to leave town. We'll finish it up today, 

but we'll have to take a break for about an hour. 

got to give everybody a break. 

I've 

Ms Krisko, as far as I'm concerned, you're done, 

unless you want to stick around. Mr. DiGiacomo can 

continue on. 

We'll be in recess. We'll come back and start back 

up again at 3:15. 

(Lunch recess taken.) 

THE COURT: Back on the record in State of 

Nevada versus Rickie Slaughter, C-204957. Mr. Slaughter 

is present, representing himself. Mr. DiGiacomo and 

Ms. Krisko for the State. 

As we left off, I believe, Mr. Slaughter, you 

indicated you wanted to call yourself as a witness now. 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. Can I just note 

real briefly the objection again regarding the DA as 

witnesses since they're representing the State. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

THE DEFENDANT: And the issue that I 

wasn't able to present any testimony from you. 

Also, before I testify, can I offer this affidavit of 

a witness who was out of state who couldn't 

THE COURT: Have you seen a copy of it? 
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MR. DIGIACOMO: I haven't, Judge. 

THE DEFENDANT: I have a copy. 
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MR. DIGIACOMO: Other than the three 

layers of hearsay, the fact that it's also a prior 

inconsistent statement of Mr. Slaughter, I don't know that 

it's relevant to the proceedings at all. 

THE COURT: I'll go ahead and allow it to 

be marked as an exhibit. I'll look at it and decide if 

any weight should be given to it. Mark that next in 

order. 

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, there was a 

letter that goes with that. I apologize. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

THE DEFENDANT: The letter is attached to 

the proceedings. This is the actual letter here. There 

was copies attached to some of the pleadings. 

THE COURT: You can approach the clerk. 

That will be included with that last exhibit. All 

right. Mr. Slaughter, you've got something else that you 

wanted to mark? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. Can I make a 

statement in regard to that? 

THE COURT: Yes. Yes. In regard to those 

exhibits? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 
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THE COURT: Sure. 

THE DEFENDANT: Those are offered. They 

just convey my impression that I told my father that 

what I was assured what the deal would provide, what the 

benefit of the bargain was. 
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He had inquired, that's why the letter is there. And 

I, in fact, told him. And I think that's what the 

affidavit establishes. 

THE COURT: I'll go ahead and admit those 

and take them into consideration along with everything 

else. 

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you. 

THE COURT: As far as your testimony goes, 

you don't have to come up here. Go ahead and raise your 

hand, if you would, please. 

THE CLERK: You do solemnly swear the 

testimony you are about to give in this action shall be 

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so 

help you God. 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE CLERK: State and spell your name for 

the record. 

THE DEFENDANT: Rickie Slaughter, 

S-L-A-U-G-H-T-E-R. 

As far as to the form, you want me to just do a 
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narrative? 

THE COURT: Yes. Obviously you don't have 

anybody that can ask you questions. So you can just tell 

me what it is you want to tell me, in terms of the issue 

we are here to decide today. 

THE DEFENDANT: As is, I believe, 

consistent with I believe Ms. Krisko's testimony today, 

the deal was to give me what was supposed to be a minimum 

of 15. And I believe that that was conveyed to me. 

That's what happened at the negotiation process. What I 

remember. I remember this distinctly from Mr. DiGiacomo. 

And it was when he offered the deal he said now is the 

time to negotiate, if any. And he said the fact of the 

matter is that we're all going home tonight. The question 

is when are you going home. 

He said you can go to trial. That's your right. But 

we're looking for life without. Or you can take this deal 

and have an opportunity to get out in 15 years. And I 

remember distinctly that was what stuck in my mind with 

regard to the deal. So we considered the deal. 

actually rejected it the first time. 

I 

I believe it was -- I don't know if it was after we 

came back from the close, whatever it was coming after. I 

believe the second recess though, as was in the transcript 

Ms. Krisko stated, we might want to discuss negotiations 
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again. 

What happened is that at that point we began to 

clarify because I didn't understand how it would give me 

an opportunity to get out in 15 years. Now, we didn't 

discuss any specific statutes, or, you know, structure 

like that per se. But we discussed that this deal -- I 

was told that this deal would give me an opportunity to 

get out in 15 years. 

I inquired, how does that happen with all of this. 

And that's basically what I was told. They broke it down 

to me. You serve this. You serve this. And the 15 is 

the largest sentence. 

And anyways, aside from the plea negotiations, I 

ended up taking the deal. I believe maybe once or so 

during the canvass I actually stopped and conferred with 

Mr. Wommer and Mr. DiGiacomo concerning -- you know, it 

was still in my mind at that time so I asked him again 

that's how it runs. That's consistent with what Mr. 

Wommer said today as well. 

all of my pleadings. 

It's consistently advanced in 

But also, aside from the negotiation process, once we 

got to sentencing before sentencing there were a few 

different issues. One, the language of the plea 

agreement. Two, issue concerning the way the sentence 

would run. Now, I didn't know the statute at the time. I 

App.0491



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 86 

wasn't that articulate to put it in the motion that way. 

But I had this concern based on the stuff I was hearing 

from inmates housed with me in prison. They said I don't 

think your deal runs like that. I don't think you'll have 

a minimum 15. 

as it is now. 

I think you -- it's going to be separated 

I didn't have any authority on it, but I had a 

concern. It concerned me, so I filed the motion again. 

filed the motion to withdraw. 

Now, before the hearing I was met by Ms. Krisko. 

Mr. Wommer was there. A correctional officer, I haven't 

been able to find. And at this discussion we discussed a 

few things. Like Ms. Krisko said today, we were talking 

for awhile. And one of the issues was, what was the 

language of the agreement. The other issue was that I 

didn't feel that the deal is not going to give me the 

benefit I was told, a minimum 15. I didn't know how to 

express it. I believe that's why Ms. Krisko is saying 

somehow in fact it's something different. I didn't know 

how to say it, but I knew that, you know, I had this 

concern something wasn't right. 

I 

Well, in any event, Mr. Wommer and Ms. Krisko told me 

that the deal did provide for what they told me. That it 

would provide a minimum of 15. All of these would be 

concurrent. This is a minimum 15. Life or 40 was up to 
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you. 

Based on that, I didn't really want to feel like the 

stupid one corning into court saying, you know, I want to 

withdraw on this basis and I got two attorneys now 

three, telling me that this is how the deal goes. I 

didn't want to rely on the inmates. So what I did is I 

asked your Honor. I asked you at the hearing. That's 

when I decided to pose the question. Then you told me 

then if it didn't go that way, then I was going to pursue 

my motion to withdraw. 

But what happened is I asked you and you essentially 

gave me the same stuff, the same information that they 

gave me concerning the weapons enhancement. And that's in 

the transcript. 

So after I heard that, I got the judge, I got two 

district attorneys, I got Mr. Wornrner, so I'm like, they're 

all telling me that the deal does provide for a minimum. 

There's nothing that's going to come after. So based on 

that, I didn't pursue my motion. I think that was 

reasonable. Based on everybody telling me this I didn't 

pursue it based on that. 

Any event, in the prison sometime through inmate 

with an inmate caseworker, and they informed me that, you 

know, you don't have a minimum. You got another sentence 

corning after this 15. I asked how was that so. I didn't 
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believe it at first. I'm telling them I don't understand. 

I was told the deal was a minimum 15. So they showed me 

the statute. They showed me the printouts. They showed 

me how it all worked. 

I did a little research. After I researched it then 

it kind of made sense when I read the statute. I guess 

that makes sense and that's how we got here. I believe 

the attorney general's opinion establishes that -- and the 

way the prison calculated, establishes I don't have the 

minimum I was told I would have in this agreement. And I 

believe Ms. Krisko conceded to that today. 

That's pretty much all that in a nut shell. That's 

how we got here. 

THE COURT: All right. Mr. DiGiacomo, do 

you have any questions for Mr. Slaughter. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Just a couple of 

questions, Rickie. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DIGIACOMO: 

Q. You'd agree with me that you were acting as 

your own lawyer, correct? 

A. 

Q. 

Absolutely. 

So when Ms. Krisko and I were talking to 

you, did you take us to be your lawyers? 

A. No. 
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Q. Are you telling this court that somehow we 

lied to you? 

A. What I'm saying is when you offered the deal 

I was told that the deal would give me a minimum of 15 

years. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

By who? 

Now you're saying that that's not possible. 

By who? 

I was told that by you. I was told that by 

Ms. Krisko. We were going back and forth. You were 

there. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Did you read this? 

I read the plea agreement. 

You understood it, right? 

No, actually I didn't. Not pursuant to 

Did you understand the judge could have run 

all your time consecutive? 

A. 

Q. 

Yeah, I understood that. 

You knew you could have gotten a sentence of 

a heck of a lot more than 15 to life when you signed this, 

right? 

A. To be honest, I thought when you stipulated, 

I thought that that has to be done or I'd be allowed to 

withdraw. 

Q. You'd agree that that happened at 
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sentencing. I'm talking about when you signed the plea 

agreement. You knew the judge could run a whole bunch of 

time piled on you, and you'd have a huge minimum 

sentence? 

A. No. Actually the language -- I moved to 

amend the language. I believe the language is wrong. I 

believe when we discussed it at the negotiation, we are 

supposed to be stipulating in the first place. That was 

in my motion to amend the plea. 

Q. So when the court told you during your plea 

canvass that sentencing is completely up to him and he got 

to decide, and you said you understood that, were you 

lying to him? 

A. No. But I figured that if we stipulated 

then he has to go with it. 

withdraw. 

If he doesn't, I will get to 

Q. Okay. So you agree with me that the word 

stipulate didn't even come up until sentencing, correct? 

A. No. Stipulating came up during the 

negotiations. 

Q. So now stipulating came up during the 

negotiations? 

A. Right. And somehow it evaded me during the 

proceeding and that's why I brought that up coming into 

sentencing. 
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Q. Now you're telling the court that the guilty 

plea agreement that you signed wasn't correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And then what happened at sentencing is when 

you talked to Ms. Kriske you had a discussion, didn't 

you, with Ms. Krisko? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Your concern with Ms. Krisko was the judge 

might give you a heck of a lot more than 15 to life? 

A. My concern was that the deal wasn't the way 

I heard it as far as it wouldn't be -- it might bring 

consecutive sentences after the minimum. 

Q. So now you're telling us that your concern 

was it may be just an accident that you had this 

concern that it might be an accidental more than 15 to 

life? 

A. Accident -- I don't understand what you're 

saying. 

Q. What I'm asking you is you knew the judge 

could have given you a sentence range of 50 years to life, 

correct? 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

If he had run all those counts consecutive, 

he could have given you 50 to life, correct? 

A. If they were run consecutive, I imagine they 
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could have whatever it would add up to consecutive. 

You knew the judge had the right to do Q. 

that? 

A. I thought if it was stipulated then if he 

does that then the negotiation was --

Q. You agree with me the stipulation didn't 

occur until sentencing? 

clear. 

A. 

Q. 

I don't agree with you. 

I'll show you, just so the record is 

That's the guilty plea agreement, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. The word stipulate is written in there. 

That was written in at the time of sentencing, correct? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. So when you signed this it said the State 

will not oppose concurrent time between the counts? 

A. Right. 

92 

Q. Your testimony is you thought that that was 

stipulated? 

A. My testimony is that somehow I missed it. 

That's my testimony. 

Q. Okay. Now, on page 3 of this transcript, I 

want you to read line 14 and 15. Read that out loud to 

the court. 

A. ''I have not been promised a guarantee of any 
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particular sentence by anyone. I know that my sentence is 

to be determined by the court within the limits prescribed 

by statute." 

Q. Okay. You read that prior to signing this, 

correct? 

Rickie? 

A. 

Q. 

I would assume. 

What does that sentence mean to you, 

A. It means that Outside of what we negotiated 

there was no other deal. 

Q. Outside of what's contained in this guilty 

plea agreement --

A. Outside of the negotiations as a whole. 

far as what we discussed and what that -- what the plea 

agreement was. 

As 

Q. Why don't you read page 5, lines 12 through 

14. 

A. It says, ''I am signing this agreement 

voluntarily after consultation with my attorney. And I am 

not acting under duress or coercion by virtue of promises 

of leniency except for what's set forth in the agreement.'' 

Q. What does that mean to you? 

A. What I thought is the agreement, as written 

here, provided for that total minimum from what you guys 

told me. 
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Q. So in other words, what you thought was that 

signing this document was going to give you a 15 to life, 

correct? 

A. Yeah. That I wouldn't have know sentences 

coming after the 15 years. 

Q. It was you legal interpretation of that 

guilty plea agreement? 

A. As given to me by you guys. 

Q. Well, I'm not your lawyer. It was your 

interpretation that that's what you were signing? 

A. 

ask for it. 

Q. 

But you offered that information. I didn't 

I'm asking you when you signed that piece of 

paper that's what you thought you were agreeing to? 

A. 

Q. 

What? 

Your legal interpretation of what you are 

signing here is that you are getting 15 to life? 

A. That's my legal interpretation as given to 

me by you. Yes. That's what I thought that deal did. 

Q. Who was your lawyer? 

A. I was my lawyer. 

MR DIGIACOMO: I have nothing else, 

Judge. 

THE COURT: Anything further, 

Mr. Slaughter? 
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THE DEFENDANT: Just to clarify. I think 

it's clear as far as the plea agreement that it was a 

boilerplate plea agreement. I mean, at the time it states 

I consulted with my attorney and it has all these things 

in there a regular defendant it's boilerplate. It 

wasn't tailored to the specific facts of what was going 

on. 

The deal, as conveyed to me, was that I would have a 

minimum of 15. That was the deal. And that deal in that 

paperwork, that's what it would provide. Mr. DiGiacomo 

told me that. Ms. Krisko told me that. That was the 

impression that we all had. I don't think everybody would 

have had that impression unless that was said. If that's 

the contemplation, it's clear that would by conveyed 

during the negotiation. 

Other than that, that's about it. 

THE COURT: Anything further Mr. DiGiacomo 

from Mr. Slaughter? 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Not for Mr. Slaughter, no. 

THE COURT: Mr. Slaughter any further 

witnesses you wish to call? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

THE COURT: All right. Does the State 

have any rebuttal witnesses? 

MR. DIGIACOMO: No. 
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THE COURT: Argument, Mr. Slaughter, as to 

what I should do here today. 

THE DEFENDANT: I wanted to get an 

indication whether the court was inclined for us to -- I 

know it was a lot presented today, if we would 

THE COURT: I've certainly got some 

opinions. And I'll tell you both that I am giving strong 

consideration to revisiting the initial opinions that I 

had about NRS 213.1213 in the attorney general's 

interpretation of that. 

I think in fact the first time this came up on remand 

from the Supreme Court and we had the attorney general's 

opinion I said, looks like 213 mandates you have to serve 

the minimum of 22-and-a-half years, so we need to have 

this hearing to decide what to do. I have looked at that 

a lot since then and given great consideration to let 

me put it this way, one way or the other, Mr. Slaughter, 

you may be making new law in Nevada as we get this case 

decided. 

What I'm giving strong consideration to now is 

telling the attorney general you're wrong. And I think to 

the extent that they may be interpreting that statute in 

that was, it might be unconstitutional to read into a 

sentence something that wasn't intended or even announced 

by the court -- i.e., that a weapon enhancement has to run 
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consecutive to a another offence when the court has said 

they have to run concurrent. 
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So, that's part of what I'll have you all address in 

terms of arguments today, as to whether or not I need to 

revisit that and make a distinction on that. In addition 

to the other questions that the Supreme Court had kind of 

remanded this to be answered. One of which was, was 

Mr. Slaughter told that, and, if so, by whom. That he 

would or could receive a total minimum of 15 years. 

Then there were the issues of 213.1213. All right. 

THE DEFENDANT: So we present an argument? 

THE COURT: Sure. 

THE DEFENDANT: I guess it wouldn't be 

possible that we can get a transcript of this and then 

recap it, like that, would it? 

THE COURT: No. I mean we've had a 

hearing here today. So it's time to argue about what the 

evidence has borne out for us. 

THE DEFENDANT: I was just asking. 

I think considering everything today, especially in 

consideration that I think when Ms. Krisko testified that 

it was the contemplation in the negotiation for the 

minimum 15. I think for everybody to have that impression 

I think it would be impossible to say that that wouldn't 

be conveyed during the negotiation process. I think that 

App.0503
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just kind of defies logic. And me being there, I know 

that I was told that this was 15 years minimum. 
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Also concerning that -- on that note, I'm going to 

get to 2 and 3. I know you want us to address that. But 

on the form, I think that's pretty clear I was informed. 

And as far as Mr. DiGiacomo's testimony when he said he 

didn't have independent recollection from what he's read 

in the transcripts, that's understandable. We're three 

years later. 

So I think it is more accurate to look at that prior 

transcript from just two years ago where he didn't object 

to any of these things. He didn't dispute any of these 

things. And your Honor recognized that. You said in that 

transcript that there was no dispute to that. 

Mr. DiGiacomo didn't stand up and say, your Honor, 

the State's position is adverse to that. You said that on 

page 7, after I said and I quote -- ''I think this 

indicates the intention of the negotiations that supports 

my allegation that I was told that the deal would give me 

an opportunity to be released in 15 years." And you 

stated in response, ''I absolutely agree with you.'' There 

is no dispute as to that. 

And Mr. DiGiacomo was there. He represented that at 

the plea negotiations as well. And I think that's more 

accurate to consider in that entire hearing in it's full 
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context where he never disputed any of that, then three 

years later now when he said he doesn't have anything 

independent from what he's read from the transcript and 

the plea agreement. 
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On that I think my investigator James Conklin's 

impression of the total minimum, I think that's obviously 

something borne out of negotiations. He stated he makes 

notations right after the hearing. And he said it was his 

impression that the overall minimum was 15 minimum, 

nothing after that. I think that comes from the 

negotiation process. It's not, you know -- everybody 

wouldn't have come out with this understanding if it 

wasn't spoken or wasn't conveyed. 

So I think definitely the facts bear out. And I 

think the pleadings as well. There is concessions in a 

lot of these pleadings and oppositions. I know Ms. Krisko 

disputed one opposition, whether she wrote it or not, even 

though her name was at the bottom. But even aside from 

that her recent opposition says the deal is supposed to be 

15 years and I'd be eligible for release afterwards. And 

I think that's important. That was in her latest 

opposition filed April 18, 2008. 

So I think the total -- the facts and totality of the 

circumstances, looking at everything, the entire record 

and looking at all the pleadings, looking at the 
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allegations and also considering that the testimony here 

today was three years later from the actual event, I think 

that it's fair to say that I was told that. I don't think 

that's really a big dispute aside from Mr. DiGiacomo's 

testimony. 

Now, as far as the constitutionality of NRS 213.123, 

to my knowledge from what I read and the research I've 

done, as well as the attorney general's opinions and the 

Nevada Supreme Court's decisions in the Bowlin (ph) case, 

looking at that, it appears plain. It doesn't appear 

ambiguous or anything like that. It's plain. It says 

that, you know, it only deals with the current sentences. 

And that all those concurrent sentences turn into the one 

that has the longest eligibility for parole. And the 

attorney general kind of outlines in his briefing that the 

Department of Correction's position is that -- the court 

held -- it outlines that based on Bowlin (ph) and Stevens 

and Kensey (ph) that these cases require it to be like 

that, to apply the sentences in the way we thought they 

were supposed to run, one after another. The latter 

manipulates that statute. And that's what he says in 

ground three, that the Department of Corrections is only 

supposed to read the plain language. The plain language 

says dealing with the current sentences. 

So what it does is it breaks apart the first line of 
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sentences, which is the primary offenses, and runs those 

concurrent to the 15 to life. Then separates the 

concurrent weapon enhancement and turns those to a second 

sentence. 

I think looking at that statue and considering the 

case law -- I've read a lot of it on that issue -- I think 

that it's -- you know, I guess that's the way it's 

supposed to run when you read it all. 

I would also want to note though as the attorney 

general outlined in their opinion they say that there's no 

authority for the proposition that a defendant can be 

sentenced to -- to have a sentence for the purpose of 

parole eligibility, a minimum of 15. 

I think that even though it was inadvertent between 

the district attorneys, I think an additional note that 

deal might have been illegal in the first place to 

contemplate something like that in an aggregate where it 

would end up 15 at a minimum. 

So that's my position. I believe the facts show that 

I was informed. As far as the Supreme Court's remand 

order, in answer to that, I was informed that I would 

serve a total minimum of 15. I think that I did state at 

the plea negotiations all those things that happened in 

the canvass. All those things that happened, I absolutely 

stated it. It's in the transcript. 
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But I think also the Supreme Court outlined to us, 

they say at page 3, right here. They say, appellant 

promises plea is voluntary, based on promises that his own 

sentence would permit release in 15 years. The record on 

appeal revealed that appellate was informed about the 

potential sentences he faced in the plea agreement and 

plea canvass, and that he acknowledged that this court was 

not bound by the plea negotiations. However, it appeared 

that appellant pleaded guilty based on an understanding it 

offered him an opportunity to be released in 15 years. 

And that would be the opportunity for that parole -- that 

parole. 

It's not saying that I will get paroled, but the 

opportunity. And this deal doesn't give that. I think 

that my position is that will be borne out by the facts 

today, and as a whole. 

THE COURT: Let me ask you this. If the 

negotiation wasn't a stipulated and conditional sentence, 

and therefore I could have run everything consecutive, 

then how could you have an absolute expectation that you 

would only serve 15 years before eligibility for parole? 

THE DEFENDANT: Not an absolute 

expectation. But with the sentences running concurrent, 

as stated in my plea, they told me effectively that's a 15 

to life, or 15 to 40. That's was up to you how we got on 

App.0508



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

• • 103 

the bottom end, like Mr. Wommer said. But the minimum was 

15, if they run concurrent. 

If they run consecutive and all that really wasn't a 

consideration that they were running consecutive when we 

negotiated. 

But obviously I absolutely agree with that idea that 

that wouldn't be possible with the consecutive sentences. 

Of course, it could be more than that. I believe that I 

was told that it could and would be that, if he goes all 

concurrent. 

THE COURT: All right. Mr. DiGiacomo. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Thank you, Judge. 

It turned out to be a more complex case than you 

think it would be. But the initial problem --

THE COURT: I agree with that. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: -- that Mr. Slaughter has 

is in order to really succeed on this motion to withdraw 

his guilty plea, there has to have been some promise that 

was inappropriate for him to rely upon. That's just 

simply not the fact. 

The fact of the matter is he was provided a guilty 

plea agreement. This court, myself, Ms. Krisko, everyone 

of us thought he has a parole eligibility at 15 years. 

The fact is that his lawyer made a mistake and apparently 

didn't know the law, so it's his lawyer's problem. Oh, 
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withdraw of his guilty plea. 

We have offered Mr. Slaughter to fix this problem. 
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He doesn't want to fix it. What he really wants is a new 

trial. But I would suggest to the court there is a number 

of solutions to the issue here. None of which result in 

Mr. Slaughter getting a new trial or getting any trial. 

The first one is that the interpretation -- the 

twisted interpretation by the Department of Corrections 

through the AG's office of that statute. That statute 

was, I don't believe, ever meant to deny institutional 

parole from one sentence to another sentence when it's 

running concurrent to a life sentence. What would 

possibly be the reason for that being the purpose of that 

statute. 

That statute is to prevent someone being released 

from the street before their sentence for the largest 

sentence that they received has expired, which means he 

shouldn't get out of jail before 15 years. It doesn't 

mean that after his minimum sentence on his attempt murder 

has run he shouldn't receive some sort of institutional 

parole to his deadly weapon enhancement. And the 

interpretation that the AG's office gives to that statute 

doesn't make a whole heck of lot of sense. 

So I would submit to the court you can solve this 
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problem that way. In which you just find that that 

interpretation just doesn't make sense. Of course that 

would have far ranging consequences to the timekeeper, I 

imagine, at the prison. This is the first time this has 

ever come up in my career in the thousands of cases I've 

done. Nobody else has ever heard of this problem coming 

up. It may just be 

THE COURT: It might alleviate some of 

the over-crowding issues in the prisons. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: Wouldn't it ever. 

I mean, apparently Mr. Slaughter got some sort of 

information from the guys who are in jail, because they 

apparently know the time keeping method of the prison. 

Where as those of us that were negotiating the case in 

good faith, made no misrepresentation, had no idea the 

prison was going to make it an interpretation that it's 

22-and-a-half years for his parole. 

There is another solution which is to enforce the 

specific performance of the plea agreement. And the way 

to do that, I would submit to the court, is he gets to 

withdraw his plea to the deadly weapons enhancement, then 

he'd have 15 years on the bottom end. You enter that 

order. We enter a judgment of conviction that don't have 

the deadly weapon enhancement sentence and those get 

dismissed. That would be a resolution of the problem 
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where he gets his parole hearing at 15 years. It's a 15 

to life. And he gets the benefit of his bargain. 

Ultimately, the last thing you do is deny it. 

Because ultimately it rests on Rickie Slaughter to know 

what his lawyer should have known, which is how that was 

computated. There was no promise from Ms. Krisko and, the 

AG's office or the Department of Corrections, were going 

to computate this time in some manner other than what's 

contained in the guilty plea agreement. 

You had the ability to give him a lot amount of time 

on the bottom. It was -- he indicated that there was no 

other promises made, although he now claims there were 

other promises made. He indicates to the court in the 

transcript that he knew sentencing was completely up to 

you. Now he's claiming that's not true. 

He indicated on the guilty plea agreement that he 

knew that we wouldn't oppose certain things. Now he's 

claiming we stipulated, whereas, you know there was a 

conversation prior to sentencing. 

The simple fact of the matter is that while there may 

be some error that occurred, the error goes to the lawyer 

of Rickie Slaughter not anybody else in the courtroom. 

And we can't be held liable for that error, Judge. I'm 

submitting to the court you can solve it in a number of 

ways. But I'll submit it to the discretion of the 
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court. 

THE DEFENDANT: I have a small rebuttal. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: Just a few issues. 

Just to start I think Mr. DiGiacomo somewhat 

mischaracterizes my position. I never said that -- I'm 

not saying that they intentionally misled me. But they 

gave me erroneous information that I relied on. I didn't 

ask for that information. They offered it. They didn't 

have a duty to advise me that. But when they offered 

that, I think that that has to be accurate, according to 

the law. 

I think regardless of the tenure of counsel, the 

status, whether it's self-representation mode, or whether 

it's an attorney, I think that regardless of that the law 

never permits counsel to be misled with erroneous 

information whether it's inadvertent or not inadvertent. 

The case law speaks on that. 

I also want to point out concerning that 

self-representation is there is no law that says once he's 

in self-representation mode, not it's okay for him to be 

induced with something that might have been wrong 

information, whether it's inadvertent or not 

inadvertent. 

The good faith or bad faith is irrelevant. The 
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Supreme Court has precedent that says the prosecution 

offers erroneous information that that undermines the 

plea. Like I say, there's nothing that says in law 

period. I've looked. 
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The State, they advanced the ground in their 

opposition. And there's no case that they are relying on. 

They relied on Supreme Court rule guidelines and 

procedures for advising the defendant when he elects 

self-representation. And never says -- there's nothing 

that says you can give him erroneous information now. 

It's okay because he's in self-representation mode. 

All I'm saying is that the abstract concept 

concerning voluntariness, yeah, the plea was made on a 

plea basis. But it can't be voluntary if I relied upon 

erroneous information. There's no way. Because I'm 

considering something that's not even possible in the 

first place. 

And other than that, I guess, alternatively what 

Mr. DiGiacomo is requesting as far as his remedies, yeah, 

those are possible remedies. I don't know that the rule 

and the statute is unconstitutional. I don't know. I'm 

not a judge or justice or anything. But I don't know if 

that -- it would be probably different than precedent 

states now. But as far as modification, I think that that 

is also a remedy that's stricken out by the law that says 
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that modifying the sentence to meet the parole eligibility 

to meet that minimum number of 15 is not appropriate. But 

if your Honor is inclined to do that, I have to respect 

that. 

THE COURT: Well, a couple things. 

You can sit down, Mr. Slaughter. 

To begin with, the focus here, at least in the 

court's mind, has to be on what was taking place back when 

the plea was entered, not what was said the next day to 

your father, for instance, or not what was put in the 

pleadings later on or things like that. It's what was 

said back at the time the plea was entered, in and around 

that date of April 4, 2005, and the communications you had 

with your attorney and your investigator and with the 

State's attorney. So that's kind of what I have focused 

on. 

I will also state as an aside, this case is very 

illustrative of the dangers and pitfalls of 

self-representation. Because the State is right. They 

have said this several times it's not their obligation to 

provide you with legal advise. And I don't think that 

they gave you erroneous advise. They made you an offer. 

And they expressed that here's the offer, a minimum 15 on 

Count (3), kidnapping with substantial bodily harm. You 

can argue for 40. We can argue for life. Everything else 
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runs concurrent. 

And thereafter, what we are going to talk about in a 

moment, is intent, impression, spirit things like that. 

Those are all fine and dandy, but beyond making the offer, 

I don't think there is anything erroneous about what they 

told you. 

Oftentimes, in my experience within the criminal 

justice system, when you're represented by an attorney and 

you set about trying to resolve a case, oftentimes you 

make a certain offer and the attorney will respond the 

defense attorney -- saying, look, because of this, he 

won't make his first parole. I know he won't. So can we 

readjust the offer a little bit to give him a little less 

on the bottom end because we know he's going to serve more 

before he makes parole. That's part and parcel of the 

negotiation process because criminal defense attorneys 

will engage in that with the State's attorney. 

But when you engage in self-representation, you're 

held to the same standard as an attorney. It's not the 

State's job to try and sit down with you and try to 

explain computations and gatekeeper's duties at the Nevada 

Department of Prison, parole and pardon issues and things 

like. They just make an offer, which is pretty much what 

they did here. 

Now, in terms of what was remanded back to us from 
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the Supreme Court, let me just first say that one of the 

issues the Supreme Court raised was that we may want to 

appoint -- or I may want to appoint an attorney to 

represent Mr. Slaughter, because this was a complex 

matter. I agree it's kind of complex. But I will also 

state for the record that Mr. Slaughter declined 

representation when we first brought this matter back. 

I have to tell you, Mr. Slaughter, much like I told 

Mr. Allen earlier today, you've acquitted yourself very 

well in this. You have done a hell of a lot better than 

most self-representation defendants would in terms of 

appreciating the law and being able to articulate things 

to the court. And there are issues here that I think are 

issues of fairness. There are issues of what I think the 

law requires. There are issues, as I said a little 

earlier, of whether we're going to make new law here today 

in some fashion or not. Every so often something plops 

down in front of you that even though the trial court is 

designed to interpret and apply the law, sometimes that 

interpretation creates new policies and procedures and 

protocols for how things should be done. I've got a 

feeling that's what we'll end up with here. 

Out of an abundance of fairness to you, I think that 

what you bargained for was a minimum 15 years before you 

would be eligible for release from prison, assuming you 
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made parole. That's what I thought would happen. That's 

what you thought would happen. I think that's what 

Mr. DiGiacomo and Ms. Krisko thought would happen. I 

think that's what Mr. Wommer thought would happen. 

But there is a difference between what the intent of 

everybody is and what the spirit is and what the 

impressions are of everybody involved and the actual 

language that was used for you. And I point out that 

distinction because it's not unlike a case that you cited 

in one of your briefs, which was the Clark case. 

remember the citation off the top of my head. 

THE DEFENDANT: Clark v. State. 

I can't 

THE COURT: Clark v. State, 90 Nevada 144. 

The gentleman pleads to a certain crime. The judge 

sentences him in a certain way, because the judge 

believes, based on what he had seen from the Department of 

Prisons that if the guy maintained good behavior in prison 

he would make his first parole board, so he gave him a 

certain sentence. And the guy believed that as well, 

entering into the plea and taking the sentence. Turns out 

he didn't make his first parole hearing. 

He filed a writ of mandamus. Went back in front of 

the district court judge. The district court judge said, 

well, gee, absolutely I thought you were going to make 

your first parole board. And since the prisons is looking 
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at this differently, I'm going to go back and modify your 

sentence to 1 year and 3 months versus 1 to 4 years 

whatever it was -- so you can get out earlier. 

The court said, no, judge. That's bad. You can't 

invade the executive power of the parole board. Your 

expectations for what may happen in that sentence doesn't 

change what took place at the plea and the sentencing. 

Nobody gave bad information to the defendant, because 

they believed he would get out earlier on parole. That's 

the risk that's inherent in pleading guilty and subjecting 

yourself to the parole process. That's kind of what we 

have here. Even though I think it would be fair to you to 

have that sentence, I'm looking which is one of the 

questions the Supreme Court asked me the answer as to 

whether you were told, informed, by whom, that you would 

or could receive a total minimum sentence of only 15 

years. 

Everybody told you here's the deal we're offering 

you. Here's the sentence for kidnapping with substantial 

bodily harm, minimum 15. You argue 40. We argue life. 

And for all the other sentences we're going to agree to 

concurrent sentences. But nobody said to you, and you're 

only going to get 15 years and then you're going to be 

eligible for release to the streets. Or you're going to 

be released in 15 years. This is the absolute total you 
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can serve before you're released. Those are all things 

that as far as I'm hearing today and reviewing everything 

that you believed, and that everybody else believed, but 

wasn't certainly promised or expressly stated to you in 

any fashion. I think that's an important distinction of 

what the Supreme Court is asking me to answer. That's one 

of the reasons I asked you the question earlier that I 

did. 

This wasn't a conditional plea. It wasn't a 

stipulated sentence type of plea. I could have run things 

consecutive at the time of sentencing. I chose to run it 

concurrently, because the State was not opposing it to 

run concurrently. So you could not have entered your 

plea -- that's again the focus, what were you thinking 

when the plea was entered. You could not have entered 

your plea with a subjective belief that you were only 

going to have to serve 15 years, and that was absolute, if 

there was a possibility that I could have run your 

sentences consecutively and you'd have to serve 30, 40 

years or more before you could have been released to the 

streets. 

So even though the reason why the prison is saying 

you have to serve more than 15, isn't because of what I 

did in sentencing. It's still -- the focus has to be on 

what was your expectation when you entered the plea. And 
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you didn't have an expectation. You couldn't have had an 

expectation, if I could have run everything consecutively. 

Go ahead. 

THE DEFENDANT: Can I say one thing? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

THE DEFENDANT: I did have an expectation 

as far as, if the sentences ran concurrent. 

THE COURT: If they were run concurrent, 

but there was no guarantee on that. Nobody promised you 

concurrent. In fact, in the plea when I asked you about 

it, it was in the plea agreement, you understand that 

sentencing is completely up to the court. And I have the 

discretion to decide how to sentence you -- concurrent, 

consecutive, what the years are, all that stuff. So if I 

have the ability to do that, you could sit here and say I 

had the expectation that I'd only served 15 years. I was 

guaranteed that was the deal. When the reality was I 

could have sentenced you to way more than 15 on the low 

end, if I chose to run any of those sentences consecutive. 

So that kind of belies the position you're taking. But 

more importantly, as I said, I don't think there was any 

guarantee to you expressly or otherwise that you would 

serve 15 years and be eligible for release. Because 

that's the total minimum you would have to serve, even 

though it was the intent of the parties for that to take 
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place. 

As I said, that's kind of an important distinction, 

because Mr. Wommer, Mr. DiGiacomo. Ms. Krisko, and 

yourself, Mr. Conklin and everybody's testimony, and I 

think I asked Mr. Wommer specifically that, was there 

language ever used that the total minimum you're going to 

serve is 15 years, or that you're going the be released in 

15 years or anything like that. And there wasn't. 

THE DEFENDANT: My testimony was there 

was. 

THE COURT: Your testimony was -- but even 

in your testimony, which I think was for the most part 

pretty sincere that it was your impression that you were 

going to serve a minimum of 15 years. And that everybody 

was telling you 15 years is the minimum sentence. 

THE DEFENDANT: Right. 

THE COURT: Telling you that 15 years is 

the minimum sentence for the kidnapping with substantial 

bodily harm, and everything runs concurrent, so 15 years 

minimum sentence is different than being guaranteed, or a 

distinction is made because that's not a guarantee that 

you're going to serve 15 years. Especially when the 

availability of consecutive time is there for the court. 

So while I think that's an important distinction to 

make, I don't necessarily think that's fair to you. I 
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just think that under the law and in answer to the 

question the Supreme Court asked me to answer, I think 

that if I had to look at it like that, looking at what you 

knew at the time you entered the plea, not what took place 

at sentencing or any other time, then you had, at best, a 

subjective belief and impression that 15 was going to be 

the minimum amount of time before you could be released. 

But that certainly wasn't guaranteed to you. And it 

wasn't any erroneous information. And because you were 

representing yourself, you're expected to know or research 

or do whatever you need to do to know how these sentences 

were going to be looked at by the Department of Prisons. 

And therefore, whether or not you should accept the deal. 

So if I look at it solely on that issue, I think I have to 

deny the motion to withdraw plea, in terms of the question 

that was posed by the district court. Because there's no 

other issues raised to me to indicate that this was not a 

knowing and voluntary pled case. 

Now the other questions that Supreme Court remanded 

this back to answer, and I made a comment about them when 

we were in court previously, which I believe was back in 

April -- no back in November of 2007 -- when we initially 

said that we're going to need to set this down and decide 

how to deal with the sentencing issue. 

The comments I was making was about 213.1213. I 
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agree, Mr. DiGiacomo, that there's a variety of things you 

can do to make this fair to Mr. Slaughter. I don't know 

if I could strike the deadly weapon enhancements and 

therefore create for him what he bargained for. I agree 

that striking them would create for him the minimum 15, 

without the problem of the prison doing what they're 

doing. And I agree that doing that would not technically 

appear to be a violation of Clark, because I'm not doing 

anything to a sentence. I am striking weapon 

enhancements, which are kind of whole sentences. 

modifying a sentence, so to speak. 

I'm not 

On the other hand, I guess a colorful argument could 

be made that I am doing something which modifies the 

sentence because I'm striking out part of the sentence. 

But more importantly, I think, is taking a look again at 

213.1213 and the attorney general's opinion on that and 

trying to decipher what that statute stands for, what it 

means, what it says, what it doesn't say, what is a 

realistic interpretation of it, what's the intent behind 

it and so forth. And in doing so, even though I said back 

in November that that statute looks like it mandates that 

this sentence has to be served in a certain way, so 

Mr. Slaughter has to serve 22-and-a-half years, so here we 

are, what are we going to do. After having looked at it a 

little further, and in light of how this is probably 
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negotiations in cases, I think it's more appropriate to 

enter some findings in regard to that statute at this 

point in time. 
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As an initial matter, I will say I agree with the 

State, that I think the legislative intent behind that 

statute is simply to say if you're sentenced to prison on 

one count for 5 years and on another count for 20 years, 

and they're running concurrent, you're not to be released 

from prison in 5 years when you make parole on the first 

sentence or expire. It's the second. The longer sentence 

which governs when you should be eligible for parole 

release. That to me is absolutely what the main and 

primary intent of that statute is. Ad that's basically 

what it says. A longer sentence controls when sentences 

are ordered to run concurrently. 

I will additionally state that there is nothing in 

that statute which makes exception for weapon enhancements 

or any other kind of enhancement that's added on to a 

sentence. It just talks about sentences running 

concurrently or consecutively. So to the extent it 

doesn't speak to any enhancements or otherwise carving out 

an exception to have them run in a different fashion, I 

have to infer that there is not the intent for those 

things to be treated and run in a different fashion. And 
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things in a moment. 
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Additionally, if -- well, I should say that what 

appears is going on is that the Department of Prisons is 

saying -- or the AG is saying on behalf of the Department 

of Prisons that because Bowen established this way of 

looking at parole wherein a primary offence and the 

enhancement would be treated as two separate offenses for 

all purposes. Because of that, they are now saying that 

when you have things running concurrent the deadly weapon 

enhancement of a primary offence has to run consecutive to 

the longest sentence of all those concurrent sentences. 

That's the reason they're saying what they're saying 

here. Because the weapon enhancement for attempt murder, 

the weapon enhancement for robbery with a deadly weapon, 

the weapon enhancement for the general kidnapping charge, 

even though they can all run concurrent to each other 

somehow they have to run consecutive to the kidnapping 

with substantial bodily harm 15 year sentence, because 

you're not eligible for parole until released on that 

sentence. That to me runs very much afoul of the order of 

the court in sentencing somebody. 

When Mr. Slaughter was sentenced, I did not say 

attempt murder runs concurrent to substantial bodily harm, 

kidnapping, but the dead weapon enhancement doesn't. I 
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didn't say robbery runs concurrent to the kidnapping with 

substantial bodily harm count, but the deadly weapon 

enhancement doesn't. I didn't say kidnapping runs 

concurrent to the kidnapping with substantial bodily harm 

count, but the weapon enhancement doesn't. 

I announced that attempt murder with deadly weapon 

runs concurrent to the kidnapping with substantial bodily 

harm. Robbery with a deadly weapon runs concurrent. 

Kidnapping with a deadly weapon runs concurrent. 

Even if you want to say the attempt murder or the 

primary and the enhancement are two separate sentences, 

they can -- they're one count for purposes of sentencing. 

And I clearly stated that that count runs concurrent to 

the kidnapping with substantial bodily harm count. And 

therefore, every part of that count runs concurrent, in my 

mind. And to interpret a statute to do otherwise, would 

be to basically ignore the sentencing of the court and 

create by the prisons, create their own sentencing 

structure, which to me is not the legislative intent of 

that statute and vitiates the orders that were given down 

by the courts as to how things are going to run and 

contrary to the negotiations that are being entered into 

between people. 

I said earlier unconstitutional. Maybe it's not 

unconstitutional. I don't think the statute in and of 
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itself is really unconstitutional. That was a bad word 

choice on my part. But I think the interpretation of it 

is clearly against what I perceive to be the intent of 

statute and the way it should be applied, in terms of 

concurrent consecutive sentences. 

So my remedy for this whole thing is to answer the 

question from the Supreme Court which was determine 

whether it was legally possible to achieve a total minimum 

sentence of 15 years under NRS 213.1213. Yes. I think 

it's legally possible to do that. 

Second question, determine whether 213.1213 precludes 

the Nevada Department of Corrections from paroling a 

appellant on sentences for the primary offences with the 

deadly weapon enhancement when it paroles appellant on the 

controlling sentence. I do not think it precludes them 

from doing that. I think that's one count. And that 

whole count has the run concurrent to another count, which 

means the primary offence and the weapon enhancement runs 

concurrent to that other count. 

I think it is improper for the prisons to be somehow 

interpreting the weapon enhancement to have to run 

consecutive to another count. And that was not the clear 

order of the court. 

So my remedy, Mr. Slaughter, is to tell you that my 

order is directing the prisons that their interpretation 
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of 213 is incorrect. And that they can parole you off the 

primary and weapon enhancements for your other 3 counts at 

the time that you're up for parole on your kidnapping 

count. 

THE DEFENDANT: Just for clarification. 

THE COURT: I know I rambled a little. 

that clear to everyone? 

THE DEFENDANT: I want to make a note. 

Is 

THE COURT: What that leaves us with is if 

the Department of Prisons wants to maintain their 

interpretation of that, then they're going to have to 

appeal my decision up the Nevada Supreme Court as to how 

the statute needs to be applied to your case. 

And to be honest, I welcome that. It's a gray area. 

I don't think anybody has ever raised this issue before. 

And some oversight and review by seven people who have 

more experience than I do is certainly welcomed. And I'll 

obviously take whatever direction they give me in the 

future as to how to handle this issue. As I think will 

the prosecution and defense attorneys to kind of 

understand how this issue is to be dealt with. 

THE DEFENDANT: May I ask, could we have 

a transcript of this proceedings. 

THE COURT: Sure. I will have the 

transcript provided at State expense to Mr. Slaughter of 
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today's hearing. 

THE DEFENDANT: Is it possible to get the 

June 3rd, hearing too. It was brief. 

THE COURT: What was the June 3rd, 

hearing. What's the purpose for that. 

THE DEFENDANT: We had some discussions at 

that hearing. There was some statements made. 

MS. KRISKO: There was some argument then 

you determined 

THE DEFENDANT: 

if that's possible too. 

I would like to have that, 

THE COURT: Okay. Well, here's the 

reality. My decision today controls everything. Like I 

said, I'm somewhat -- I don't know if reversing myself is 

a good use -- or is good terminology. But I'm revisiting 

what I decided last November. I can't remember everything 

we discussed on June 3rd, generally speaking. But I'll go 

ahead and have a transcript of that provided as well. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: In your order, you 

answered the questions in the affirmative. I guess my 

question is a procedural one for the prison. Does it 

matter to under the statue whether or not they 

institutionally parole from the primary to the deadly 

weapon enhancement or if they do the double parole at the 

time of 15 years? 
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THE COURT: Well, I think if they're 

continuing -- if they're considering those two things to 

be separate, they necessarily have to parole him off the 

primary and let him serve the secondary. You just don't 

get released after you get paroled on the primary. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: They have to give him his 

hearing at his minimum. 

THE COURT: So the reality is that -- if I 

recall correctly. I'm trying to see if I was right in 

what I was thinking about. 

The reality is -- this was another thing that I meant 

to say earlier in terms of your expectation of 15 years. 

Because this was a point that I remember thinking about 

and I had in my notes. 

Under the way you were sentenced, the maximum on the 

attempt murder with a deadly weapon, the maximum on 

robbery with a deadly weapon, those all exceeded 15 years 

anyway. So even if you didn't come up for eligibility and 

parole earlier you could have served more than 15 on those 

maximums. 

But, yes. He has to be eligible for parole 

institutionally on the primary before going on to the 

secondary. Because he could serve more than 15 years on 

those. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: So as long as they give 
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under the stature and the rule. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

126 

THE DEFENDANT: What was the -- you 

answered whether it was legally possible to achieve the 

total minimum sentence of 15 years, you answered that in 

the affirmative. 

THE COURT: I said I believe under 

213.1213, that, yes, it's legally possible to receive a 

total minimum sentence of 15 years. 

THE DEFENDANT: And the next one. 

THE COURT: And that 213.123 does not 

preclude the Department from paroling you for the primary 

offense and the deadly weapon enhancements when it 

paroles the question posed was does 213.123 preclude 

the Nevada Department of Corrections from paroling 

appellant on the sentences for the primary offenses with 

the deadly weapon enhancement when it paroles appellant on 

the controlling sentence. The answer to that is, no. I 

don't think it precludes them from doing that. 

THE DEFENDANT: Question. If, in the 

event -- I don't understand. They say that they rule that 

the statute is correct in its application the way the AG 

is applying it, out of fairness, obviously I'm not getting 

the benefit of what I pled for. 
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you. You're basically asking what happens now? 
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THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. 

their other alternative remedy. 

I mean, as far as 

THE COURT: I can't give you legal advise. 

You can appeal my decision. The State can appeal my 

decision. The prison can say we're not going to follow 

your order. In which case you could appeal them. Or they 

could say, we're going to follow his order in your case, 

but we're going to appeal him because we think he's wrong. 

Any of those things. 

THE DEFENDANT: I was trying to get an 

indication from the court concerning -- just that I wasn't 

getting the benefit of it of the plea bargain, the 

spirit of the negotiations. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: The court just ruled that 

you have to have a parole hearing. 

THE COURT: Let me reexplain this to you. 

I ruled that -- the second part of what I ruled was they 

should be interpreting under that statue that you should 

be eligible for parole in 15 years. That's the cut and 

dried portion of that. 

Now the second part of what I ruled, however -­

because this is important if the Supreme Court disagrees 

with me on that. 
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The second part of what I ruled is that I still think 

your plea was knowing and valid. So even if they disagree 

with that interpretation and the Department of Prisons is 

able to proceed on with their interpretation, I'm stilling 

ruling that your plea was valid because I did not find 

that anybody guaranteed you or informed you you would or 

could receive a total minimum of 15 years. I think that's 

contrary to the plea negotiations and the testimony I 

heard. 

I don't necessarily think it would be fair to you to 

have to serve more than 15 years before you were eligible 

for release from prison, but I think under what I have 

heard and in reviewing the case, that's my ruling. 

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. One brief record 

before we go. Just concerned about the testimony I wanted 

to elicit from you also. I didn't mention that the 

sentencing transcript you stated in there effectively, Mr. 

Slaughter, you have a life sentence with the minimum of 15 

years, which is what I believe you bargained for. And 

just -- I believe that there were things that I needed to 

elicit to support -- you know, I bargained for this 15. 

That's what I was told the deal was. 

I just wanted to make that record. As far as the 

transcript and the order. 

THE COURT: The transcript -- I'll ask the 
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State to prepare an order on the transcripts. 

THE DEFENDANT: That's June 3rd and -­

THE COURT: June 3rd and today's date as 

well. 

MR. DIGIACOMO: If you wish, I'll draft an 

order so we get the transcript for disposing of it. 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 

* * * * * 
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the time of the proceedings. 
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6 

7 

• 
NOED 

RICKIE SLAUGHTER, 

vs. 

• 
DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

Petitioner, 

zagg AUG 12 A 9: Sb 

U ----
; • J , , -,~ 

- --~:,i,,_ ,t;..-c~~ 
CL ' .... • - •.. ...::,\1,., ..... ,-•-=r-o"R ,J '••~ V U 

Case NQ: C204957 
Dept NQ: III 

8 THESTATEOFNEVADA, 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Respondent, NOTICE OF ENTRY OF 
DECISION AND ORDER 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on August 11, 2008, the court entered a decision or order in this matter, 

true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice. 

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal, yo 

must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the date this notice i 

mailed to you. This notice was mailed on August 12, 2008. 

By: __ ----jj~::.._---'-..:....:::-+------­
Brandi J. 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I hereby certify that on this 12 day of August 2008. I placed a copy of this Notice of Entry of Decision and 

Order in: 

The bin(s) located in the Office of the District Court Clerk of: 
Clark County District Attorney's Office 
Attorney General's Office-Appellate Division 

0 The United States mail addressed as follows: 
Rickie Slaughter# 85902 
P.O. Box 1989 
Ely, NV 89301 

-1 -

App.0565



~----~------------------------------ ----

" i 

I 

2 
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6 
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9. 

10 I 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

-
ORDR 
DAVID ROGER 
Clark County District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #002781 
MARC P. DI GIACOMO 
Deputy District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #006955 
200 Lewis Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212 
(702) 671-2500 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

-

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY,::_NEVADA 

THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

Plaintiff, 

-vs-

RICKIE SLAUGHTER, 
#1896569 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) __ _ 

CASE NO: 

DEPT NO: 

Defendant. )) 
11---------------

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF 
LAW AND ORDER 

DATE OF HEARING: 6/18/08 
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 A.M. 

C204957 

III 

18 THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable Douglas Herndon, 

19 District Judge, on the 18th day of June, 2008, the Petitioner being present, in proper person, 

20 the Respondent being represented by DA YID ROGER, District Attorney, by and through 

21 MARC P. DI GIACOMO, Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having considered the 

22 matter, including briefs, transcripts, arguments of counsel, the evidentiary hearing and 

23 documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and 

24 .conclusions of law: 

25 FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

26 I. That on June 27, 2007. the Nevada Supreme Court remanded Petitioner's appeal from 

27 the denial of his post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus ordering this Court to 

28 hold an evidentiary hearing to determine three questions. 

P:\wPDOCS\fof\outlying\4N0\4N098002.doc 
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1 2. As to the first question, the Court finds that no one specifically told Petitioner that his 

2 plea agreement would make him eligible for parole after fifteen ( 15) years, or that he 
.. 

3 would be paroled after fifteen ( 15) years, other than the language contained in the guilty 

4 plea agreement. This includes the representatives of the State, Mr. DiGiacomo and Ms. 

5 Krisko, his stand-by counsel, Mr. Wommer, and his investigator, Mr. Conklin. 

6 3. To the extent that no promises, other than that contained in the guilty plea agreement 

7 were made to Petitioner, the court finds the plea knowing and voluntary. Petitioner's 

8 only issue is whether he can withdraw his plea because he was not aware of the Attorney 

9 General's interpretation of NRS 213.1213. However, as Petitioner represented himself in 

10 proper person, that lack of understanding cannot be grounds for relief. 

:1 I 4. As to whether NRS 213.1213 would allow for a minimum sentence of fifteen (15) years 

12 under the plea agreement, the Court answers that question in the affirmative. The clear 

13 intent of the statute is to prevent a prisoner who has two concurrent sentences to be 

'14 paroled from prison on the earlier of the two parole dates. The statute is silent as to 

15 institutional parole from an underlying sentence to a weapons enhancement. To interpret 

I 6 the statute as the Attorney General has interpreted it, would allow the department to carry 

17 out sentences which were not the intent of the sentencing judge. When this Court 

18 sentenced Petitioner, the Court intended the sentence for Attempt Murder With Use of a 

19 Deadly Weapon (and the other counts) to run concurrent with the sentence for First 

20 Degree Kidnapping With Substantial Bodily Harm. The interpretation suggested by the 

21 Attorney General would have the deadly weapon enhancement run consecutive to the 

22 Kidnapping count which was not the intention of the Court. 

23 5. Finally, this Court finds that the Nevada Department of Prisons is not precluded from 

24 paroling Petitioner for the primary offence with the deadly weapon enhancement when it 

25 paroles petitioner on the controlling sentence of First Degree Kidnapping Resulting In 

26 Substantial Bodily Harm. 

27 Ill 

28 Ill 

2 P :\ w P DOCS\ fo t\outl yi ng\4 N 0\4 N09 8002. doc 
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1 ORDER 

2 THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Nevada Department of 

3 Corrections is directed to interpret NRS 213. 1213 as it relates to Petitioner in conformance 

4 with this order. 

5 DATED this -/ day of August, 2008. 

6 

7 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

DAVID ROGER 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
Nevada Bar #002781 

MARC p_,or GIAEOMO 
Chief Deputy District Attorney 
Nevada Bar #006955 

3 

DOUGLASW.HERNDON 

DISTRICT JUDGE 
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SUPREME COURT 

OF 

NEVADA 

(0)1947A..., 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

RICKIE LAMONT SLAUGHTER, JR., 
Appellant, 

vs. 
THE STATE OF NEVADA, 
Respondent. 

No. 52385 

FILED 
MAR 27 2009 

rulfltljE K. Lh'4DEMAN 

a,,Jj~~~ 

ORDER OF REVERSAL AND REMAND 

This is a proper person appeal from an order of the district 

court denying a post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus. 

Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County; Douglas W. Herndon, Judge. 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

On August 31, 2005, the district court convicted appellant, 

pursuant to a guilty plea, of attempted murder with the use of a deadly 

weapon (count 1), robbery with the use of a deadly weapon (count 2), first­

degree kidnapping with substantial bodily harm (count 3), and first-degree 

kidnapping with the use of a deadly weapon (count 4). The district court 

sentenced appellant to serve in the Nevada State Prison: (1) for count 1, 

two consecutive terms of 90 to 240 months; (2) for count 2, two consecutive 

terms of 72 to 180 months; (3) for count 3, life with the possibility of parole 

after 15 years; and (4) for count 4, two consecutive terms of life with the 

possibility of parole after 5 years. The district court imposed the terms 

between counts to run concurrently. No direct appeal was taken. 

On August 7, 2006, appellant filed a proper person post­

conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus in the district court. Among 

other things, appellant claimed that his guilty plea was not voluntarily 

entered because he was promised and led to believe that he would be 
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eligible for parole/release to the streets after serving a m1n1mum of 15 

years. The State opposed the petition. On January 29, 2007, the district 

court denied the petition. This court affirmed the denial of several of the 

claims raised in the petition, but reversed the denial of appellant's claim 

regarding the voluntariness of his plea and remanded the matter for an 

evidentiary hearing and directed that the Attorney General file a response 

to the underlying sentence structure/parole eligibility claim. Slaughter, 

Jr., v. State, Docket No. 48742 (Order Affirming in Part, Vacating in Part 

and Remanding, July 24, 2007). 

Upon remand, the district court appointed post-conviction 

counsel to assist appellant, however, appellant later elected to proceed in 

proper person. The Attorney General filed a response regarding the 

underlying sentence structure/parole eligibility claim. Appellant filed a 

brief in the district court seeking to withdraw his guilty plea. The State 

opposed withdrawal of the guilty plea, but stated that in the spirit of the 

plea negotiations, the deadly weapon enhancements should be removed. 

Appellant filed a reply. After conducting an evidentiary hearing, the 

district court denied appellant's claim that his guilty plea was 

involuntarily entered, but ordered the Department of Corrections to parole 

appellant from sentences for the deadly weapon enhancements for counts 

1, 2, and 4 at the same time as the sentences for the primary offenses for 

counts 1, 2, and 4 and the sentence imposed in count 3. This appeal 

followed. 

FACTS AND DISCUSSION 

In his petition, appellant claimed that his guilty plea was 

involuntary because he was not correctly informed about the minimum 

sentence he would be required to serve before parole eligibility to the 

streets. Confusion regarding the minimum sentence largely relates to the 

2 
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structuring of appellant's sentences for parole purposes. Based upon our 

review of the record on appeal, we conclude that the district court erred in 

determining that the Department erred in structuring the sentences and 

erred in determining that the guilty plea was voluntarily entered. We 

further conclude that the only remedy available is for appellant to have an 

opportunity to withdraw the guilty plea. 

A guilty plea is presumptively valid, and a petitioner carries 

the burden of establishing that the plea was not entered knowingly and 

intelligently. Bryant v. State, 102 Nev. 268, 272, 721 P.2d 364, 368 (1986); 

see also Hubbard v. State, 110 Nev. 671, 675, 877 P.2d 519, 521 (1994). 

Further, this court will not reverse a district court's determination 

concerning the validity of a plea absent a clear abuse of discretion. 

Hubbard, 110 Nev. at 675, 877 P.2d at 521. In determining the validity of 

a guilty plea, this court looks to the totality of the circumstances. State v. 

Freese, 116 Nev. 1097, 1105, 13 P.3d 442, 448 (2000); Bryant, 102 Nev. at 

271, 721 P.2d at 367. 

Appellant claimed that . his guilty plea was involuntary 

because he was promised and led to believe that he would be eligible for 

parole/release to the streets after serving 15 years. Pursuant to plea 

negotiations, notably in which appellant represented himself, appellant 

agreed to enter a guilty plea to the four counts set forth above, the parties: 

(1) agreed to argue for a minimum sentence of 15 years on count 3; (2) the 

defendant retained the right to argue for a maximum term of 40 years on 

count 3 while the State retained the right to argue for a maximum 

sentence of life imprisonment on count 3; and (3) the State agreed to 

concurrent time between counts. While acknowledging that he was not 

promised release on parole, appellant claimed that he was led to believe 

that the plea agreement was represented as providing a minimum term of 
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15 years collectively before being eligible for consideration for 

parole/release to the streets. 

At the evidentiary hearing, appellant's standby counsel 

testified that he understood the plea negotiations to include an absolute 

minimum sentence of 15 years no matter how the other sentences were 

imposed. Susan Krisko, one of the State's attorneys at the time of the 

plea, testified that she believed the spirit of the negotiations contemplated 

appellant's being eligible for parole after 15 years, although she never 

discussed NRS 213.1213 or promised appellant that he would be released 

after 15 years. Marc DiGiacomo, another of the State's attorneys at the 

time of the plea, testified that they never discussed the sentence structure 

or provided legal advice regarding the sentence structure and disagreed 

that the spirit of the negotiations required a minimum term of 15 years 

before parole eligibility. Mr. DiGiacomo testified, however, that he 

believed the sentences for the counts 1, 2, and 4 ran concurrently with the 

15-to-life sentence for count 3. At the conclusion of the evidentiary 

hearing, the district court determined that the plea was voluntarily 

entered-appellant bargained for 15 years before eligibility for 

parole/release to the streets but there was no promise only a subjective 

belief that he would be eligible for release after 15 years. However, the 

district court concluded that the Department incorrectly determined that 

the deadly weapon enhancements did not begin until after appellant was 

paroled on the 15 to life term for count 3 and directed the Department to 

consider appellant for parole from the deadly weapon enhancements at the 

same time as he was considered for parole on the sentences for the 

primary offenses. The district court reasoned that because the counts 

were imposed to run concurrently every portion of the count, the primary 

4 
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offense sentences and deadly weapon enhancement sentences, should run 

concurrently with count 3. 

Sentence Structure 

We conclude that the district court erred in determining that 

the Department incorrectly structured the sentences for purposes of parole 

eligibility. NRS 213.1213 provides that for purposes of determining parole 

eligibility between concurrent sentences, "eligibility for parole from any of 

the concurrent sentences must be based on the sentence which requires 

the longest period before the prisoner is eligible for parole." In the instant 

case, this means that the sentence for count 3, life with the possibility of 

parole after 15 years, is the controlling sentence for purposes of parole 

eligibility because it represents the longest term for parole eligibility. 

However, at the time appellant committed his offense, NRS 193.165 

provided for an equal and consecutive enhancement sentence when a 

defendant used a deadly weapon during the commission of his primary 

offense. 1995 Nev. Stat., ch. 455, § 1, at 1431. Thus, until appellant is 

paroled from the sentences for the primary offenses for counts 1, 2, and 4, 

appellant is not eligible for parole on the deadly weapon enhancements. 

In examining the effect of NRS 193.165, this court has held that the 

deadly weapon enhancement is to be treated as a separate sentence from 

the primary sentence for all purposes, including parole eligibility. Nevada 

Dep't Prisons v. Bowen, 103 Nev. 477, 481, 745 P.2d 697, 699 (1987). This 

court has further recognized that there is no authority to aggregate a 

sentence for the purpose of parole eligibility. State v. Kimsey, 109 Nev. 

519, 521, 853 P.2d 109, 111 (1993). Thus, the district court erred in 

determining that the Department was required to treat in the aggregate 

the sentences of the primary offenses and the deadly weapon 

enhancements for purposes of parole eligibility on counts 1, 2, and 4; 

5 

App.0573



SUPREME COURT 

OF 

NEVADA 

(0)1947A.., 

rather, the sentence structure as imposed requires appellant to serve the 

term of 15 years to life imprisonment for count 3 and a consecutive term 

for the controlling deadly weapon enhancement in the second level of the 

sentence structure. 

Voluntariness of the Plea 

Based upon our review of the record on appeal, we further 

conclude that the district court erred in determining that the guilty plea 

was voluntarily entered. In order to enter a voluntary and knowing guilty 

plea, the district court must be satisfied that the defendant has an 

understanding of the consequences of the guilty plea. State v. Freese, 116 

Nev. 1097, 1105, 13 P.3d 442, 448 (2000). The record on appeal 

establishes that appellant was informed of the nature of the charges and 

the range of punishments for each offense. Appellant was further 

informed that the district court's imposition of concurrent or consecutive 

time between counts was a matter within the district court's discretion. 

However, pervading the plea negotiations, was a misapprehension 

regarding the minimum term for parole eligibility to the streets when 

examining the global effect of the plea negotiations. The testimony from 

appellant's standby counsel, the testimony from one of the State's 

attorneys, and the district court's own statements at sentencing and 

during the post-conviction hearings, indicates that the parties and the 

district court mistakenly understood that the plea negotiations provided, 

globally, for a minimum term of 15 years to be served before appellant was 

eligible for parole to the streets. 1 Although the district court does not 

1As discussed above, this understanding was mistaken pursuant to 
NRS 213.1213 and NRS 193.165. 
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have a duty to inform a defendant of the parole consequences of a guilty 

plea, because those consequences are considered to be collateral 

consequences, see Palmer v. State, 118 Nev. 823, 830, 59 P.3d 1192, 1196 

(2002), if appellant is informed that the plea negotiations contemplate a 

m1n1mum sentence for parole eligibility that information should be 

accurate.2 See Sierra v. State, 100 Nev. 614, 616, 691 P.2d 431, 433 (1984) 

(recognizing that a plea may be involuntary where the defendant was 

misinformed about the mandatory minimum punishment because if the 

defendant had been correctly informed of the full range of punishments, 

including the minimum term which was higher than represented, the 

defendant may not have been willing to enter the plea); Rouse v. State, 91 

Nev. 677, 679, 541 P.2d 643, 644 (1975) (recognizing that a plea may be 

invalid where a defendant's belief as to a potential sentence, or hope of 

leniency, is supported by a promise from the State or indication by the 

court); see also Mathis v. Warden, 86 Nev. 439, 443, 471 P.2d 233, 236 

(1970) (suggesting that the district court's misrepresentation regarding 

the parole consequences may warrant withdrawal of the plea). Reviewing 

the entire record on appeal, the "spirit" of the plea negotiations 

contemplated a term of 15 years to be served before appellant was eligible 

for parole to the streets. In the instant case, because of a 

misunderstanding of the effect of the deadly weapon enhancements on the 

2This court is not suggesting that the State had a duty to provide 
legal advice to appellant, who as we noted earlier represented himself, but 
merely that the State provide accurate information regarding the plea 
negotiations. In the instant case, the record reveals that the plea 
negotiations concerned the minimum parole eligible term, and thus, this 
information was required to be accurate for a voluntary and knowing plea 
in the instant case. 
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minimum term to be served for parole eligibility to the streets, the terms 

of the negotiations were not fairly and accurately set forth. Thus, under 

the unique facts in this case, appellant demonstrated that his plea was 

involuntarily entered. 

Remedy 

In the proceedings below, the State indicated its willingness to 

have the deadly weapon enhancements stricken from the judgment of 

conviction in order to effectuate the parties' intentions regarding the 

guilty plea. Generally, the district court lacks jurisdiction to suspend or 

modify a defendant's sentence after the defendant begins to serve it. NRS 

176A.400(3); Passanisi v. State, 108 Nev. 318, 322, 831 P.2d 1371, 1373 

(1992). An exception to this rule applies when the court has made a 

mistake in rendering a judgment that worked to the extreme detriment of 

the defendant; however, this exception only applies if the error concerned 

the defendant's criminal record. Id. at 322-23, 831 P.2d at 1373-74; see 

also Edwards v. State, 112 Nev. 704, 707, 918 P.2d 321, 324 (1996). This 

court has specifically recognized that the district court's misapprehension 

regarding the legal consequences of a sentence does not permit the district 

court to modify the sentence after the defendant has begun to serve the 

sentence. State v. Kimsey, 109 Nev. 519, 522, 853 P.2d 109, 111 (1993). 

Consequently, because appellant's guilty plea was not voluntarily entered, 

as discussed above, appellant must be permitted an opportunity to 

withdraw his guilty plea in the instant case. Therefore, we reverse the 

denial of this claim. 

Conclusion 

Having reviewed the record on appeal and for the reasons set 

forth above, we conclude that oral argument and briefing are unwarranted 
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in this matter. See Luckett v. Warden, 91 Nev. 681, 682, 541 P.2d 910, 

911 (1975). Accordingly, we 

ORDER the judgment of the district court REVERSED AND 

REMAND this matter to the district court for proceedings consistent with 

this order. 3 

~ Dougla~~ 

Pickering 

cc: Hon. Douglas W. Herndon, District Judge 
Rickie Lamont Slaughter Jr. 
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto/Carson City 
Clark County District Attorney David J. Roger 
Eighth District Court Clerk 

J. 

J. 

J. 

3W e have considered all proper person documents filed or received in 
this matter. We conclude that appellant is only entitled to the relief 
described herein. This order constitutes our final disposition of this 
appeal. Any subsequent appeal shall be docketed as a new matter. 
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1 This Motion is made and based upon the Memorandum of Points and Authorities 
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THE ST A TE OF NEV ADA, Plaintiff: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing MOTION TO 

ISMISS CASE FOR FAILURE TO PRESERVE EXCULPATORY PHOTO LINEUP 
4 

DENTIFICA ~10_t:: f;'~DENCE on for hearing before the above-entitled Court on the _/_Q__ day 

: f~b~~w::i~our of-----!!/- a.m./p.m., or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard 

n this matter. 
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STATEMENT OF FACTS 

On June 26, 2004, victims Ivan Young ("Young"), Ryan John ("John"), Jennaun Means 

3 "Means"), Jose Posada ("Posada"), Jennifer Dennis, and Arron Denis, were bound and robbed by 

4 

5 

6 

wo (2) perpetrators, while at Yong's residence located at 2612 Glory View, North Las Vegas, NV. 

uring the robbery, Young was reportedly shot. John reported being robbed of a Wei l's Fargo A TM 

7 
ard, and Means reported being robbed of over $1,300.00 in cash and a silver wireless phone. 

8 The victims and witness descriptions of the perpetrators varied in large part. Young described 

9 he robbers and being two (2) black males "one was bald and was wearing shorts and a blue shirt. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

he second had dreadlocks and a Jamaican accent." (Exhibit I, 6/29/04 NL VPD Police Report by 

fficer Anthony Bailey, at pg. 2). John described only one of the robbers and said he was "unsure 

ow many" perpetrator's were present during the crimes. (Exhibit 2, 6/29/04 NL VPD Police Report 

y Officer Mark Hoyt, at pg. I 0). John was only able to describe the perpetrator as a black male. 

Means described the robbers as two (2) black males and recalled one of the perpetrators 

earing a beige suit jacket and that the other had dread locks. Posada described the robbers and two 

2) black males. Posada stated that one had "braids" and the other had a dark afro. Additionally, 

osada described one of the perpetrators as wearing a "tuxedo shirt". 

Jennifer Dennis only described the perpetrators as being two black males and stated that both 

ere 5' 10" and one wore a red shirt and blue jeans and the other wore a blue shirt and jean shorts. 

aron Dennis was only able to provide vague description of the robbers as being two (2) black 

ales, one of whom wore a black jacket. (See Exhibit 2, NL VPD Police Report by Officer Mark 

oyt). 

Crime Scene Investigators ("C.S.l.") for the NLVPD reported no forensic evidence present 

27 t the crime scene from which the perpetrators could be identified. 

28 
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1 Based upon information from a confidential informant ("C.I."), Detective Jesse Prieto 

2 "Prieto") of the North Las Vegas Police Department constructed a set of photographic lineups on 

3 une 28, 2004. This lineup contained the image of Petitioner, Rickie Slaughter, along with the 

4 
mages of five (5) other individuals. (Exhibit 3, I st set of photo lineups). On this same date, 

5 

6 

7 

8 

elective Prieto administered this photo lineup to Young. Mr. Young selected Mr. Slaughter as a 

otential suspect to the June 26, 2004 robbery. 

With this information, Detective Prieto obtained and executed a search warrant authorizing 

9 he search of both a residence where Mr. Slaughter was believed to stay, and a vehicle owned by 

10 

11 

iffany Johnson ("Johnson"), who was believed to be Mr. Slaughter's girlfriend at the time. The 

earch of the residence and the vehicle revealed no relevant evidence to the instant offense. However, 
12 

wo (2) firearms were located in the trunk of Ms. Johnson's vehicle, but these guns were determined 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

y the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department's ("LVMPD") forensic laboratory not to be the 

eapons used to shoot Mr. Young. 

On June 29, 2004, Mr. Slaughter was arrested and booked. a booking photo of Mr. Slaughter 

as taken at the NLVPD Detention Center (Exhibit 4, NLVPD Booking photo of Rickie Slaughter 

ated 6/29/04). That same day, the previously constructed photographic lineup arrays (see Exhibit 

, 1st set of photo line up) of Mr. Slaughter were shown to victims Means and John. Both Means and 

ohn selected Mr. Slaughter as a possible suspect. Means noted "the face just stands out", and John 

ote, "this is the guy that I think". On July 1, 2004, Detective Prieto again administered the same 

holographic array to Posada. Posada selected Mr. Slaughter's photo from the array (Exhibit 3,1 st 

et of photo lineup). No other victims or witnesses selected Mr. Slaughter as an alleged suspect. 

elective Prieto preserved these identifications by having the witnesses sign and indicate the date 

nd time that they viewed the photographic arrays. Due to Young's medical condition, Detective 

rieto preserved Young's selection identified by Prieto's signature and a notation. 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

• • 
On an unknown date, another group of photographic lineup arrays was made by an unknown 

tate official (Exhibit 5, 2nd set of photo lineups). This new group of photo lineup arrays contained 

r. Slaughter's June 29, 2004 NL VPD "mug shot" and a photograph ofaformer suspect in this case, 

aquan Richard ("Richard") in lineup positions 4 & I, 3 & 5, 3 & 4, 4 & 2, and 4 & 3 ( See Exhibits 

a, Sb, Sc, 5d and 5e). 

According to Detective Prieto's police reports this new group of photos containing Mr. 

laughter's and Mr. Richard's photographs was shown to all of the victims on an unknown date and 

y an unknown state official. (Exhibit 6, NL VPD report 12/10/04). However, no identifications or 

elections of Mr. Slaughter are noted as being made from the new set of photographic lineups. None 

fthe State officials who administered this new group of photos to the victims preserved the names, 

ignatures, dates, or times when these photographs were viewed. (Exhibit 5, 2nd set of photographs). 

On September 21, 2004, the preliminary hearing took place in the instant case. Justice of the 

eace Natalie Tyrrell found that sufficient evidence existed to hold Mr. Slaughter over for trial. At 

16 he preliminary hearing, the State's case focused entirely on the identifications of Mr. Slaughter as 

17 
he alleged perpetrator. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

"Eyewitness misidentification is the single greatest cause of wrongful convictions 

ationwide, playing a role in more than 75% of convictions overturned through DNA testing."' This 

22 s a case where identification of Mr. Slaughter is based exclusively upon eyewitness testimony. The 

23 

24 

25 

tale's failure to properly preserve establishing proof (i.e. officer's names, viewing witnesses names, 

ignatures, etc.) of the State's eyewitness viewings of the second group of photographic arrays from 

26 "---------~ 

27 1 Innocence Project (http://www.innocenceproject.org/understand/Eyewitness-Misidentification.php) 

28 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

• • 
hich Mr. Slaughter was not selected as a suspect by any of the State's eyewitnesses violates his due 

rocess and prevents Mr. Slaughter from confronting and cross-examining these eyewitnesses at trial 

ith this exculpatory and material evidence. 

oss Or Destruction of Evidence- Bad Faith Present 

Due process requires that the prosecution disclose exculpatory evidence within its possession. 

defendant's right to due process only, however, if that evidence possessed "exculpatory value that 

as apparent before the evidence was destroyed, and [is] of such a nature that the defendant would 

e unable to obtain comparable evidence by other reasonably available means." California v. 

rombett 467 U.S. 479 489 (I 984). 

A defendant must also demonstrate that the police acted in bad faith in failing to preserve 

otentially useful evidence. Arizona v. Youngblood, 488 U.S. 51, 58, l 09 S. Ct. 333, l 02 L. Ed. 2d 

81 1988; see also Guam v. Muna 999 F.2d 397,400 (9th Cir. 1993). 

The presence or absence of bad faith turns on the government's knowledge of the apparent 

xculpatory value of the evidence at the time it was lost or destroyed. Youngblood, 488 U.S. at 56-

7; see also United States v. Cooper, 983 F.2d 928, 931 (9th Cir. 1993), Sheriff, Clark County v. 

arner, l 12 Nev. 1234 (Nev. 1996), State v. Hall, 105 Nev. 7 (Nev. 1989), and Howard v. State, 

5 Nev. 580 (Nev. l 979). 

In United States v. Cooper, (relying on California v. Trombetta and Arizona v. Youngblood) 

he court began, 

"[b ]ecause of the government's bad faith actions, the laboratory equipment seized 
from Apotheosis Research lies broken and buried in a toxic waste dump. This 
equipment cannot be introduced at trial. It can neither support nor undermine Wayne 
Cooper and Vincent Gammill's repeated assertion that their lab lacked the physical 
capability to manufacture methamphetamine." 
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1 nited States v. Coo er, 983 F.2d 928, 929 (9'h Cir. 1993). Bad faith was based on information 

2 epeatedly provided to the government that the equipment was not capable of manufacturing 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

ethamphetamines. Id. The government argued that defendants had "other means to establish the 

hysical capabilities of the destroyed lab equipment." Id. at 932. They argued defendants could 

uestion experts familiar with the properties oflab equipment and they could question the designer 

fthe 125-gallon reaction vessel. Id. Ultimately, the court disagreed stating, "[g]eneral testimony 

bout the possible nature of the destroyed equipment would be an inadequate substitute for testimony 

9 nformed by its examination." Id. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

In this case, Mr. Slaughter can demonstrate bad faith. Consistent with Youngblood, bad faith 

s present in this case based on the apparent exculpatory value of witnesses interviewed by the police 

ho failed to identify Mr. Slaughter as a suspect. It cannot be argued that this apparent exculpatory 

alue was not known to the government at the time it was lost or destroyed. Here, like Cooper, 

eneral testimony about the possible nature of the destroyed [evidence] in Mr. Slaughter's case 

ould be an inadequate substitute for testimony informed by its examination, the examination of 

otes regarding officers who conducted the photo lineup in question, and names of witnesses who 

id not identify Mr. Slaughter as a suspect. More importantly, general testimony is not an option in 

r. Slaughter's case because unlike the defendants in Cooper, Mr. Slaughter was never aware of the 

nformation to begin with; That is, Mr. Slaughter does not know the names of the officers who 

onducted the exculpatory photo lineup identifications in question, and he does not know the names 

f the witnesses who did not identify him as a suspect. Therefore, apart from any desire, Mr. 

laughter, unlike defendants in Cooper, does not have the option of questioning experts in order to 

emonstrate the exculpatory value of witnesses who did not identify him as a suspect, particularly 

27 n a case hinging entirely upon eye witness identification testimony. In short, Mr. Slaughter is 

28 holly precluded from meaningful cross-examination on the exculpatory identification results. 
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In conclusion, consistent with the reasoning in Youngblood, Mr. Slaughter's due process was 

iolated by the bad faith failure to preserve apparently exculpatory evidence. The appropriate remedy 

3 s dismissal. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

oss Or Destruction of Evidence- Bad Fait/, Absent 

In the alternative, if this Court does not find bad faith present, Mr. Slaughter's motion to 

ismiss should still be granted. Where there is no bad faith, the defendant has the burden of showing 

rejudice. Buchanan v. State, I 19 Nev. 201, 220 (Nev. 2003). The defendant must show that "'it 

ould be reasonably anticipated that the evidence sought would be exculpatory and material to [the] 

efense."' Id., see also Cook v. State, 114 Nev. 120, 125 (Nev. 1998). Further, the "materiality and 

otentially exculpatory character of lost or destroyed evidence must be determined on an ad hoc 

asis on the facts of each particular case". Deere v. State, I 00 Nev. 565, 566-67 (Nev. 1984). 

In Cook, defendant was charged with three counts of sexual assault for the alleged rape of 

is former domestic partner. Cook, 114 Nev. 120. At the conclusion of his fourth trial, a jury found 

ook guilty of one count of sexual assault. Cook, 114 Nev. 120. Following the investigation, the 

olice subsequently lost the photos, reports, and sweater. Cook, 114 Nev. at 124-25. 

Cook alleged that lost photographs of blood on the carpet would have proven that he did not 

iolently attack the victim and drag her several feet across the carpeted floor; that the lost photos of 

he bruise on his arm deprived him of the opportunity to rebut or impeach the victim's testimony that 

22 he bruise on his arm was caused by her act of slamming a door on his arm during her purported 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

scape attempt; that his lost initial statement to police, given by Cook before he was aware of any 

fthe victim's specific allegations, could have been used to corroborate Cook's trial testimony; the 

ictim's lost initial statement to the police: Cook argues that the victim's initial statement may have 

een inconsistent with portions of her trial testimony as evidenced by the fact that her initial 

tatement led police to charge Cook with only one count of fellatio, and not two; and Cook argues 
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1 hat the sweater was both material and exculpatory evidence because it would have supported his 

2 estimony because no blood was on it and it would have demonstrated she was not wearing the 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

weater when she says she was, when her nose got bloody. Cook, 114 Nev. 124-25. 

The court ruled that Cook has made the requisite showing of prejudice by demonstrating that 

he lost items of evidentiary value could have been reasonably anticipated to be both material and 

xculpatory. Cook, 114 Nev. at 126. Due to the State's negligent loss of evidence, Cook's ability to 

efend himself was severely undermined. Cook, 114 Nev. at 126. Accordingly, the State's failure to 

reserve such evidence violated Cook's right of due process and mandates reversal of his conviction 

d sentence. Cook, 114 Nev. at 126. 

In footnote number 6, the Cook Court noted, "[w]e do not suggest the Sparks Police 

epartment had a duty to collect evidence. Rather, we base our holding that Cook's defense was 

nduly prejudiced solely on the evidence that was gathered and then subsequently lost by the Sparks 

olice Department." Cook, 114 Nev. at 126. The court then concluded that Cook has established 

rejudice by showing that the lost items of evidentiary value could have been reasonably anticipated 

o be both exculpatory and material. Cook, 114 Nev. at 127. 

In Buchanan defendant was convicted of three counts of first-degree murder in the deaths of 

er three infant sons. Buchanan, 119 Nev. at 202. On Appeal, defendant claimed that she was 

21 'irretrievably crippled and a fair trial became impossible" because the State discarded, consumed or 

22 ailed to gather various tissues of the three infants, thus, impermissibly shifting the burden of proof 

23 
o the defense. Buchanan, 119 Nev. at 219. In denying her appeal, the court noted that here was no 

24 

25 
vidence of bad faith on the part of law enforcement. Buchanan, I 19 Nev. at 220. The murder 

nvestigation did not start until the third death, so any exculpatory value from any tissue from the 
26 

27 1rst two victims would not have been apparent to law enforcement. Buchanan, 119 Nev. at 220. 

28 
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5 

6 

7 

• • 
!so, medical experts testified that because of the small size of infants, frequently the tissues are 

onsumed in the testing. Buchanan, 119 Nev. at 220. 

In Deere, the defendant appealed his conviction for first degree kidnapping, battery and 

exual assault upon a Las Vegas prostitute. Id. The primary issue on appeal was the denial of 

efendant's pretrial motion to dismiss based on the "state's allegedly negligent failure to impound 

nd preserve material and potentially exculpatory evidence, namely the blouse and undergarment of 

8 he victim." Id. The appeal was denied because defendant was unable to "demonstrate that it was 

9 easonably likely that the lost evidence would have exculpated him; he thus cannot make the 

1 O equisite showing of prejudice." Id. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

In this case, the facts of Mr. Slaughter's case are analogous to those in Cook; That is, the lost 

vidence was both exculpatory and material. Like Cook, the exculpatory photo lineup evidence in 

r. Slaughter's case was collected by investigators. Next, like the evidence in Cook, the photo 

15 ineup evidence is apparently exculpatory (witnesses to the second photo lineup did not identify Mr. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

laughter), and material because Mr. Slaughter's case turns exclusively on identity as no other 

vidence ties Mr. Slaughter to the crime. More importantly, the first photo lineup was conducted 

sing an older ( out of date) photo of Mr. Slaughter, whereas the second photo lineup conducted used 

is booking photo from June 29, 2004. Thus, witnesses viewing a current (more accurate) photo of 

r. Slaughter at the second photo lineup failed to identify him as a suspect. Based on the foregoing, 

22 t is more than "reasonably anticipated that the evidence sought would be exculpatory and material 

23 
o [the] defense." In this case, one which turns exclusively on witness identification testimony, any 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

easonable person would highly anticipated that the photo lineup evidence sought would be 

xculpatory and material to the defense. 

The facts of Mr. Slaughter's case are unlike those of Buchanan and Deere. In Buchanan, the 

ourt noted the murder investigation did not start until the third death, so any exculpatory value from 

-11-
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

• • 
ny tissue from the first two victims would not have been apparent to law enforcement, where as in 

r. Slaughter's case, the evidence was I) in fact gathered; 2) during an investigation, and 3) this 

ourt can fairly infer that such evidence was reasonably anticipated to be exculpatory and material 

o the defense as analyzed above. 

Moreover, the second group of photographic lineup arrays contains Mr. Slaughter's June 29, 

004 booking photo taken only two (2) days after the crime. According to police reports, this second 

et of photographs "was shown to all of the victims" and Mr. Slaughter was not positively identified 

s a potential perpetrator by any of the State's eyewitnesses. Much to Mr. Slaughter's detriment, 

either the names, signatures, dates, or times that the eyewitnesses viewed these arrays were 

reserved on the second set of photographs. More troubling and problematic is the fact that the State 

gent or agents who administered this group of photographic lineup arrays to the eyewitnesses cannot 

e ascertained because they did not preserve their name on the lineups. Based on the foregoing, Mr. 

laughter's dismissal should be granted even if this Court does not find bad faith. The above 

emonstrates that it was more than reasonably anticipated that the lost or destroyed information 

elating to the second photo lineup would be exculpatory and material to the defense. 

As a result of the State's failure, Mr. Slaughter's defense is emasculated. Identity is the 

efense, arguably Mr. Slaughter's sole defense. The State was arguably aware of this at the time of 

he investigation, or at least, as is the standard set in Buchanan, reasonably anticipated that the 

vidence sought would be exculpatory and material to [the] defense. As such, Mr. Slaughter is left 

ithout a means to reconstruct, authenticate, or establish the eyewitness' viewings of the second 

roup of photographs. This inability to authenticate the facts and circumstances where Mr. Slaughter 

as not identified by the eyewitnesses prevents him from introducing and exploring this exculpatory 

vidence. Mr. Slaughter's defense against the instant charges is that he was mistakenly identified as 

perpetrator by the State's eyewitnesses. The fact that the State case relies heavily upon the 

-12-
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• • 
1 yewitness identifications of Mr. Slaughter----coupled with the fact that there is no physical evidence 

2 hat directly links Mr. Slaughter to the crimes for which he is accused--provides the materiality and 

3 

4 

5 

6 

otentially exculpatory nature of the second set of photographic lineup arrays. 

Finally, the state cannot be permitted to benefit from its own failure to preserve evidence 

avorable to the defendant. Sanborn v. State, 107 Nev. 399,408 (Nev. 1991). In Sanborn, defendant 

ought reversal on appeal of his conviction because the state failed properly to collect and preserve 
7 

8 he firearm which was used to inflict his wounds. Id. at 407. He asserted that the state's mishandling 

9 f the gun prejudiced him because analysis of fingerprints and blood from the gun was crucial to his 

1 O heory that he acted in self-defense. Id. Overturning his conviction on other grow1ds, the court 

11 

12 
nnounced the following presumption that would apply in a retrial by the state: "the trial court shall 

nstruct the jury that because the state failed to test the firearm that was used to inflict wounds on 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

anborn for blood and fingerprints, the weapon is irrebuttably preswned to have been held and fired 

y the victim, Papili." Id. at 408. 

In this case, State's case against Mr. Slaughter is buttressed by the absence of the second 

hotographic lineup array evidence. Therefore, the State cannot be allowed to benefit from its own 

ailure to preserve. 

I I I 

I I I 

I I I 

I I I 
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• • 
CONCLUSION 

Based upon the fact that all of the State's witnesses failed to identify Mr. Slaughter in the 

3 econd photographic lineup and the circumstances under which these potentially exculpatory 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

ailures were not preserved by the State, Mr. Slaughter respectfully urges this court to enter an order 

ismissing the instant case with prejudice. In the alternative, Mr. Slaughter prays that this Court enter 

n order prohibiting the State from using the first photographic selections of Mr. 

laughter and the in-court identifications made at Mr. Slaughter's preliminary hearing and prohibit 

9 he State from eliciting any in-court identifications of Mr. Slaughter at trial. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Respectfully Submitted: 

~n £~/'23S:.<o 
~USH 

-14-

Nevada Bar No. 8007 
BUSH & LEVY, LLC. 
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... , ............................• ~ .............. . 
CASE, 04015160 
DATE, 6/29/04 
TIME, 7, 46 

----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPAR'.:MEll'::---- REF, 246198 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - POLI CE REPORT- - - - - - - · - ·· - - - - PAGE, 1 
- - - - - - - - - -INVESTIGATIVE PORTION- - - · · ·· - · - - OF, 2 

11::1....,, .......•....•.•............... , •. , ..••.•................ 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - --- - - - -- ·· - - - - - -- - - -INCIDENT FOLLOWUP- - - - - - -- · · ·· - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - -
classification/additional information: 
AMURD 

invest bureaus/units notiEied: I.D. BUREAU 

location of occurrence: 
2612 GLORY VIEW 

! rpt dist:Al neighborhood: APT 
! ADAM l AIRPORT 

from: date / time ! :o: 
6/26/04 / 19,11 ! 

date/ time ! report: 
6/26/04 / 19,11 ! 

date/ time 
E/26/04 / 19,11 

hate crime? NO ! gans related? NO 1 fingerprints? };D 

routing? ! prosecute? ! prop report? ! vehl ~eport? . arrest rpt? 1 attach? 
DETECTIVE YES NO NO NO 

***************************•*************~***************~~********************* 
- - - - - - -- - - - - - -- -- - - - - - - - - - - · - -METHOD OF OPERATION·· -- - - - - - - - - - -- - -- - - - -- --- - --- - -

residential---type, 111 
SINGLE FAMILY 

non-residtl---type: 

target, 169 
TARGET-OTHER 

target: 

security: 

&'=:curi ty: 

entry----location, 318 DODR 
exit----location: 362 NO FORCE-UNLOCKED 

method, 312 FRONT 
method, 362 r,·o FORCE-UNLOCKED 

suspect actions: 
A. 601 MULTI SUSPECTS 8. 603 VEHICLE NEEDED C. €-06 

803 
E15 

D. 607 DISCHARGED WEAPOU E. 801 INFLICTED INJURY F. 
G. 811 TOOK HOSTAGE H. 813 COVERED VICTIM FA I. 

SUSPECT ARMED 
FORCED VIC TO FLO 
DEMANDED SPC ITEM 

* * * • * * *** * * ** ** ** * • * * * • * * * * "******DISPOSITIONS* .. •••*"'****"'**,.,.******************* 
] -UNFOUNDED/NO CRIME--0 
] -JUVENILE------------1 
]-NON DETECTIVE CLR---2 
] -DETECTIVE ARREST----3 
]-SUBMITTED CITY ATTY-4 

] -SUBMITTED D.A.------5 
) -ADMIN. CLEARED------6 
)-EXCEPTIONALLY CLR---7 
) -SCREEN CLEARED------8 
] -NO CHGS FILED(NCF)--9 

]-RECLASSIFY---------10 
] -VIC REFUSED PROS. --11 
] -PSFIDAVIT----------12 
]-CA/DA DENIAL-------13 
]-OTHER--------------11 
]-SUBMITTED US ATTNY-15 

••*************"'***********~'******************"'"'****************"'*************** 
---------------------------··---------RECORDS------------------------------------

class code---ucr sid number 
enter 

! scope 

date ser no 
cleared 

scope 

date ser no 

***************************•'******************"'*********••····~············••*** 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! detective burea·.i pr,::icessed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! office~ reporti~g 
1225 ! BAILEY/ANTHONY 

ser no 

ser :10 

1366 

App.0593



............ , ...........................• tt. .............. . 
CASE, 04015160 

.JATE, 6/29/04 
----!!ORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF, 

- - - - ·· - - - - - - - - -POLICE REPORT- - - - - - - ·· •· ·· · - - -

,. .. TIME: 7: 46 - - - - ·· - - - - - - -NARRATIVE PORTION- - - - - ·· - ·· ·· - - -

246198 
PAGE, 2 

OF, 2 

ON SATURDAY 06/26/04 A'.: ABOUT 1911 HOURS OFFICER M. HC>\'T 1334 AND SEVERAL 

OTHER OFFICERS WERE DISPATCHED TO 2612 GLORY VIEW REFERENCE A SHOOTING VICTIM. 

I RESPONDED AS WELL TC ASSIST. 
WHEN I ARRIVED, I ASSI!,TED IN SECURING WITNESSES AND ,'HE SCENE. ONCE 

EVERYTHING WAS UNDER CONTROla I WAS ASKED BY SERGEANT D. NOWl,KOWSKI TO FOLLOW 

THE SOUTHWEST AMBULANC'E THAT WAS TRANSPORTING OUR VICTIM (IDENTIFIED AS !VAN 

YOUNG) TO UNIVERSITY MEDI CA;; CENTER'S TRAUMA RESUS DEPARTMEH1 FOR TREATMENT TO 

HIS FACIAL INJURIES A!, A RESULT OF A GUN SHOT, AND REPOF:1' BhCK YOUNG'S 

CONDITION AS SOON AS POSsrn:;E. 

ONCE ARRIVED AT THE H0!3PITAL, SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE MEDIC: COSHUA KINNUNEN 

FROM UNIT 524 HANDED ME A SMALL PIECE OF METAL HE HAD RECOVERED FORM YOUNG'S 

SHIRT. IT APPEARED TO BE TH:, COPPER JACKETING TO A PROJECTILE AND HELD 

EVIDENTIARY VALUE SO 1 TOCK CUSTODY OF IT. 

AFTER GOING INSIDE AND.WAITING FOR THE DOCTORS AND NURSES TO FINISH THEIR 

TREATMENT OF YOUNG, I WAS A3LE TO QUESTION HIM ABOUT THE INCIDENT. ONE OF THE 

TRAUMA PERSONNEL HANDED ME A PLASTIC CONTAINER HOLDING A :3MJ\LL PIECE OF COPPER 

METAL THAT ALSO APPEARED TO BE THE JACKETING FROM A PROJECT:: LE, SO I TOOK 

CUSTODY OF IT. THEY TOLD ME IT WAS RECOVERED FROM HIS FACS. YOUNG WAS VERY 

COHERANT AND REMEMBERED T!-:E INCIDENT VERY WELL. HE TOLD ME ·:HAT HE WAS OUTSIDE 

IN HIS GARAGE WORKING ON P. :AR WHEN HE WAS APPROACHED BY TliO BLACK MALES 

(BM IS)) . ONE WAS BALD AND WAS WEARING SHORTS AND A BLUE s;i:,n. THE SECOND HAD 

DREADLOCKS AND SPOKE WITH A JAMAICAN ACCENT. THEY STARTED TALKING TO YOUNG. 

,.__ JOUT WORKING ON CARS. AFTER TALKING FOR A FEW MINUTES Tl!:lY BRANDISHED FIRE 

ARMS AND ORDERED YOUNG TO GJ INSIDE. ONCE INSIDE THEY PUT EVERYONE IN THE HOUSE 

DOWN ON THE FLOOR AND STAF.TED ASKING FOR MONEY FROM EVERY·J!'1':. YOUNG SAID THEY 

PLACED SOMETHING OVER HIS HEAD AND FACE SO HE COULD NOT SEE /1': ALL. DURING THIS 

TIME TWO OF YOUNG'S FRIENDS ARRIVED AND WERE PULLED INTO THE HOUSE AS WELL. 

YOUNG DID NOT KNOW WHAT HAPFENED TO THEM. YOUNG TOLD ME HE THOUGHT THE SUSPECTS 

GOT A CHECKCARD BUT tmKNOWN IF ANYTHING ELSE WAS TAKEN. YDl.TI<G THEN TOLD ME THAT 

THE BM WITH DREADLOCKS CAME OVER TO HIM AND PLACED A Gtn, T·:J HIS FACE. THE BLACK 

MALE THEN SAID "HAVE YOU EVER SEEN ONE OF THESE BEFORE?" A'-'TER SAYING THAT, THE 

BM FIRED l SHOT STRIKING HIM IN THE FACE NEAR HIS CHIN. B·:JTH BMS THEN FLED AND 

GOT INTO A VEHICLE LEAVING THE SCENE. 

'• 

YOUNG TOLD ME Tru1-T HE KNOWS FOR A FACT THE BM WITH DRE.llJ:·LOCKS AND A 

JAMAICAN ACCENT WAS THE SHOCTER, AND THAT WITHOUT A DOUBT HE WOULD BE ABLE TO 

IDENTIFY THEM BOTH. YOUNG TCLD ME HE THOUGHT HE SAW 3 GUNS 3UT COULD ONLY 

IDENTIFY TWO OF THEM. ONE WAS A .380 SEMI-AUTO AND THE OTHER WAS A SMALL BLACK 

REVOLVER. I THEN RETURNED TO THE SCENE OF THE SHOOTING WHE!lE OFFICER M. BRADY 

OF NLVPD' S CRIME SCEITT ANALYST UNIT WAS INVESTIGATING. I T'JRIJED BOTH OF THE 

PIECES OF JACKETING OVER TC HER AT THAT TIME. 

NO ATTACHMENTS. 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! detective bureau pro,::;essed 

1259 ! 

ser no l officer reportir,g 

1225 ! BAILEY/ANTHONY 

ser no 

ser no 
1366 

App.0594
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• • CASE: :)-4015:60 

DATE: 6i29/04 
- -'ll!'!rnrn LAS VEGAS ?OLICE. ~~p~~~:~i,~:::. ~~F; . o~isi1;~~. 
---------------POLICE REPORT------·-····--- PAGE, 1 

TIME: i:46 - · - - - - - - - -I~VEST!GATIVE PORTION- - - · - · - - -

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ·· - - - - - - - - - - - IKCI:JENT ORIGIN~.1- - - - - - · 
classi~ication/add~tio~al info~ma=ion: 
AMURrn,mw /BURG/ROBB/ Ftl.LSE IMPRI SCNMENT 

--------------------··-----------------------------------
i=ivest burea:..1s/un:..t:s notified: I.e. BUREAU/DET3CTI'•iE 

.. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ., - - - - - . - - - - - •. - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . 

lo=ation cf occurrence: 
2612 ::;LORY VIEW 

! r;,t dist:Al r.e-:~9Lborhocd: APT 
! JDA.'.1 l .P.I ?.P·:•RT 

OF: 12 

--------------------------------------------------------··-----------------------
fr-om: date / time ! to: 

6/26/04 I 19:1: 1 

date / ::ime ! repo:::-t: 
6/26/04 / 19:11 ! 

date / ti:ne 
5/26/04 / 20:52 

·------------------------- --------•-------------··-------·-----------------------
hate cri:ne? NC ! gang related? YES ! fi:tgE!rpr:.nts: t:O 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - ·- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -· - - - - - - - - -- . - -· - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - -
roi..:..tin3? ! p::-osecute? ! ~rop repoTt? ! vehl report? ! a1~rest rpt? ! attach? 

DETECTIVE Y3S 110 ~O NO YES 

• - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - -MET!iOD OF OPERATION- - - - - - - ·· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
residential---type: 111 

SJNGLE FAMILY 
carget: sec:·;ri ty: 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
n,:m-residt 1- - -type: ::.arget: security: 

------------------------------------------------------------- ·------------------
e:i.try----lccat.ion: 325 G-?.PJl,GE method: 
exit----locacion: 373 FCF.CED-UN:QUE MET'10D:nethod: 

-------------------------·· ------------------------------ -- . ---·------------------
s·Jspect actions: 
A. 601 MULTI SUSPSCTS B. 606 SUSPECT ARMED C. 6·: DISCHARGE::> WEAFCN 
D. 704 SELECTI"iE IN LOC1 E. 801 INFLICTED INJURY F. 8 ( ~ '.:HREAT RETALIA':IC 
G. ::.::,~ FORCE!:: ',iIC TD FLO H. 914 BOUND/GAGGED VICT I. 9:; L t:NEW VICTIMS NAME 

.. ,.. * * .. * * *,.. ** * * ...... * * * * J,. ~* * * * ""*,.. .. * * * ""DISPOSITIONS::lt **Y ****-,,* ... I I", .... ******"'**** ....... * .. 
: -UNcOUNDED/NO CRJHE- -0 
] -JUVENILE - - - ._ - - - - - - - -1 
] -NON DETECTIVE CLR- - -2 
] -DETECTIVE ARREST----:; 
] -SUBMITTED CI':'Y A'.:TY-4 

]-SU3MITl'ED D.A.------5 
: -ADMI~- CLEAREC------6 
] -EXCEPTIONALLY CLR---7 
) -SCRE~N CLEARED------8 
] -HC CEGS FILED (NCF) - - 9 

]--RE1::.z,SSIFY---------10 
] --✓::,• f.EFUSED FROS. - -11 
) -A:::;H•AVIT----------12 
] .. r::J;,'C.~. DENIAL-------13 

] - <TllEF. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - H 
] -:,'.J!l~ITT3::> US ATTKY-15 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - • - - ·· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -R3CORDS - - - - - - - - - - - - - · ·· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
class code---u~r sid :r.1mber date ser no 1 date ser no 

enter c:.eared 
scope scope 

------------------------------------------------------------ --------------------
-- - -- --- -- - ------ -- -- - - -- - - ----- ---------------- -- --------·-- ··- - --------- --- ---- -

::-ecords bureau proct:ssed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

ser no ! dete:ctive bureau i:t0::essed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

-- ---- --- -- --------- -- -- --- .. ----------- -- ---- -- -·· ---- ---- - ..... - ---- ---- ---- - -- --
superviso:::- apprc·.ri:1s 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! o:"::!:icer reporting 
1225 HCYT/MARK 

ser no 
13 34 

-- ---- ----- - ------- ---- ---- ... - -- ·-------------- ----·---- -- - - - - --- ---- ----- --- -----

App.0596



• • ... °"II ... ' .. ~--··· 
CASE, 040~5160 
DF.T3, 6/29/04 

- - - -NORTH LAS \JEGAS POL:CE DEPARTMEIJ::'· - - - REF, ORIGINAL 
--------------POLICE REPORT------·------- PAGE, 2 

TIMC:: 7:46 

narr.e of person { 0 C 1) : 
YOUNG/ rv_;;,r;; 

- - - - - - - - - • • - - PERSONS POR'::ION • - - · - · · 

! type: V 
! VIC?IM 

1 occui:ation: 
! PAINTER 

OF, 12 

! susp iC:..? 
YES 

sex! race: W hisp:Yt 
M ! HISPANIC 

dot l age ! hgt 
5,121/1973 ! 31 ! OOC 

! wgt \ hair ! eyes ! bl::l : cmp 
! 000 ! 

al~as-aka: l birthplace: 
alias-aka: ! ss~: 4673702~'1 mf no: 

ad.dr: 2612 GLORY VIEi\ N)E1'H LAS 'jEG.~S NV 8903•) 
business: 

descriptors: 
des:::riptors: 

***************••·········~·····················~·······~···~··················· r.ame of per sen ( 002) : 

l',FJ)VY /DES'::INEE 
t~-e: w 

! WITNESS 
! ccct:.pat.ior .. : 
! CEKTAL P.SS:ST 

! SUS? id? 
NO 

sex! race: B hisp:N! Co;) : age ! hgt : wgt ! :lai-::· : eyes 1• b:.d t cmp 
F ! BLACK 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

5/18/1981 : 23 ! 000 : 000 ! 

! birthplac-e:: 
! ssr..: 56473552.4 nf no: 

addr: 23:i9 BP.HA.MA ?OINT 1;QRTH LAS VEGAS NV 99031 
business: 

descripto:::-s: 
descriptc•rs: 

name of person (003.1: 
MEA.NS/ JERJ✓.AUN 

! ::ype: V 
! VICTIM 

! o=cupati.on: 

! 7022904223 

! susp id? 
NO 

sex ! race; B hisp:Hl :lob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hai::- ! eye.s : t-ld ! cmp 
M ! BLACK ! 1:·;'11/197() ! ~7 ! 000 ! oo:i ! 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

: ci:ctt:place, 
! ssn: mf no: 

aC.dr: 2309 BA.qpJ-1A POINT !\')?.TH LA.S VEGAS )r\l 89031 
busi:iess; 

descriptors: 
descri?t.ors: 

records bureau processed 
SCAR?Ff')ENISE 

super·✓isor approving 
NO\•lAKOWSKl/DENNIS 

si::::r no ! detective bureau p:::c•:·essed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! cfficer reportiLy 
122 S ! HO"IT /~LI;RK 

! 7026369620 

ser no 

ser :no 
1334 

App.0597



CASE: 04'015160 
DATE, 5/29/04 
-::IME, 7:46 

nane of person ( 004 ·l : 
JOHN/RY.;:i.JJ 

• • . . . . . ............ :~'-
- - - ·NORTE LAS VEGAS POLICE DEF~.RTMENT · - - - REF, ORIGINAL 
- - - ·----------POLICE REPORT--- -- -·· · ·· 
- - - - - - - - - - - - -PERSONS PORTION - - - - - - - - - - - - -

! type: V 
I VICTIM 

! occupatio~·.: 
! LABORER 

PAGE, 3 
OF, 12 

! susp id? 
NC 

. - -- - - - -- - ---- - - - ---- --- - - ··- - -- -- - ---- - -- --- ----·· - - ---- - -·-··· ------ - - -- ------ -----
sex 

)1 
=ace: 'iJ hisp:H! 

! WHITE 
dob l age ! hgt ! wgt ! h.;1ir ! eyes t !:1ld : crr.p 

/:985 ! 19 ! 000 ! 000 ! 

--------------------------·-----------------------------------------------------
alia.s-akQ.: 
alias-aka: 

: bir::lplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

---------------------------------- .. ---------------------------------------------
addr, 9030 EP.R,l AVE LAS ·,sGAS NV 89124 ! 7026479472 
b,:siness, VEGAS TRAFFIC U,FETY 4872 LMB'li LV NV 89109 ! 7027912008 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - •· ·- - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -· - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

GBLFRIENC :,IVES AT 2613 GLORY vrn1; 

~ame of person {OC5) 
DENNISi.i-.ARON 

! type: 'J 
! VIC':'IM 

! occut=a~i,:in: : susp id? 
KO 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - -
sex! race: W hisp:N! doC ! age ! hs:: ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! b:.d ! cmp 

M ! WEITE 2/CB/195-4 ! 10 ! 000 '. 000 ! 
-------------------------------------------------------··---··--------------------

a:.ias-aka: 
aL.as-aka: 

l birthp:.ace: 
; ssn: 

addr: 2612 GLORY VIEi'," )ICJRTH LAS VEGP,S NV 89031 

business: 

descriptc::-s: 
descripto::-s: 

~ame of perso~ (006): 
?OSADA/ JOSE 

. type: V 

' VICTIM 

! ·:>CC'.lpati,):1: 

mf no: 

! susp id? 
NO 

----------- -- ---------·----- ------- -------------- ----- --··- - .. --- ----------- - ----- -
sex ! race: W hisp:Y! ,;.,:,~ ; age ! hgt : ·..;gt ! ha.i.r ! eyes ; blC. ! cmp 

M ! HISPANIC 3/2::/1992 : 12 ! 000 JOO ! ! 

---------------------·----------------------------------- -----------------------
alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! bir::hplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

- - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - --- - - - - - - - - - - - -- -- - - - - .. - -· - - - - - -- - -- .. - - - - -- - - -
addr, UNKNOWN 
business: 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - ·- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - .. -- - - - - - ... - - - - - - .. - - - - -· - - - - - - - - -
desc=ip:ors: IVAN YOIDJG'S NEPHEW 
descriptors: 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF /DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! detective bureau p1·ocessed 
1259 ! 

ser no \ officer reporting 
1225 l HOYT/f1,),-~K 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

----------------------------·------------------------------- ··-------------------

App.0598



• • ,._ .. : ... '!JcP.I ..•. 
C.~58: 040l516C- - - - -NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE PEPARTMEJJT- - - - REF: ORIGINAL 
D.~TE: 6/29/04 

7:46 
- · · - • • - - - ·· • - - -E=OLICE REPORT- - - - - - · · - - - - - - PAGE: 4 

TIME: ··------------FERSONS PORTICN-···-····-· --- O?': 12 

name of person (007) 
HIC;{MPJ-J/...'AKE #1476 

se:x. ! race: 
M 

a~ias-a:-<.a: 
a:...ias-aka: 

addr: 

hisp: 

business: NLVPD :301 LMBI: 

desc:riptcrs: 
descriptors: 

dab 

! type: w 
! WI:'NESS 

occur;:acion: 
' POLICE O?FIC'ER 

! susp id? 
NO 

! age J 1-.gt ! wgt ! ha:: r ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! ace ! ooo ! 

! birthplace: 
! 5S11; mf no: 

! i:)26339111 

**************************''****************•***t~*******i**~******************** 
name of pe~so~ {008): 
COONjCHRISSE ~1457 

sex ! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 

hisp: 

business: NLVPD 13Cl LMBE 

desc:?:ip:.ors: 
descripcors: 

name a: person ( 0091 : 

BAILEY/l>.KTHONY #c366 

sex 
)1 

race: hisp: 

C:o:) 

dob 

! t'/'f=•e: -~ 
' IHTKESS 

! c,cc1..:.patior_: 
! PO!..!CE ::•FF:•:ER 

! st:sp id? 
NO 

\ age ! h3t \ wgt ! h:d.::- \ eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
! ssr:: 

! occupat.i::.n: 

mf r.o: 

! type: w 
' WITNESS ! POLICE OF~!CER 

! 7026339111 

! susp id? 
NO 

! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hai::- ! eyes ! bld ! cr.ip 
! ODO ! CJO ! 

alias-aka: : birtr"'.pla::e: 
alias-aka: ssn: mf no: 

addr: 
bL:.sir.ess: NLVPD 130:. LME-E 7026339111 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

---------------------------------· -----------------------------------------------
:::-ecords bureau processed 
SCl>.RFF /DENISE 

sur:;ervisor app:::-o·Ji:,.g 
NOWAKOWSK:I /DEl-Jl.JIS 

ser no J detectiv~ bureau p::::::-:·essed 
1259 ! 

.;;er no ! cffi.::er reportir.!3 
1225 ! HOYT/MAR:< 

ser no 

se::- :r..o 
1334 

App.0599



• • .. 11i .. · : .. ,: : : ........ . 
CASE: 04015160 - - - -)JORTH LAS VEGAS POLIC2 DEPARTME:1.JT - - - - REF: CRIGINAL 
DATE: 6/29/04 ·-------------POLICE REPCRT----·-···----- PAGE: 5 
TD1E, 7: 46 ------·-·-··-?ERSONS PCRTION--··-···· ·---- CF: 12 

name of person {OlC): 

PDAMSiCLINTON ~D6S 

sex ! race: hi.sp: ! deb 
M 

'. occupa t. ior:.: ! susp id? ! type: w 
! W:TNESS ! POLICE OfFICER NO 

! age ! hgt ! ;,;gt ! hair 
! oc:, : 000 ! 

eyes ! ::::ld : cmp 

al ias-a~a: l birthplace: 
a:.ias-aka: ! ssn: mf no: 

addr: 
bus:..ness: NLVPD 1301 LM3E: l 7026339111 

descr:..ptcrs: 
descripto::-s: 

········•*•*********•****'t••················••***********••··'******••~········· 
name of pe!:"son (011): 
NOW.r...K:JWSKI/DENNIS #l.225 

sex ! race: 1".isp: dob 
M 

: tyi:e: W 
l WITNESS 

\ OCC\:.p2\ticn: 
PCLI CS SE~(,EJ\NT 

! susp id? 
NO 

. age ! hgt ! wgt ! hc.i~ ! eyes ! b.ld ! cmp 
! 000 ! 000 ! 

alias-aka: t birthplace: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 
business: NLVPD 1301 L:>lBE 

descriptors: 
descriptcrs: 

na~e of person (012}: 
NO,lAKOWSKI/DclN!l"IS #1225 

sex! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 

:1.isp: 

business: NLVPC 13n LMBE 

desc:::-iptors: 
desc~ip:.ors: 

records bureau processej 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOv/AJ<OWSKI /DENNIS 

! type: W 

! \HTNC:SS 

\ asn: mf no: 

! occupatio::1: 
! ?OLICE Sl::P.G2.fa1,"'T 

! 1C26339:ll 

! susp i::J.? 
KO 

t age ! hgt ! wgt ! ha:'.r : eyes ! bid ! cmp 
! 000 , 000 ! 

l birthplace: 
! ssn: f!lf no: 

ser no ! detective bureau 1=rocessed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer reoortinc 
1225 ! HOYT/MAR;( - -

! 7026339111 

ser no 

ser no 
133:4 

App.0600



CASE: 04015160 
DATE: 
TI)lE: 

6/29/C4 
7:46 

~ame of perscn (nl3) 
.S~Y/MARION #850 

sex ! race: 
F 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

adds: 

hisp: 

• • ~--•"·. . .... 1~.r ......... . 
- - - - )!ORTH LAS VEGAS POLI CE DEPARTME!\T· - - - REF: ORIGINAL 
- - - - - - - - - ·· - - - -POLICE REPORT- - - - - - - · - - ·· - - - PAGE: 6 
--------------?EccSONS PORTION-------·- OF: 12 

dob 

type: W 
! WITNESS 

! occ·.ipat i.c,:1: 
! I . D. 7E•:H . 

! St.:.Sp id? 
NO 

: age ! hgt 1 wgt ! ha:..r ! e:~-•es ! bld ! cmp 
! :)00 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: m.: no: 

business: NLVPD 1301 L,lBE ! 7026339111 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

*****w****•*•••••••*******''***~*****************•****•••~,~~•**********~**~***** 
name of x;erson (014): 
iJALKER/SE~.N #:1523 

sex! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

aC.dr: 

hisp: clob 

! :.~rpe: w 
! WITNESS 

! occupa.t :_c,r_: 

' POLICE Cfi,' ECER 
l susp id? 

NO 

! age ! hgt \ wgt ! h.:dr 1• eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 ! coo ! 

I birtr,place' 
! ssn: mf no: 

buei:iess: NLVPP 1301 LMBE ! 7026339lll 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

•*********~****•*••······~-·····••***••**********•*******~•·T******************* 
name of person (015): 
SANJ;ERS/~OHN #~244 

sex ! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

a::l.dr: 

h:..sp: ! dob 

! type: w 
! i'il':'NESS 

! OCCU!=a::ion: 
! POLICE C-.FFlC:::R 

! susp id? 
t,C 

·, age ! hs:: ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! ooc ! 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
1 ssn: mf nc: 

business, NLVPD 1301 LMBE ! 7026339111 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF /DElHSE 

supervisor approvin3 
NOWAKOvlSJ(l /DENNIS 

ser no ! detective h..1.reau p::::ocessed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer ~eport.1 n9 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0601



• • ............. ,\..,,,,,, .. 
CASE, 04015160 
DATE, 6/29/04 

- - - -NORE! LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTl•1EHT- - - - REF I ORIGINAL 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -FO~ICE REPO«T- - - - - - - - - - - - - PAGE, 7 

TIMS: 7:46 - - - - - - - - - - - - - PERSONS PORTION - - - - - .. - -· - - - - - OF, 12 

narr.e of person (OH:) : 
NO NAME 

sex ! race: B hisp:N! 
M ! BLACK 

alias-aka: 
al:.as-aka: 

addr: 
business: 

dot: 

I type I S 
! SUSPECT 

! occupac:~ott: ! susp id? 
NO 

! age ! hg: r wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 508 ! 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
l SS:1; :nf no: 

- - - - - -- -- - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -- .. - - ·- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - •· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
descripto:c:s, SPOKE 1;n:,: ~'AMA:CAN ACCENT 
descriptors: :!AD DREAD LOCKS 

**************•**********~'*******************************~*~******************* 
r.ame of person ( 017) : 
t--·o N".;..--.1E 

sex ! race: 8 hisp:~! 
J✓; ! BLACK 

! type: S 
: SUSPECT 

! age ! hgt 
! 511 

! cccu;,ati:,n: ! SUS? id? 
NO 

: wgt ! hair 1 eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 ! 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------
alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addc, 
business: 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

descriptors: LSW Br-1TJE /1.l.'lD WHI CLOTHING 
descriptors: 

*~*******************'~*******•*****************A**********k**'****************** 
name of person (o:s'.: 
PRIETO/JESUS #674 

sex! race: 
M 

c.lias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 

hisp, 

bt.:.siness: NLV?D 1:;01 LMEE 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

records bureau i:;roc0;;:ssed 
SC~.R?F/DENISE 

supervisor approvie<::: 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

! ty-pe: W 
' WITNESS 

! o::cupati.-:m: 
! DETECT:·1,'E 

! susp id? 
NO 

! c.ge ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 ! OC<) ! 

! birtf.place: 
! ssn: mf no: 

ser no ! de::ect.ive bu::-eat: processed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer ::eportir_g 
1225 ! HCYTiM.?..RK 

! '7026B9ll: 

se::: no 

ser r.o 
1334. 

App.0602



CASE: 0-.015160 
DATE: 6/29/04 
TIME: 7:46 

r.ame of pe:::-sO:1. (019): 
M;:LGAREJO/EDWING #!137 

• • . ,_. . . . . .. .. .. . .. . ''IISO' ........ 
-- --NORTH :.AS VEGAS PCLIC~ DEPART."1F.:IJ1'•---- REF: 
--------------POLICE REPORT------
-------------PERSONS PCRTJON------ ---·---

! type: i-J 

WIT?i."ESS 
! occt:.pation: 
1 DETECT!'/~ 

ORIGINAL 
PAGE: 8 

Of: 12 

susp id? 
KO 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - .. - - - - -- - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - -
sex! race: ~.isp: ! 

M 

dob ! age ! hgt '. wgt ! rw.iJ· ! eyes ! bld 1 cmp 
! 000 I 000 ! 

-·- - -------- ---- - ----- - ---- ·-------------- ----- - ------ -- --- . ---- ------- - ---- ---- -
alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! bi~t.hplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

- - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
adds: 
business; NLVPD 1301 L:013E ! 7026339111 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

recc-rC.s bu~eau i::roce·ssed 
SCARF? /DENISE 

supervisor approvin<2· 
NOWAKC-KSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! de:ecti ve bureau pl:ocessed 
l259 t 

ser no ! o'.:ficer reporting 
1225 : HCYT/MARK 

ser no 

ser no 
1.334 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

App.0603



• ·•··············· · • -''t.,,' · , • . , · · · · , • · "J1t:11f, • · · 
CASE, 04C·l5160 · ··--NORTH L::>.S VEGAS POLIC:l DEPAR':'>iE:,T REF, 0'1.IGINA.L 

DA':'E: 6/'2.9iO.::. - ·· - - - - - - - · - - - -POLICE REPORT- - - - - - - ·· - · · - · - ?AGE, 9 

TIME: 7:~6 -· -----------K'Ah.AATIVE PCRTI0:-1--------- --- OF: 12 

cm SATURDAY, 06-26-(4 _;T 191: HCURS, OFFICERS V.'E:\E DlS!? . .:,T(HED ro 2612 
GLORY VIEW IN R3FERE?JCE TO A. SH-JO'i'ING VICTL"j INS1CE TES RCSI!1ENCE. OFF:CER 
HICKW,N WAS THE FIRS, O?F'l :::?. TJ ARRIVE WITc\ ::JFFICER Coo:, ;,R:; IVING SHORTLY 
,\?T3R OFFICER HICY .. '-1AN. WEES I ARF'.IVED, I WALKED INTC THE E'R"..:K'!' coo~. THE FRONT 
COOR OPENS TO A LARGE LIVISG :l.O•)M W:':'H A DINH!3 AREA TO T:-!E LEFT OF THE FRONT 
COOR .l',._'ID THE KITCEE:-1 :JN THC: OT;tC:F. SIDE OF THE DINING e.RE;\. TEERE 1-:P.S A LARGE 
FOO~ OF BLOOD CN THE FLOCR IK T;tE DIN:NG e.REA AND A LAE? WAS T:PFED OVER IN TEE 
LIVING ROOM. OFFIC:l?. ::JON ',AS TALKING ':'0 A ?:l~L'<I.E '.?RYING ·ro ~LACE DOGS IN THE 
BACKYAR:J. ::JFF:CER COON TCL:J f✓ E SC:E I/AS A WITNESS AND TEE •;1,~1IM, IVAN YOUNG Wi'.S 
rn A 5:lDROOM ON THE :::AST S [GE O? THE RES ID ENC:::. llFF:CER l!.1 c,,::,]AN WAS TALKING TC· 
':Otn-JG GETTING HIS ?ERSONAL INFORMATION, YOUNG WAS LAYit-,G OK i'--. BED CN HIS BACK 
W:TH HIS '1ANDS AGAIKST HIS fACc. I COULD SEE A LOT OF ELCCL• ON YOUNG'S NOSE Al'!C 
CHIN AREA. YOUNG TCLD ME HE GCT SEOT BY TWO Gt:"Y.S HE DII:• ~JCT K)J'OW WHILE !iE WAS 
IN THE Gfu.'"'.AGE, YOUNG BEGAN ':'0 YE:.L SAYING THAT 3:IS FACE ;HJRTS. AT THIS TIME, 
NOR':'H LAS VEGAS FIRE D":PAR':'MENT RESCUE UNI:' #53 r~'ID SOU':H\iFS, h.'1BULANCE 'JNIT 
#524 ARRI'JSD TO TREAT YOUN<,. AS FAAAMEDIC:S ROLLED YOUNG OUT .JF THE RESIDENCE ON 
A GURl<EY, I NOTICED Tl'.AT A SCREEN TO .'< WINDOW LOCATED ON :;aE ',!EST SIDE OF THE 
KES IDENCE WAS PULLED FROM '.:'HE !ENDOW F;L"1-1E AND fiANGillG FF:OM THC:: TOP. AS 
PARAMEDICS LOADED YOUNG IN'.:'~ THE Al-'.Bt:LA.'ICE, OFFICE"S i/ERE: SSFP.RATUlG IHTllSSSES. 

IVAN YOUNG' s W'.::FE WAS AT THE RES IDEN:::E WHEN' IV'A..'{ -..,r;,.E SHCr. OFFICER HICK'-lAN 

I:-lTERV:EWEC• E:lR, REFER TO OFFICER HIC:-CMfu'I' S FOLLOW-UP RE?ORT FOR FUR7.r!ER 
JNFORMA':'!ON. 

I THEN SPOKE TO A 1-iHITE MALE' ICENTIFIED .'<S RY::>.ll con;' J•JHN TOLD ME !-IE w.r..s 
VISITING HIS GI;,'.,LFRIEND ~-T :61:~ GLORY VIEW tJliICH IS DI~E:::.TiY ACROSS THE STREET 
FROM 2612 GLCRY VIEn, JCiL, LEFT HIS GIRL:RIENDS HOUSE lWO ST,.:UED TO WALK TO 
HIS VEHICLE THAT WAS PARK:'[! I~ FR.JN:' OF 2613 GLORY VIEW. "!-. BL.\CK MALE YELLED TO 

JOHN F'ROM THE Gll.RAGE OF 2,5) :: GLORY v:Ew THAT I7AN \.~ANTED T:) T.\LK TO HIM. 
BECfl.USE J:)HN KNEW IVAN ANJ: ~AS f'RIENDS WITH :-II:'i, HE h'A:..:<?.::J AC:~05S THE STREET. 
THE LTNIDEHTIFIEC ELACK ~~~E OPE::JE:J THE HCUSE DO::JR INSIDE THE GARAGE THAT OPEKS 
TO P. LA=RY ROOl'c SO JOHN CCU:.D i/.r..LK :NS IDE .. '<S JOHN NP.~~S:J JJ,'.:'O THS LAUNDRY 
ROC¥., TnE SUSPECT PUT A PE10:. TO J::JH!J' S THROAT AND TOL::, FI:'1 TO GET ON THE 
GRCUND IN THE KITCHEN AfID HACE ·,HS HAfIDS EEEI'-'D HIS BACK. THERE IS k'IOTHER 
D::JOR THAT OPENS INTO THE KITCHEN ?ROM THE LP.C1CRY ROOM. ,JC·ii~1 i..AID GK THE FLOOR 
W!TH HIS ;tEAD ?OWA.'1.DS ?HE SlNK AN;) HIS FEET AT THE REFRIGE"•.:-oR. THE S:JSPSCT 
'T:ED JOHN 1 5 HANDS EEEI~ E:S B.tl.C:( A..\TO STOMPED ON JQHN' S HE;\..:,. THE SUSPECT THEN 
PLACE!: ~- 3L-~CK JACKET OVER BIS t:EAD. THE SUSFECT THEN PLAC:::J A. 3UN TO JOHN'S 
HEAD AND TOLD HIM TMT IF HE MOVSS, HE WAS GOIKG TO BLOW HI2 ,lP.AlNS Ot'T, THE 
SUSPECT THS ,/ENT INTO JO@l' S POCKETS .!\ND FOUNC• AN Al.J'TOMATIC TSLLER l'.ACEI:-lE 
(ATM) CARD IN A FRONT POCKET. THE SUSPECT :'HEN TOLD JOH!J TO T3LL H:M HIS 
PERSONAL ?lN NUMBER TO nIS l\':'M. JOHN TOLD H:M. TEE SUSPECT THEN TOLD JOl-.rl THAT 
IF THE 1-llll-'.B:':R WAS WRONG, HE WOULD COM:l BACK AND KILL HIM. nE Sc:JSPECT TH:':N 
;;ALKED AWA'/. :Ol!N HEARD Tl/0 MALES TAL;(l:-lG TO I'JAK. COHN SAC ~'F.AT IVA!, WAS 

records bureau processed 
SC.Z>.RFF /DENISE 

superv:sor approving 
:-l0v1AKOWSKI /DBID1IS 

se:r no ! detect i 'Je b·Jreau p:rocessed 
1255 ! 

ser nc 1 officer ~eporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 

ser no 
13'.=.4 

------- - -- -- ------------ -- -- - --- -··------ ------ --- --- ----- - .. --- ---------------- --

App.0604



• • .............. --. •........... 
CASE, 
DATE, 
T,ME, 

G-1 :)15160 

E/29/04 
7,46 

- ·· - -t.JOP.TH L.!;.S VEGAS FOSICE DEPAR'Il"'.~Wl'- - - - REF: ORIG!KAL 
··----··------POL:CE REP•:•RT----------- ·--- PAGE, 10 
-·-·--------NARRAT:VE ?O~TION---------- ·--- OF: 12 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ..... - - - - -- - - - - -- - - - - - - - - . - .. - - - - - - .. - - .... - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

CLOSE TO HIM, '.:'JEAR ,HE o::nNG ROOM P.R?.A. JOHJJ HEP.RD IVAll ,,31':NG A MAi.E NOT TO 
S:iODT H:M. T:-:::::N JOHN HE~C .:.... GUN SHOT A..'ID IVAN SCR'.:.:A.r.L JOHN '.:'HEN HEARD ONE OF 
T:-IE SUSPECTS ASK THE OTH".::~ SUSPECT IF HE SHO:' HI!-:. THE OTH"::P. M..~LE, IN A 
J~"'L!..ICAN ACCENT SAID, YES I SHCY:' HIM. JOHN THEN HEAfO THE :3USPECT LEAVE THROUGH 
TEE FRON':' DCOR. ABOU': CNE TO TWO MINUTES LATER, JOHJJ STOOD UP, TAKING THE 
JP.CKET OFF CF EIS HEAD. JOH:oi RAN TO THE LAUNDRY ROOM, PUL!,.::-!G ONE OF HIS HANDS 
FROM BEHIND HIS BA2K AND JUMPED OUT OF A WINDOW THAT F.'-,CES NCRTH TO THE REAR 
YARD. J:JHN JUl-'.?ED SEVERAL ;-ARDS NORTHBOUlD, RilllNING AWA'! F'I.OM THE RESIDENCE. 
JOHN THEN CALLED THE POLICE FP.OM A CELL ULA.Cl. TELEPHONE FROM All u'NY.NOWN ADDRESS. 
JCHK H.W SEVERA:. MAP.KS OH BOT~ vJRI S, FROM 3E1NG ~IED l'P At:JJ CIAS TREATED AT THE 
SCEI\E BY MEDICAL PER!,ONNEL. JOHN TOLD ,~E TEAT HE COULD NO~' JIIEI-ITifY ANY 0? THE 
SUS?ECTS hlID WAS UNSURE EC;~ MA.\JY V1ERE THERE ... rom~ CALLED "1iELLS FA-~GO BANK WHICH 
ISSUED THE A':'M c;i..RD. TH.SY r:)!..D .JOHN THAT;..~· ATM ·,n:'HCR..r"\WA!~ F'.)R $201.50 WAS J"JST 
':"AKEN :=-ao:-1 AN tmKKO~; A.TM ·1u-...CHI){E. WELLS F.;.RGO W:)IJLD NOT f:J•T:)vl THE EXAC:­
LOC."-TION :JNTIL MONDAY BECA"JSE IT i/AS PAST NO:;~L'i.L BUSINESS HC•lfRS. JOHN COMP:.ETED 
A WITNESS STATEMENT I.T TEE SCEl\3. 

P-..NOT:iEP.. VICT!i✓., ..:ERt"-.AJ)~ F.E.~5 TOLD ME TH.P,T HE WENT 0--n::R TO 2612 :}LORY VIE',.V 
BECAUSE IVAN WAS PAINTING- :HS V3EICLE. APPARENTLY, IVAN ;:,,,,U'l'S VEHICLES OUT OF 
HIS HOME. AS MEANS Kl,LKEC· ·;p TO THE FRON'~ DCOF., Ttl:l illffNCMJI :,:ALES OPENED THE 
DOOR AND B3GAN TO l'IA:,K OUT. ONE O? THE MALES h'AS ilEAR:NG ;._ 3: lGE S\:IT JACKET 
AND '.:HE OT:cER HAD DREAD LOC:ZS. MEANS BELIEVEC TE3 ,1ALE IC':'H THE DREAD LOCKS KAS 
ii1EAR:NG ;.._ WIG. THE SUSPECT;; GR..i\BE-ED O)J"TO MEANS'S AR'.'-1 A.:.'J'D ;;t::.,::.ED HII-': INTO :'HE 
RESIDENCE. THEY FORCED :-JDl TO THE ?LOOR JUST INSIDE THE FPOK'I DOOR AND TIED HIS 
HANDS BEH H,D HIS BAO:. ME."1·15 ,OLI: ME T!U.-T BOTH MALES HAD GlfrCS IN THEIR HANDS 
3JT f!E COULD NOT DESCRIBE T!iE lvEi'.POKS. ONE OF THE SUSPEC-:'S ~.:,KEO MEAKS IF HE 
EAD ANY MCNEY. ,JEANS TOLD HIM 'eES. 01'3 OF THE SU!i?3CTS RE!•\~_,-JED ABOUT $1,300.00 
DOLLARS FRCM MEANS'S FRONT PAN,S PCCKET. ~1EANS REMEMBERED EA'iING SEVEK $100. 00 
& ILLS . THE S\.'SPECT ALSO TOOK MEANS'S C3LLULAR TEl,E?EO:o!E. Mf'.Al,S TOLD ViE THAT THE 
SUSPECTS THEN LEFT OUT O? '.:HE FRONT DOOR. AFTER A FEW SEcrn-:us. MEANS GOT UP. 
BROKE THE WIRES THE SUSPEC'..'S TIED HIM l'P WITH ANIJ RAN OUTS IDE TD HIS VEE I CLE. 
!-'.EANS' s G:RLFREND, r:ESTIN",rn vlADD'e WAS WAITING INSIDE THE VE!llCLE. MEANS TOLD 
1'E T:-J.'-,T HE DID NOT HEAR I'.~~, GUN SHOTS SO HE BELIEVED IVAN ',A,, ALREADY SHOT 
BE?ORE HE GOT TH:::RE. MEANS RECEIVED MEDICAL ATTEJITIOK AT T:JE SCENE AND H::: 
COMPLETED A wrn·:::ss STATEXI-:!IT. MEJ>JlS TCLD ME HE COULD NOT DE!-ITIFY THE 
SUS?3CTS. 

WADDY TOLJ: M3 THAT SHI: SAW nio UNIC-EKTIFIED MALES w.;L:< ,)l)T OF THE 
RESIDENCE AND GOT INTO A DiJH GP.EEN VEHIC:.E. tlADD'e SAID TEE VEHICLE WAS 
POSSIELY A PONTIAC GRAJ,W .DJ•!. THE VEHICLE WAS LAST SEEN W:':STBOJND ON GLORY VIEvl. 
WADCY DE:SCRI.BED THE M~LES LS ONE VTEARING A WlG, ABOUT 5 1 C" Tt-\LL. T::i.E O'THER MALE 
WAS ABOUT 5' 1~" T.;LL. so-::'! l·;ER3 WEARING BLL'E Al-ID WHITE CLOTHING. WADDY TOLD ME 
THAT SHE !lAS NEVER SEEN T,JI: T!-,'Q ~LZ,LES BEFCRE. ,iADDY ALSO CC:•!l'LETED A vHTNESS 
STATEMEl\-T _.;T THE SCENE. 

records ~ureau processed 
SCARFF/DE)J!SE 

supervisor approvin-3 
NOWAKCi-iS?CI/DENNIS 

ser no l detecc.ive bureau p::··::i,:esseci 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer reporting 
1225 ! HO"{T ,hiA...~K 

se:::::: r:o 

ser no 
1334 

App.0605



• • ......... '"-•· . . ...•...... ' . •111cia1' ..... ' .•. ' ' . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' .. ' .............. . 
CASE: 04015160 - - - ··NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMEXT- - - - REF: ORIGINAL 

DATE: 6/29/04 
TIME: 7:46 

- - - - - - - - - - POLICE REPORT- - - - - - - - · - - - - -
..... - - - - - -NARRATIVE PORTION- -- - - ---- - - - -

....................... ' ... 

PAGE: 11 
OF: 12 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ......... - .......... . 
------------------------··-· ---------------------

IVAN'S SON, AARCN DENl!IS WAS ALSO AT THE RESIDENCE WEEN HE WAS SHOT. 
DENNIS SAID THAT HIS FATHEi\ CAME INTO THE HOUSE AND TOL,D HIM, HIS MOTHER AND 
EIS COUSIN TO DO WHAT THEY SAY. TWO BLACK MALES WERE WALKING BEHIND IVAN. ONE 
WAS WEARING A BLACK JACKET. THE TWO MALES DEMANDED EVERYONE TO GET ON THE 
GROUND . ONE OF THE SUSPEC'.:S TIED DENNIS' S HANDS BEHIND lllt: EACK. DENNIS THEN 
ONLY REMEMBERED ONE OF THE MAL3S ASKING FOR MONE'{ AND SH00:'!1'G IVAN. DENNIS 
COMPLETED A WITNESS STATEMENT !\.ND HE WAS TREATED BY PARAMEDICS AT THE SCENE. 

IVAN'S NEPHEW, J'OSE POSADA TOLD ME TWO UNID3NTIFIED BLACK MALES WERE 
THREATENING IVAN FOR MONEY. THE SUSPECTS MADE POSADA AND DEN!,IS FACE A WALL AND 
ASKED THEM WHERE ALL THE TE:,EPHONES WERE. POSADA TOLD THE ~L'\.LES AND THE 
SUSPECTS BROKE ALL OF' THE TELEPHONES AND CELLULA., PHONES. PCS-ADA SAID THE 
SUSPECTS TIED EVERYONE UP IHTH WIRES FROM THE FLOOR LAMPS IN THE LIVING ROOM. 
POSADA THEN SAID HIS UNCLE IVAN WAS SHOT IN THE :-!EAD. PO!,ADA DESCRIBED ONE OF 
THE MALES AS A BLACK MALE IHTH BRAIDS. THE. OTHER MALE vlA:3 /1 BLACK MALE WITH A 
DA.,K AFRO. ONE OF THE SUSP:lCTS WAS WEARING A TUXEDO SHIRT. P•:•SADA ALSO SAID 
THAT HE SAW THREE GUNS. THl TWO WILES THEN WAL:,ED OUT OF THE FRONT DOOR. POSADA 
COMPLETED A WITNESS ~:TATEM.lNT AT THE SCENE AND W!,S TREATSD E-Y PARAMEDICS. 

CSI BRADY ARRIVED AND PROCESSED THE SCENE. DETECTIV:lS PRIETO A.'ID MELGARJEO 
ALSO ARRIVED ON SCENE. OFF [CER BAILEY WENT TO UNIVERSITY !1ED1CAL CENTER TO 
CHECK ON IVAN'S INJURIES. [VAN WAS LAST LISTED IN STABLE CONDITION. OFFICER 
BAILEY ALSO INTERVIEWED IVAN. REFER TO OFFICER BAILEY'S ?G-:aL:JW-UP REPORT FOR 
FURTHER DETAILS. TAMMY POSADA, JOSE'S MOTHER ARRIVED ON 3C:mE AND TOOK 
'OSSESSION OF THE FOUR DOG3 BELONGING TO IVAN. TI\.MMY ALSO TOOK CUSTODY OF JOSE 

AND DENNIS UNTIL FUR1'HER N·)TICE. AT ABOUT 2330 HOURS, DISPATCH RECEIVED A 
TELEPHONE CALL FROM TOM WUTER ABOUT POSSIBLE INFORMATION ON THE SUSPECTS. 
WINTER TOLD ME HE OWNS SEVERAL PROPERTIES IN THE LAS VEG.~S VIILLEY. ONE OF HIS 
EX-TENANTS, ERIC HAW!'.INS Oi/NS A DARK GREEN CHEVY MALIBU -~lD SIAS A SUSPECT IN A 
BURGLARY CASE ABOUT ::wo MOnHs AGO. WINTER SAi·/ A NEWS RELE.=,sE AND TOLD ME THAT 
HAWKINS'S METHOD OF OPERATION MA,CHES A BURGLARY TWO MONTH,, llGO, SIMILAR TO 
2612 GLORY VIEW. WIN'.'.ER TOLD ME HAWKINS SPEAKS WITH A ,JAYlAJCI\.N ACCENT AND HAS A 
BROTHER-IN-LAW THAT HE IS !U,WAYS SEEN WITH. WINTER TOLD :-!E H/\WKINS'S SOCIAL 
SECURITY NUMBER IS -6948. A RECORDS CHECK ON HAWKINS REVEALED 'THAT HE HAS 
BEEN A.,RESTED IN THE PAST FOR NARCOTICS AND WEAPONS CHARGE:, HITH A D. 0. 8. OF 
072284. HE IS LISTED AS 5'10" TALL AND 140 PO\,'NDS. DIS?ATCfl PROVIDSD POSSIBLE 
ADDRESSES IN LAS VEGI\.S Oc' 1904 JOELLA OR 3332 PARAGON DP.I\':, -

ATTACHMENTS: Fl'IE WITNESS STATEMENTS. 

- - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

ser no ! detective bureau p=•Jcessed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

---------------------------·-----------------------------------------------------
supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/W.RK 

ser no 
1334 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

App.0606



• • . . . . ' ............... ' . . . . .................... \.......,( ................ ' . 
. . . . . ·-....- .............................. -~ .................. . 

CASE, 04015160 ---·NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF, ORIGINAL 
DATE, 6/29/04 ---··----------POLICE REPORT-------------- PAGE, 12 
TIME, 7,46 - - - · - - - - - - - - -BOOKING PORTION- - - - - - - ·· · - - - - OF, 12 

name of arrestee: 
sex\ race/ethnic 

M I B N BLACK 

SLAOGHT3F:/RICKIE mL 99D89534 cs, 1896569 
I c:ate birth I age I hgt I wgt lha.ir leyes I bld I cmp 
I 984 I 19 I 509 I 180 I fJLK I BRO I MED I ORK 

alias-aka, SLAUGHTER/RICKIE LAMONT 
alias-aka: 
aiias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

place of bi:-tl'-.: 
LAS VEGAS NV 
ssn, E27 
driv lie/st, 1401804365 NV 

s::ars, marks, TAT RF ARM 11 RICC 11 /sc ABDOM 6'' 
tattoos, etc: SC R SIDE STAB WOUND 

illness/injuries: 

address (house no; apt no; street, city, state, zip) phone number 
3-301 E CHARLESTON #114 LV ~-V 

next of kin address: pho : 7022414277 

next of kin name: PATRlCIA MITCHELL relar:io:1: 70TH 
employer: NONE occupation: NONE 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
date/time of booking, 6/29/04 0133 abno, 2530:;.y I 
p:ace of arrest: 3801 E CHA::<.LESTON #114 arrestln-3 q1:l:icer: I vehl 
date/time of arrest, 6/28/ J4 23DO PRIETO/J3;i'\JS I YES 
officers present during bco".<ing: transpGr{i:.::9 officer: I impd 
SIIKAY 1265/GARCIA 152,. PRIETO/ I YES 

,,ct ID, - · - - - • - · - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - · - - - . - - - . - - - - - .. - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
.,o. I orig I charge I .·ar::ant/nrs I cts I fgm I c·ase num 

1 PC 02148 200.030 l F 4015160 
ATT MURD WDW 

2 PC 00118 

3 PC 00301 

4 PC 02743 

200 380 
ROBB WOW 

205.060 
BURG WOW 

208.460 

1 F 

l F 

1 F 

I 
·' 

40,000 

15,COO 

10,000 

4015160 

4015160 

4015160 
FALE:E IMPRISON WDW 

records bu:::-eau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no! detective bureau processed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer reportins 
1225 ' HOYT/MARK 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0607



CA3E, 04015160 
• • .. :.oRTH.LAs.vEGAs·PoLicE·oE?ART~s--::·REr; ·0RrGrNA1·. 

DATE, 6/29/04 -------------·POLICE REPORT-------·--·--- PAGE, l 

:IME, 7,46 ----------INVESTIGATIVE PORTION-------·-- OF, 12 

.___,.,., .................... - ... '... . ...... ' ................................ . 

..... 

·••***********************•~·-••···············••*********~•··~·················· 
- - - - • - - • - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · ·· - - - INCIDENT ORIGINAL- - - - - - - · - - · - · · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

classification/additional information: 
AMURDWDW/BURG/ROBB/FALSE IMPRISONMENT 

invest bureaus/units notified: I.D. BUREAU/DETECTIVE 

location of occurrence: 
2612 GLORY VIEW 

! rpt dist :Al nei9I'.bor:'1ood: APT 
• ADAM 1 AIRPORT 

from: date/ time ! t.o: date/ time ! report: 
6/26/04 J 19,11 • 

jate / time 
6/26/04 J 20,52 6/26/04 / 19,11 ! 

hate crime? NO ! gang J:elated? YES ! fingerprints? KO 

routing? ! prosecute? ! prop report? ! vehl report? ! arrest rpt? ! attach? 

DETECTIVE YES NO NO NO YES 

- - - - - - - - - - - • - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · ·· - METHOD OF OPERATION- - - - - - - • · ·· - ·· · - • - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

residential---type: 111 
SINGLE FAMILY 

non-residtl---type: 

target: security: 

target: security: 

entry----locatiO!"l: 325 GAf!AGE method: 

exit- - - -location: 3'73 FOJtCED-UNIQUE METHODmethod: 

suspect actions: 
A. 601 MULTI SUSPECTS B. 606 SUSPECT ARMED C. 607 DISCHARGED WEAPON 

D. 704 SELECTIVE IN LO::>'.: E. 801 INFLICTED INJTJRY F. 8C2 THREAT RETALIATIO 

G. 803 FORCED VIC TO FLO H. 814 BOUND/GAGGED VICT I. S;Cl :•:NEW VICTIMS NAME 

* * * ** ** * * * **** * * ** ** * * •• **•"*•****DISPOSITIONS*•**•******,_**+._.***"'************** 

]-UNFOUNDED/NO CRIME--0 
] -J\NENILE------------1 

]-NON DETECTIVE CLR---2 

]-DETECTIVE ARREST----3 

]-SUBMITTED CITY ATTY-4 

] -SUBMITTED D. A. - - - - · -5 

] ·ADMIN. CLEARED- - - ---6 
]-EXCEPTIONALLY CLR---7 

) · SCREEN CLEARED- - - - - - 8 

J ·NO CHGS FILED(NCF)--9 

]-RECLASSIFY---------10 

] - VIC P.EFUSED PROS . - -11 
]-P.FFID.~VIT----------12 

] -C:J>./D,, DENIAL-------13 

] -C•THER - - - - - - - - - - - - - -14 

] -!'\TE.MlTTED US ATTNY-15 

• - - - - - - • • • • • • - • · • - - - - - • - - - - ·· - - - - - - - - - RECORDS - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

class code---ucr sid number 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approvin£ 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

enter 
! scope 

date ser no ! 
! c'leared 

sc-:ipe 

ser no ! detective bureau processed 

1259 ! 

ser no! officer reporting 
1225 • HOYT/1'cr.RK . 

date ser no 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0608



• • • .... -::::::::::::::::::::e::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::e:::::::::::::::::: 
CASE: 04015160 
"JATE: 6/29/04 
rIME: 7:46 

----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: ORIGINAL 
--------------POLICE REPORT-------------- PAGE: 2 
-·-·--···---·PERSONS PORTION··-···---···· OF: 12 

. . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

name of person (001): 
YOUNG/IVAN 

! type: V 
! VICTIM 

! occupation: 
! PAINTER 

! susp id? 
YES 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - -- - - - -- - - - - - - - - -
sex ! race: W hisp:Y! dob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld I cmp 

M ! HISPANIC /1973 ! 31 I 000 I 000 ! 
- - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -- - - -- - - - - - . -- - - - -- - - --- - - - - - - - - - -- - - --- - . -- - - - - ----- - -- -- - - - - - -

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: 0271 ~f no: 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
addr: 2612 GLORY VIEW NORTH LAS VEGAS NV 89030 
business: 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- .. - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - --- - - - - - - - - -- - - -- - -- - -- - -- - - -
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

****************************~*************************************************** 
name of person (002): 
WADDY/DESTINEE 

! type: w 
' WITNESS 

! occupation: ! susp id? 
! DENTAL ASSIST NO 

--- ------- ---- ------- ---- - - - --- - - -- --------- - -- - - ---- --------- ------------------
sex! race: B hisp:N! C.ob 1 age ! hgt 1 wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

F ! BLACK 5/JB/1981 ! 23 ! 000 ! 000 ! 
------------------ - ---- - -- -- - ---- - --- ------- -- - -- - --------- -- - --------- ------ ---

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: 8514 mf no: 

. --- ------- -- ----- - -- ---- -- - ---- - ------ ----- - - -- - ----- ---- -- - ------------------
addr: 2309 BAHAMA POINT NORTH LAS VEGAS NV 89031 
business: 

! 7022904223 

- - -- - - - ------ -------- -- - - - - . -- -- - --- --- ----- - - --- ----- - --- - - - -- - -- ------- --- - --
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

******••····••*********•••**••·····••*******••···············~····••*•*•**•***** 
name of person (003): 
MEANS/JERMAUN 

! type: V 
I VICTIM 

! occupaticn: ! susp id? 
NO 

- - -- ---- -- - --- ---- - -- - ------ ··- -- --- ---------- ----- --------- --- ---- ----------- - --
sex ! race: B hisp:N! Cob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

M ! BLACK ! 12/ll/1976 1 27 ! 000 ! COO ! I 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

- - - - - - - - - -- - - - -- --- - - - -- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - -- -- - -- - - ----- - -- - - - - - -

....... 

addr: 2309 BAHAMA POINT NC•RTH LAS VEGAS NV 89031 
business: 

! 7D26369620 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

----------------------------· ---------------------------------------------------
records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

ser no ! detective bureau pr•:>cessed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------
supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! office~ reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 
1334 

- -- - - - - - --- -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - -- - -- - -- - - - - - - - --- - - - - - - - - - - .. - --- - -- - - -- - - - - - - --

App.0609



:::::::::::::::::.~:::::::::::::::::::::::::: • :•:::::::::: ........ . 
CASE: 04015160 
,ATE: 6 / 2 9 / 04 
rIME: 7: 4 6 

name of person 1004): 
JOHN/RYAN 

----~"ORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: ORIGINAL 
- - - ·· - - - - - - - - - - POLICE REPORT- - - - - - - - · · - - - - PAGE: 3 
- - · · - - - - - - - - - PERSONS PORT ION - - - - - - · · - - - - -

' type: V 
' VICTIM 

! occupation: 
I LABORER 

OF: 12 

! susp id? 
NO 

- - -- - ----- - --- ---- -----------· -- -- ------ -- ----- -- - --- ---- - . - - - --- ------ -- - -------
sex! race: W hisp:N! Cob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld l cmp 

M ! WHITE 2/06/1985 ! 19 ! 000 I 000 ! ! 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ·• - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ·- - .. -- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - -

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
addr: 9030 BARR AVE LAS VEGAS NV 89124 
business: VEGAS TRAFFIC SAFETY 4872 LMBW LV NV 89108 

! 7026479472 
! 7027912008 

------------------------------------------------------------··-------------------
descriptors: GIRLFRIEND LIVES AT 2613 GLORY VIEW 
descriptors: 

·····························································~·················· 
name of person (005): 
DENNIS/AARON 

! type: V 
! VICTIM 

! occupation: ! susp id? 
NO 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
sex l race: W hisp:N! Cob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

M ! WHITE 2/CB/1994 ! 10 ! 000 ! 000 ! 
------------------------------------------·----------------··--··---------------

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

.. - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - - - ·- . -· .. - - - - - - -. - - -- - - - . - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - . - -.. - - . - - - .. - - - -
,_._ addr: 2612 GLORY VIE'• NORTH LAS VEGAS NV 89031 

business: 
··--····--·-----------------···---·······------------·----·-- ----····-------·--
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

·························•*********••··········································· name of person (006): 
POSADA/JOSE 

! type: V 
! VICTIM 

! occupaticn: ! susp id? 
NO 

--····--·----··---·-····-----·-·----·--··-·----------·-·---·--------···---------
sex! race: W hisp:Y! Cob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

M ! HISPANIC 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: UNKNOWN 
business: 

3/25/1992 ! 12 ! 000 ! 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: rnf no: 

·----·---------·-·---·---------·-------------··----------·----·---·------·---·--
descriptors: IVAN YOUNG'S NEPHEW 
descriptors: 

---------··-·-·-----·-----------·-·--·-··--·-------·--·-··--·-------------··-·--
records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

ser no! detective bureau prJcessed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

---·---··--·-----·-·----·-·---·---------·--·-------·-·---·--------·----·-·-·---· 
supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 
1334 

App.0610



• 

..... 

:::::::::::::::.,: ........ . • :::::::::.::::::::::::::::::: 
CASE, 
DATE: 

04015160 
6/29/04 
7, 46 

- - - -NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTME};'J'- - - - REF, ORIGINAL 
PAGE, 4 

OF, 12 
- - - - · - - - - - - - - -POLICE REPORT- - - - - - - ·· - - - - - -

TIME, --------PERSONS PORTION------··-----

name of person (007): 

HICKMAN/JAKE #1476 
! type: W 
! WITNESS 

! occupation: ! susp id? 
! POLICE OFFICER NO 

---------------------------·----------------------------------------------------
sex! race: 

M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 

hisp: 

business: NLVPD 1301 LMBE 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

clob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hajr ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 1 000 ! ! 

1 birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

I 7026339111 

**•*************••········•~·-••••**************************•••****************** 
name of person (008), 
COON/CHRISSE #1457 

! type: w 
! WITNESS 

! occupation: 
! POLICE OFFl•:ER 

! susp id? 
NO 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- -
sex ! race: 

M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

hisp: c\ob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair 
! ooo ! ,Joo 1 

! birthplace, 
! ssn: 

eyes ! bld ! cmp 

mf no: 
-----------------------------------------------------------··-------------------
addr, I 

business: NLVPD 1301 LMBE ! 7026339111 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

*******•*******************••*************************************************** 
name of person (009): 
BAILEY/ANTHONY #1366 

sex ! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr, 

hisp: ! 

business, NLVPD 1301 LMBE 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

doh 

! type: w 
! WITNESS 

! occupation: 
! POLICE OFFIC~R 

! susp id? 
NO 

! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 ! 000 ! 

! birt.hplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

ser no ! detective bureau processed 
1259 ! 

ser no! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

! 7026339111 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0611



..... 

• • ::::::::::::::::::::::::e::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::•::: 
CASE: 04015160 
DATE: 6/29/04 
TIME: 7: 4 6 

name of person ( 010) : 
ADAMS/CLINTON #1068 

----HORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: ORIGINAL 
--------------POLICE REPORT-------··--·-- PAGE: 5 
--·- ---------PERSONS PORTION-------·-----

! type: W 
! WITNESS 

! occupation: 
! POLICE OFFICER 

OF: 12 

! susp id? 
NO 

---------------------------·----------------------------------------------------
sex ! race: hisp: 

M 
<lob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

! 000 ! 000 ! 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! birthplace: 
I ssn: mf no: 

- - - ----------------- -- --- -- ---- ----- ------ ----- ------- -- - - - - - - ----- ------- ------
addr: 
business: NLVPD 1301 LMBE ! 7026339111 

-- ------- ------- ---- -- --- ---·---------- ----- ---- ----- -- -- -- -- - ---- ---------------
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

*******************••····••·-••••************************••~~···················· 
name of person (011) : 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS #1225 

! type: w 
! WITNESS 

! occupation: ! susp id? 
! POLICE SERGEANT NO 

----- - --- -- ---- -- --- -- -- - -- ·--- --------- ---------------- --- - ----- ------------- --
sex l race: hisp: 

M 

dob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes t bld ! cmp 
! 000 \ 000 ! 

---------------------------··----------------------------------------------------
alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! birthplace: 
! esn: mf no: 

- ---- -------------- - . ----- ·- ------ ------------ ------- ------ ----- ------- --------
addr, 
business: NLVPD 1301 LMBE ! 7026339111 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ·- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

·························••·•*•**********************************•*************** 
name of person (012): 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS #1225 

! type: W 

! WITNESS 
! occupa ti or .. : ! susp id? 
! POLICE SEKGEANT NO 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
sex! race: hisp: 

M 

doh ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! 1-.air ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 ! 000 ! 

---------------------------·-----------------------------------------------------
alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

! bcrthplace: 
l ssn: mf no: 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
addr: 
business: NLVPD 13 01 LMBE ! 7026339111 

- - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - ·- .. - - - -- - - -- - --- - - - - - - - -
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - -- - . - - --- . - - - - - - -- - - - - - -- - - -- -- ---- - - -- -- - - - --- - -- --- - - - - - -- - -
records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

ser no ! detect~ve bureau processed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

--------------------------- ·----------------------------------------------------
supervisor approvi~g 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 
1334 

---------------------------·-----------------------------··----------------------

App.0612



• 

... 

• • ..... :::::::::::•:.::·.::::::::::::::::::::::e:::::::::::::::::: 
CASE: 04015160 

6/29/0~ 
7:46 

----:~ORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: ORIGINAL 
DATE: --------------POLICE REPORT--------··---- PAGE: 6 

OF: 12 TIME: -------------PERSONS PORTION-------------

name of person (013): 
BRADY/MARION #850 

sex ! race: 
F 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

hisp: ! ,:lob 

I type I W 
! WITNESS 

! occupati,:in: 
! I.D. TECH. 

! susp id? 
NO 

! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hai~ ! eyes ! bld l cmp 
! 000 ! 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - ·- .. -- - - - - - ---- - - - - - - - - -
addr: 
business: NLVPD 1301 LMBE ! 7026339111 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - .. - -- - - - --- - --- - - ---
descriptors: 
descriptors: 

***********************************************************·*•****************** 
name of person (014): 
WALKER/SEAN #1523 

sex ! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 

hisp: 

business: NLVPD 1301 LMBE 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

fob 

! type: W 
! WITNESS 

! occupati-::111: 
! POLICE OFFICER 

! susp id? 
NO 

l age ! hgt t wgt ! hai~ ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 ! 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

! 7026339111 

************••·································~··········~•t·••················· 
name of person { 015) : 
SANDERS/JOHN #1244 

sex ! race: hisp: job 
M 

! type: W 
! WITNESS 

! occupati :m, 
! POLICE OFFICER 

! susp id? 
NO 

! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hai:: ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 
! 000 ! 000 ! 

alias-aka: ! birthplace: 
alias-aka: ! ssn: mf no: 

addr: 
business, NLVPD 130" LMBE ! 7026339111 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! detective bureau p:rc,cessed 
1259 ! 

ser no! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0613



... ,•, ..... ' '' 

CASE: 
"lATE: 
.'IME: 

04015160 
6/29/04 
7:46 

:e~::::::::::::::::::::::::::e:~:::::::: 
----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: ORIGINAL 

--------------POLICE REPORT-----------·---

- - - - - - - - - - - - - PERSONS PORTION- - - - - - - - - · - - -
PAGE: 7 

OF: 12 

~ ~--· ., .... ······· 

..... 

**************************~***************************************************** 

name of person (016): 
NO NAME 

sex ! race: B hisp:N! 
M ! BLACK 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 
business: 

dc,b 

! type: S 

! SUSPECT 
! occupaticn.: ! susp id? 

NO 

! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld \ cmp 
! 508 ! 000 1 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: :nf no: 

descriptors: SPOKE 'tlITH JAMAICAN ACCENT 

descriptors: HAD DREAD LC·CKS 

****************************+*************************************************** 

name of person (017}.: 

NO NAME 

sex! race: 8 hisp:N! 
M ! BLACK 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 
business: 

c.ob 

! twe: s 
! SUSPECT 

! occupaticn: ! susp id_? 
NO 

! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

! 511 ! 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

descriptors: LSW BLUE ANt, WHI CLOTHING 

descriptors; 
****~*************************************************************************** 

name of person (018): 
PRIETO/JESUS #674 

sex! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr: 

hisp: C.ob 

! twe: w 
! WITNESS 

! occupation: 
! DETECTIVE 

! susp id? 
NO 

! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! ~yes ! bld ! cmp 

! 000 ! 000 ! ! 

l birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

business: NLVPD 1301 LMBE 1 7026339111 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! detective bureau processed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0614



0 

• :::::::e::::::::::: • ............ 
. . . ....... . 

----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLlCE DEPARTMENT---- REF, ORIGINAL 

- - - - · - - - - - - - - -POLICE REPORT- - - - - - - - - .. - - - - PAGE, 8 
CASE, 
DATE, 
TIME, 

04015160 
6/29/04 
7,46 - - - - · - - - - - - - -PERSONS PORTION-·· - - - - - .. - - - - OF, 12 

name of person 1019), 
MELGAREJO/EDWING #837 

sex! race: 
M 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

addr, 

hisp, 

business, NLVPD 1301 LMBE 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

dob 

! type: W 
! WITNESS 

! occupation: 
! DETECTIVE 

! susp id? 
NO 

! age! hgt l wgt 1 hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

! 000 ! 000 ! 

! birthplace: 
! ssn: mf no: 

ser no ! detective bureau processed 

1259 ! 

ser no ! officer reportin9 
1225 I HOYT/MJ\RK 

! 7026339111 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0615



• • • ..... ::::::::::::::::::::.::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::e::::::::::::::::::: 
CASE, 04015160 
DATE, 6/29/04 
TIME, 7, 46 

···-HORTH LAS VEGAS POLICT DEPARTMENT-··· REF, ORIGINAL 
··············POLICE REPORT·············· PAGE, 9 
• • • • ·······-NARRATIVE PORTION·············· OF, 12 

' - .................................. ' .................... ''' ' ............... ' .. . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' ..................... ' .. ' .... ' .......................... '' 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

ON SATURDAY, 06-26-04 ;,T 1911 HOURS, OFFICERS WERE D:SPATCHED TO 2612 
GLORY VIEW IN REFERENCE TO ;\ SHOOTING VICTIM INS IDE THE RESlD:lNCE. OFFICER 
HICKMAN WAS THE FIRST OFFICER TO ARRIVE WITH OFFICER COON AF.RIVING SHORTLY 
AFTER OFFICER HICKMAN. WHEN I ARRIVED, I WALKED INTO THE FRONT DOOR. THE FRONT 
DOOR OPENS TO A LARGE LIVING ROOM WITH A DINING .Z>JIEA TO THE LEFT OF THE FRONT 
DOOR AND THE KITCHEN ON THE OTHER SIDE OF THE DINING AREA. :'HERE WAS A LARGE 
POOL OF BLOOD ON THE FLOOR IN THE DINING AREA AND A LAMP WAS TIPPED OVER IN THE 
LIVING ROOM. OFFICER COON w;,s TALKING TO A FEMALE TRYING TO PLACE DOGS IN THE 
BACKYARD. OFFICER COON TOLD ME SHE WAS A WITNESS AND THE v:CTIM, IVAN YOUNG WAS 
IN A BEDROOM ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE RESIDENCE. OFFICER HI CEMAN WAS TALKING TO 
YOUNG GETTING HIS PERSONAL INFORMATION. YOUNG WAS LAYING ON A BED ON HIS BACK 
WITH HIS HANDS AGAINST HIS FACE. I COULD SEE A LOT OF BLOOD ON YOUNG'S NOSE AND 
CHIN AREA. YOUNG TOLD ME HE GOT SHOT BY TWO GUYS HE DID NOT KNOW WHILE HE WAS 
IN THE GARAGE. YOUNG BEGAN TO YELL SAYING THAT HIS FACE HlffiTS. AT THIS TIME, 
NORTH LAS VEGAS FIRE DEPARTMENT RESCUE UNIT #53 AND SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE UNIT 
#524 ARRIVED TO TREAT YOUNG. AS PARAMEDICS ROLLED YOUNG OUT OF THE RESIDENCE ON 
A GURNEY, I NOTICED TEAT A !,CREEN TO A WINDOW LOCATED ON TEE WEST SIDE OF THE 
RESIDENCE WAS PULLED FROM THE WINDOW FRAME AND HANGING FROM THE TOP. AS 
PARAMEDICS LOADED YOUNG INTO THE AMBULANCE, OFFICERS WERE SEPARATING WITNESSES. 

IVAN YOUNG'S WIFE WAS AT THE RESIDENCE WHEN IVAN WAS SE.OT. OFFICER HICKMAN 
INTERVIEWED HER. REFEJ; TO OFFICER HICKMAN'S FOLLOW· UP REPORT FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION. 

I THEN SPOKE TO P. WHITE MALE, IDENTIFIED AS RYAN JOH!!. JOHN TOLD ME HE WAS 
'SITING HIS GIRLFRIEKD AT :l613 GLORY VIEW WHICH IS DIREC'.:LY ACROSS THE STREET 

. ROM 2612 GLORY VIEW. JOHN l,EFT HIS GIRLFRIENDS HOUSE AJ>-7) STARTED TO WALK TO 
HIS VEHICLE THAT WAS PARKED IN FRC-NT OF 2613 GLORY VIEW. l, E,LACK MALE YELLED TO 
JOHN FROM THE GARAGE OF 2 61:l GLORY VIEW THAT IVAN WANTED :'O TALK TO HIM. 
BECAUSE JOHN KNEW IVAN AND \,AS FRIENDS WITH HIM, HE WALKED ACROSS THE STREET. 
THE UNIDENTIFIED BLACK MALE OPENED THE HOUSE DOOR INSIDE ::HE GARAGE THAT OPENS 
TO A LAUNDRY ROOM SO JOHN COULD WALK INS IDE. AS JOHN WALKE[• INTO THE LAUNDRY 
ROOM, THE SUSPECT PUT A PISTOL TO JOHN'S THROAT AND TOLD HIM TO GET ON THE 
GROUND IN THE KITCHEN AND PJ~;cE HIS HANDS BEHIND HIS BACK. THERE IS ANOTHER 
DOOR THAT OPENS INTO THE KITCHEN FROM THE LAUNDRY ROOM. Jom: LAID ON THE FLOOR 
WITH HIS HEAD TOWARDS THE SINK ANC• HIS FEET AT THE REFRIGEP.J,TOR. THE SUSPECT 
TIED JOHN'S HANDS BEHHm HI!, BACK AND STOMPED ON JOHN'S HE.I-.D. THE SUSPECT THEN 
PLACED A BLACK JACKET OVER HIS HEAD. THE SUSPECT THEN PLACH• A GUN TO JOHN'S 
HEAD AND TOLD HIM THAT IF HE MOVES, HE WAS GOING TO BLOW HIS BRAINS OUT. THE 
SUSPECT THE WENT INTO JO!L"l' :, POCKETS AND FOUND AN AUTOMJ>.TIC TELLER MACHINE 
(ATM) CARD IN A FRONT POCKET. THE SUSPECT THEN TOLD JOHN TC· TELL HIM HIS 
PERSONAL PIN NUMBER TO HIS ATM. JOHN TOLD HIM. THE SUSPECT THEN TOLD JOHN THAT 
IF THE NUMBER WAS WRONG, HE WOULD COME BACK AND KILL HI~. THE SUSPECT THEN 
WALKED AWAY. JOHN HEARD TWO MALES TALKING TO IVAN. JOHN Sl,W THAT IVAN WAS 

--------------------------- ·----------------------------------------------------
records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

ser :io ! detective bureau processed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

- - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - -- - -- - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - --- - - - -- - -
supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 
1334 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

App.0616
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• 
••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• CASE, 04015160 

DATE, 6/29/04 
TIME, 7,46 

--··-NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT- --- REF, ORIGINAL 
--··-----------POLICE REPORT----------··-- PAGE, 10 
------------NARRATIVE PORTION------------ OF, 12 

............................................................................... ' 

......................................................... ' ..................... . 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

CLOSE TO HIM, NEAR THE DINING ROOM AREA. JOH.'< HEARD IVAN ASKL~G A MALE NOT TO 
SHOOT HIM. THEN JOHN HEARD A GUN SHOT AND IVAN SCREAM. JOHN T~EN HEARD ONE OF 
THE SUSPECTS ASK THE OTHER SUSPECT IF HE SHOT HIM. THE OTHER MALE, IN A 
JAMAICAN ACCENT SAID, YES I SHOT HIM. JOHN THEN HEARD THE SUSPECT LEAVE THROUGH 
THE FRONT DOOR. ABOUT ONE 10 TWO MINUTES LATER, JOHN STOOD UP, TAKING THE 
JACKET OFF OF HIS HEAD. JOHN RAN TO THE LAUNDRY ROOM, PULLING ONE OF HIS HANDS 
FROM BEHIND HIS BACK AND ,TUMPED OUT OF A WINDOW Tl'.AT FACES NORTH TO THE REAR 
YARD. JOHN JUMPED SEVERAL YARDS NORTHBOUND, RUNNING AWAY FR:)M THE RESIDENCE. 
JOHN THEN CALLED THE ?OLICE FROM A CELLULAR TELEPHONE FROM AN UNKNOWN ADDRESS. 
JOHN HAD SEVERAL MARKS ON EOTH WRIST FROM BEING TIED UP AND lsAS TREATED AT THE 
SCENE BY MEDICAL PERSONNEL. JOHN TOLD ME THAT HE COULD NCT IDENTIFY ANY OF THE 
SUSPECTS AND WAS UNSURE HO~ MANY WERE THERE. JOHN CALLE:J WELL., FARGO BANK WHICH 
ISSUED THE ATM CARD. THEY TOLD JOHN THAT AN ATM lfiTHDRAWAL FOR $201.50 WAS JUST 
TAKEN FROM AN UNKNOWN ATM ~ACHINE. WELLS FARGO WOULD NOT KN:)W THE EXACT 
LOCATION UNTIL MONDAY BECACSE IT 1-iAS PAST NORMAL BUSINESS H:)URS. JOHN COMPLETED 

A WITNESS STATEMENT AT THE SCENE. 
ANOTHER VICTIM, ,JERMACN MEANS TOLD ME THAT HE WENT OVER TO 2612 GLORY VIEW 

BECAUSE IVAN WAS PAI~fING HlS VEHICLE. APPARENTLY, IVAN FAINTS VEHICLES OUT OF 
HIS HOME. AS MEANS WALKED CP TO THE FRONT DOOR. TWO UNK..'-CWN l'L"-LES OPENED THE 
DOOR AND BEGAN TO WALK OUT. ONE OF THE MALES WAS WEARING A BEIGE SUIT JACKET 
AND T,lE OTHER HAD DRE.lill LOCKS. MEANS BELIEVED THE MALE WITH T:{E DREAD LOCKS WAS 
WEARING A WIG. THE SUSPECTE GRABBED ONTO MEANS'S ARM AND PULLED HIM INTO THE 
'l.ESIDENCE. THEY FORCE:J HIM TO THE FLOOR JUST INSIDE THE FRGNT DOOR AND TIED HIS 

ANDS BEHIND HIS BACK. MEAKS TOLD ME THAT BOTH MJ>.LES HAD GUNS IN THEIR HANDS 
BUT HE COULD NOT DESCRIBE THE WEAPONS. ONE OF THE SUSPECTS ASKED MEANS IF HE 
HAD ANY MONEY. MEANS TOLD EIM YES. ONE OF THE SUSPECTS REMC\'ED ABOUT $1,300.00 
DOLLARS FROM MEANS'S FRONT PANTS POCKET. MEANS REMEMBERED HA'iING SEVEN $100. 00 
BILLS. THE SUSPECT ALSO TOC•E MEANS'S CELLULAR TELEPHONE. MEi\NS TOLD ME THAT THE 
SUSPECTS THEN LEFT OUT OF THE FRONT DOOR. AFTER A FEW SECC!'IDS, MEANS GOT UP, 
BROKE THE WIRES THE SUSPECTS TIED HIM UP WITH AND RAN OUTSIDE TO HIS VEHICLE. 
MEANS'S GIRLFRIEND, DESTINEE WADDY WAS WAITING INSIDE THE VEHICLE. MEANS TOLD 
ME THAT HE DID NOT HEAR ANY GUN SHOTS so HE BELIEVED IVAN \ve.S ALREADY SHOT 
BEFORE HE GOT THERE. MEANS RECEIVED MEDICAL ATTENTION AT 1HE SCENE AND HE 
COMPLETED A WITNESS STATEMENT. MEANS TOLD ME HE COULD NOT !DE:,JTIFY THE 

SUSPECTS. 
WADDY TOLD ME THAT SHE SAW TWO UNIDENTIFIED MALES WALK OUT OF THE 

RESIDENCE AND GOT INT:) A DJ,RK GREEN VEHICLE. WADDY SAID THE VEHICLE WAS 
POSSIBLY A PONTIAC GRM'D AM. THE VEHICLE WAS LAST SEEN WESTBOUND ON GLORY VIEW. 
WADDY DESCRIBED THE MALES J,S ONE WEARING A WIG, ABOUT 5' e" TALL. THE OTHER MALE 
WAS ABOUT 5'11 11 TALL. BOTH WERE WEARING BLUE AND WHITE CLOTHING. WADDY TOLD ME 
THAT SHE HAS NEVER SEEN TH,: TWO MALES BEFORE. WADDY ALSO CC-MPLETEO A WITNESS 
STATEMENT AT THE SCENE. 

--------------------------·---------------------------------··-------------------
records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

ser no ! detect:i ve bureai..:. processed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

- -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -·- - - - -- - - - - - -- -- - -- - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - -- - - -- -
supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! office~ reportin~ 
1225 ! HOYT/MAP.K 

ser no 
1334 

--------------------------··-----------------------------------------------------

App.0617
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• • ·················································•················· 

CASE, 04015160 

DATE, 6/29/04 
TIME, 7,46 

----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF, ORIGINAL 

----·---------POLICE REPORT-------------- PAGE, 11 

- - - - · - - - - - - -NARRATIVE PORTION- - - - - ·· · ·· - - - - OF, 12 

IVAN'S SON, AARON DENN::S WAS ALSO AT THE RESIDENCE WHEN EE WAS SHOT. 

DENNIS SAID THAT HIS FATHER CAME INTO THE HOUSE AND TOLD HIM, HIS MOTHER AND 

HIS COUSIN TO DO WHAT THEY !,AY. TWO BLACK MALES WERE WALKING BEHIND IVAN. ONE 

WAS WEARING A BLACK JACKET. THE TWO MALES DEMANDED EVERYONE TO GET ON THE 

GROUND . ONE OF THE SUSPECT!, TIED DENNIS'S HANDS BEHIND HIS EACK. DENNIS THEN 

ONLY REMEMBERED ONE OF THE MALES ASKING FOR MONEY AND SHOOTIKG IVAN. DENNIS 

COMPLETED A WITNESS STATEMEIIT AND HE WAS TREATED BY PARAMEDICS AT THE SCENE. 

IVAN'S NEPHEW, JOSE P0'3ADA TOLD ME TWO UNIDENTIFIED !LAO: MALES WERE 

THREATENING IVAN FOR MONEY. THE SUSPECTS MADE POSADA AND DENNIS FACE A WALL AND 

ASKED THEM WHERE ALL THE TE:;EPHONES WERE. POSADA TOLD THE M.ALE!S AND THE 

SUSPECTS BROKE ALL OF THE T:!LEPHONES AND CELLULAR PHONES. POSJ.IlA SAID THE 

SUSPECTS TIED EVERYONE UP WITH WIRES FROM THE FLOOR LAMPS IN THE LIVING ROOM. 

POSADA THEN SAID HIS UNCLE IVAN WAS SHOT IN THE HEAD. POS.l\DA DESCRIBED ONE OF 

THE MALES AS A BLACK MALE WITH BRAIDS. THE OTHER MALE WAS A BLACK MALE WITH A 

DARK AFRO. ONE OF THE SUS PETS WAS WEARING A TUXEDO SHIRT. POSADA ALSO SAID 

THAT HE SAW THREE GUNS. THE TWO MALES THEN WALKED OUT or TEE FRONT DOOR. POSADA 

COMPLETED A WITNESS STATEME:n AT THE SCENE AND WAS TREATE:> BY PARAMEDICS. 

CSI BRADY ARRIVED AND PROCESSED THE SCENE. DETECTIVE3 PE:ETO AND MELGARJEO 

ALSO ARRIVED ON SCENE. OFFI:ER BAILEY WENT TO UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER TO 

CHECK ON IVA.>;' S INJURIES. IVAN WAS LAST LISTED IN STABLE -:OND:TION. OFFICER 

BAILEY ALSO INTERVIEWED I\'AN. REFER TO OFFICER BAILEY'S FOL~Clll-UP REPORT FDR 

l'URTHER DETAILS. TAMM:: POSADA, JOSE'S MOTHER ARRIVED ON SCENE AND TOOK 

)SSESSION OF THE FOUR DOGS BELONGING TO IVAN. TAMMY ALSO r:JOK CUSTODY OF JOSE 

AND DENNIS UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE. AT ABOUT 2330 HOURS, DISPATCH RECEIVED A 

TELEPHONE CALL FROM TOM WINTER ABOUT POSSIBLE INFORMATION ON ~HE SUSPECTS. 

WINTER TOLD ME HE OWNS SEVERAL PROPERTIES IN THE LAS VEGAS "JALLEY, ONE OF HIS 

EX-TENANTS, ERIC HAWKINS OWNS A DARK GREEN CHEVY MALIBU AND WAS A SUSPECT IN A 

BURGLARY CASE ABOUT TWO MONTHS AGO. WINTER SAW A NEWS RELEi13E AND TOLD ME THAT 

HAWKINS'S METHOD OF OPERATION MATCHES A BURGLARY TWO MONTHS AGO, SIMILAR TO 

2612 GLORY VIEW. WINTER TOLD ME HAWKINS SPEAKS WITH A JAM~.EAN ACCENT AND HAS A 

BROTHER-IN-LAW THAT HE IS ALWAYS SEEN WITH. WINTER TOLD ME H/\WKINS' S SOCIAL 

SECURITY NUMBER IS ·6948. A RECORDS CHECK ON HAWKINS RE'JEALED THAT HE HAS 

BEEN ARRESTED IN THE ?AST FOR NARCOTICS AND WEAPONS CHARGES NITH A D.0.B. OF 

072284. HE IS LISTED AS 5' 10" TALL AND 140 POUNDS. DISPATCH P:,ovIDED POSSIBLE 

ADDRESSES IN LAS VEGAS OF. 1904 JOELLA OR 3332· PARAGON DRIVE. 

ATTACHMENTS, FIVE WIT~ESS STATEMENTS. 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 

ser no ! detective burea~ processed 

1259 ! 

ser no! officer reporting 
1225 ! HOYT/MARK 

ser no 

ser no 
1334 

App.0618
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10/23/2009 14:00SlCB 

• • 
TO WITNESS: 

• . . . . .f,XJ702 86¥, flJ.48 

· . .& .TH LAS VEGj .3· . .&. JCE wr1'1'Ess PHOTO LINEUP IDENTn-ltATION 

P.002/013 

Case#: 04-15160 
1. If you have previously seen one or more of the persons in the line up in regards to the crime in question, place 8 circle around the appropriate number corresponding to the number of the person In the line up. Place your Initials next to the circled number. 
2. Complete any additional comments 
3. Then sign your name and fill in the date and lhe time. 

,./' 

#1 #2 #3 

#4 #5 #6 
ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS: 

----',----+-+----------------- -· --
i 

\ 

Signature of Officer 

Ii, Sig~<>ture of Wltria's's' Date & Time 

&Aili-I- II --L- d'/ tttr * 
w,1ness Name P

0

rlnted l'ffolo hne tf;Ptl' ~ 
J{). Pi'. 11-!t .S/JJ' /c< 7~ ()de 7i• /f~l),,AC. ,l;rr-1/.:.,,.,_ . .,,,,7-

• I I . - ."'91. ..- ~ I 

App.0620



1012312009 14:01 m 

TO WITNESS: 

• 
NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE WITNESS PHOTO LINEUP IDENTIFICATION 

P.003/013 

Case#: 04•1516 
1. If you have previously seen one or more of the per.ons in the fine up in regards to the crime in question, place a circ around the appropriate number corresponding to the number of the person in the 1111e up. Place your initials next to tl circled number. 
2. Complete any additional comments 3. Then sign your name and fill In the date and the time. 

#4 #5 #6 
AODITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS: 

/ .. I J, • 
I .c..,., 

l.i 
Mc,,;)...± DJ n, 1 ,./ ct,/ :to,5 ,,.,_£' • 1/ 

-~()~;_2.c;._L_· I"_'· ____ (, ·_7 ~ ......... ( . '\; (,1-,L-L' ........ ·-·_~· ~~~-::j -
Signat/e of Officer #cxdi& r ) Jtu:.:.f Wi7 rl'l" tftT p.J.te & Tir.,e 

-S.,..ig-na-t-ur_e_a·I,-0-:-ffi-,c-e_r __________ Witness Name Printed )!>AtJt'i //At~ 
App.0621



10/2312009 14:01 St:11 

TO WITNESS: 

• (FAX)702 868 0248 • 
NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE WITNESS PHOTO LINEUP IOENTIFICATION 

P.004/013 

Case#: 04-1516 
1. If yo~ have previously seen one or more of the persons In the line up In regards to the crime in question, place a cirt around the appropriate number corresponding to the number of the person in the line up. Place your initials next to ti circled number. 
2. Complete any additional comments 
3. Then sign your name and fill in the date and the time. 

"----~------....,1.-----.----'-'-"'-R -· #4 

ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS: 
01, ' \' Tc ::vv.V\· ~-

Signature of Officer 

#5 #6 

QVithlts Name Printed O.A.~ /_ 
/7/fK tJ /i/Jf f.//7,r. 

App.0622



1012312009 14:01 SKI! (FAX)702 868 02411 P .0051013 •... , !"\. 
t-..bh. fH LAS VE:uA-~ t-OL1CE 

TO WITNESS: 
WITNESS PHOTO LINEUP IDENTIFICATION Case#: 04-1516. 

1. If you have preViously seen one or more of the persons In the line up In regards to the crime In question, place a circle 
around the appropriate number corresponding to the number of the person in the line up. Place your initials next to the 
circled number. 

2. Complete any additional comments 
3. Then sign your name and fill in the date and the time. 

#1. 

App.0623
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EXHIBIT "4" App.0624



SL.AU3HTER 

AKA # 1: SLAUGHTER!FCICKIE L.AM:>NT 

N(Alt3: 

SEJC 

HAIR: 

Male 

Black 

RACE. 

EYES: 

NA LAS VEGAS DETENTIONJCORRECTIONS • 
MUGSHOT PROFILE 

RICKIE 

PHOTO DATE. 

PHOTO TIM:.: 

06 I Z9 / 2004 

02: 4.7 

HEIGHT: 6'(19" WEIGHT· 

Blad< 

s,o,,,n 

180 PHOTO MUMBER: 30&5732 

Bl.I); Mt.-dium OvlP: Dilrk 

SCARS, fMRKS, TATTOOS: 

SCARS, MARKS, TATTOOS. 

DA. Tc OF BIRTH:   1984 

Pl.ACE OF BIRTH' 

SOCIAL SECURITY t.'JIIBER: 

DRIVERS UCEJ"5£/ST .A.TE: 

Er.Pt.OYER: 

OCCUPATION: 

ADORESS: 

BERGE.N:;YOONTACT: 

AOORESS: 

PLACE Of ARREST: 

ARRESTlr,:; OFFICER: 

VEHIClE: 

BKG D\TE: 06 I zg I 2004 

NO 

2 

3 

• 
5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ORIG 

PCP 

oc 

A TT MURO Vil::JfJ 

PCP 

ROBBVON 

PCP 

BURGw»I 

PCP 

FALSE lhPRISON l'O'V 

EKG TII.E: 

AGE:: IJFNUMBER: 

BO:ll(W,.llER: 

FED 10 NUllfBER: 

cs r;ur,eeR: 

:,jDIVIJBER: 

FBI NUWBER: 

TELEPI-ONE: 

RELATION: 

TELEPHONE: 

DATE/TIIIIEOF ARREST: 

TRANSPORTir,.,:; OFFICER: 

1r,polJND: 

01 : 33 9KG OFF~ SKGOFACER 

WARRANTS/NRS CTS FGM BAIL 

200.030 01 F 100000 

200.380 01 F 0-40000 

205.060 01 F 040000 

200.460 01 F 010000 

,...... 
253034 

1896069 

CASE "'-RIBER 

04015160 

0401151£0 

04015160 

04015160 

App.0625
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EXHIBIT "5-A" App.0626



J PHOTO SPREAD 

WITNESS: PLEASE READ THESE INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY 
Po1.tl!""1S of ~r,ons ln thtS pholtl spr•t1d llfCI nlnbE!red lqft lo rigM, ~h,ntn;i ~t, 

f-lumbt:11 Qnl} (t) on y:,ur ,~n. 
1. If p1a'Mlusly \JOU h:!!iw seen Ol'IG or mo!& of tho per50ns in ttil5 photn 11moed. 

Y,'ftto )'DUO' ltlltla1:; 11"1 It'"" MIMTI.A_ls• •rirte~(r;) tlllsli:ti, tt-e phc,ta(s) of !ha r,n1uonfs) 

yr,l.11:"o\'t!?.:-n 

#1PERSON 

.t) OFFENSE/INCIDENT No. _____ _ 
2. tilfures~ sp,11c,i,_ :~ t,,1-ctly!',ow~,o,'Wt"-!11 ~~ ,.er,,, or~ pen-Ot'l(1.) ,pll 

rjentifie,d 

3, ti' 'f'='U na,,,,ur h!!~ t.aan 1ny [1111'$()n in this IIM-IJO, wtllft )?'UT 1~1, in tho! 

·NONE OF THE AOOVEH sp:ica. 

4. StQn 'fOU' nan1~ In tho "'VTE\.\fED er spsce, and mr In thn 1tm@a end d;ilc ,pac:es 

5 Thl}n h:,nd thl!i pt,cto tnnttnd to th!:! of'!l,cm in ch1'11gn. 

#2 PERSON ,J PERSON 

') , 

DATE ______ _ DATE _____ _ DATE ________ _ 

• INITII\LS INITIALS INITIALS 

NO!ES 
NOTES ______ _, NOTf:S 

........ - - .. , 
#4 PERSON #5 PERSON 16 PERSON , .. ' .. 
DATE DATE DATE 

INITIALS INITIALS INITIALS 

[:!!I 
NOTES NOTES NOTES -· ', _: __ ., #:. :--!... • 

TIME PHOTO SPREAD SHOWN NONE OF lHE ABOVE 

AGENCY DATE PHOTO SPREAD SHOWN VIEWED BY 

OFFICER Signature of witness to this viewing: DATE OF OFFENSE 

WITNESS DATE 

App.0627
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EXHIBIT "5-B" App.0628



roWITNESS: 

NO~'H LAS VEGAS POLieE 
WITNESS PHOTO LINEUP IDENTIFICATION Case#: 04-15160 

I. If you have previously seen one or more of the persons in the line up in regards 10 the crime in question, place a circle 

,, '?.round the appropriate number corTesponding io the number of the person in the line up. Place your initials next to the 

· ,ircled number. 
2. Complete any addttional comments 

3. Then sign your name and fill in the dale and lhe lime. 

#1 #2 #3 

#4 #5 #6 

ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS: 

"•---<;:t,ure of Officer Signature of Witness Date & Time 

Signature of Officer Witness Name Primed 

App.0629
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EXHIBIT "5-C" App.0630



12/10/2.0~4 16: 1,1 FA! 3838465 • 
,e:::,._ - - • ,,t,R~ lA~ 1~lEGA~~m..~[E 

DA CRIMINAL DIVISION 

WITNESS PHOTO LIMEUP IDENTIFICATION 
)WITNESS: 

li!)020 

Case#: 04-15160 

If you have previously seen one or more of !he persons in the line up in regards to 1he crime in question, place a circle 

aroun<I the appropriate number corresponding to the number of the person in the line up. Place your inltlals next to the 

circled number. · 

Complete any addltional comments 
Then sign your name and fill in the date and the time. 

.DDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS: 

:lgnature of Officer 

:ignature of Officer 

Alrflc.e/i,,,.~-r ,g.~ 

,4-/rfo.e~p:,r?.~~ dJ. 11 

#5 

Signsture of Wrtness Date & Time 

Witness Name Prtnted 

App.0631
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EXHIBIT "5-D" App.0632



N°'1-H LAS VEGAS POL! E 
WITNESS PHOTO LINEUP IDENTIFICATION Case#: 04-15160 

TO WITNESS: 
If you have previously seen one or more of the persons in the line up in regards to the crime in question, place a circle 

""""'round the appropria1e number r.orresponcting 10 !he number ol the person in the line up. Place your initials next to the 
'. arc1ed number. 

2. Comple1e any additional comments 
3. Then sign your name and fill in the date ano the time. 

#1 #2 #3 

,0::,,,, .. 
' 

#4 #5 #6 

ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS: 

Slg~re of Officer Signature of Wrtness Date & Time 

Signature of Officer Witness Name Printed 

App.0633
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EXHIBIT "5-E" App.0634



~--------------------------------------

Noft-1-1 LAS VEGAS POLi!E 
WITNESS PHOTO LINEUP IDENTIFICATION Case# 04-15160 

TO WITNESS: 
1 If you have previously seen one or more of the persons in the tine up in regards to the crime in question. place a circle 

e""'lround the appropriale number corresponding to the number of the person in the liue up. Place your inHials next to the 
~rcled number. 

2. Complete any addttional comments 
3. Then sign your name and fill in the da1e and the time" 

#1 #2 #3 

#4 #5 #6 

ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS: 

Signature of Wrtness Date & Trme 

Signature of Officer Witness Name Primed 

App.0635
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EXHIBIT "6" App.0636



. -: .... · ........... . 
CASE, 04015160 
DATE, 12/10/04 
TIME, 15,25 - - - - - - - - - -INVESTIGATIVE PORTION- - - - - - · ·· ·· - OF, S 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -INCIDENT FOLLOWUP- - - - - - - - - - ·· · - ·· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
classification/additiona~ informatio~: 
AMURDWDW/BURG/ROBB/FALSE IMPRISONMENT 

invest bureaus/units notified: 

location of occurrence: 
2612 GLORY VIEW 

! rpt dist,Al 
! ADAM l 

neighb,,rhood' APT 
AIRPORT 

from: date/ time ! to: 
6/26/04 / 19,11 ! 

date/ time ! report: 
6/26/04 / 19,11 1 

date/ time 
9/2:./04 / 7, 29 

---------· ----------------------------------------------------------------------
hate crime? NO ! gang related? NO ! fingerprints? NO 

routing? ! prosecute? 1 prop report? ! vehl report? ! a:-rest rpt? ! attach? 
OTHER I YES YES I NO NO 

*************************************************************I****************** 
-------------------------------METHOD OF OPERATION-------------------------------

residential---type: 

non-residtl---type: 

entry----location: 
exit----location: 

suspect actions: ,,,,, 
A. 
D. 
G. 

B. 
E. 
H. 

target, 

target, 

method: 
method, 

security: 

security: 

C. 
F. 
I. 

* * * * ** * ** * * * * ** * * *"' * 1-•" *• ••*******DISPOSITIONS*•*"'*****•**** ..... "'********•*******"' 
]-UNFOUNDED/NO CRIME--0 
J-JUVENILE------------1 
]-NON DETECTIVE CLR---2 
]-DETECTIVE ARREST----3 
]-SUBMITTED CITY ATTY-4 

]-SUBMITTED D.A.------5 
J-ADMIN. CLEARED------6 
]-EXCEPTIONALLY CLR---7 
J -SCREEN CLEARED------6 
]-NO CHGS FILED(NCF)--9 

J--REC:,ASSIFY---------10 
J · VIC REFUSED PROS . - -11 
J --AFF:DJ,VIT----------12 
]-CA/DA DENIAL-------13 
J - OTHEli - - - - - - - - - - - - - -14 
J ·SlJBMITTED US ATTNY-15 

*******""*************************************•******"'****"*i~******************* 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - · - -RECORDS - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

class code---ucr sid number 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
HANKS/ROBERT EDWARD JR 

enter 
! scope 

date ser no 
cleared 

f;iC•:>pe 

ser no ! detective bureau proc~ssed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer reporting 
0998 ! PRIETO/JESUS 

s 

date ser no 

ser no 

ser no 
0674 

App.0637



···············································•·············· ........ ' ............ ' ..... ' ......... ' ..... ' ...... ' ............... . 
CASE, 04015160 
DATE, 12/10/04 

,ME, 15,25 

----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT--··- REL 250183 

--------------POLICE REPORT-----------·-- PAGE, 2 

--- - - · -- - - - --PERSONS PORTION-- - --- -- -- · · - OF, 5 

-·························•···················································· 
****************************1'*************************************************** 

name of person (001}: 

RICHARD/JACQUAN 
! type, W 
! WITNESS 

I occupatior~: 
! DRIVER 

I susp id? 
YES 

sex ! race: B hisp:Nl 
M ! BLACK 

dob ! age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair ! eyes ! bld l cmp 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka, 

addr, 
business: 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

/1978 ! 26 ! 509 ! 206 ! BL~ ! BRO ! 

! birthplace, 
! ssn, 8071 mf no, 

****************************u*****************************T•******************** 

~ame of person {002): 

ROBINSON/MARVIN 
! type: S 

! SUSPECT 
! occupation: ! susp id? 

sex! race: B hisp:N! dob ! age I hgt ! wgt l hair ! eyes ! bld ! cmp 

M ! BLACK /1985 ! 19 ! 602 ! 182 ! E-LK ! BRO ! 

alias-aka: 
alias-aka: 

1ddr, 1115 EVANS NLV NV 89030 

•. usiness: 

descriptors: 
descriptors: 

records bureau proce!;sed 
SCARFF /DENISE 

! birthplace, 
! ssn: mf no: 

ser no ! detective bureau processed 
1259 ! 

ser no 

------------------------------------------------------------··-------------------
supervisor approving 
HANKS/ROBERT EDWARD JR 

ser no ! officer reporting 
0998 ! PRIETO/JESUS 

s ser no 
0674 

App.0638



' 

CASE, 04015160 
DATE, 12/10/04 
TIME, 15,25 

...... 
. ....... ···•··· 

- - - -NCRTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMEN'.> - - - REF, 
-----·--------POL!CE REPORT--------------
- - - - - · - - - - - - - PROPERTY PORTION- - - - - - ·· · ·· - - -

' ... ' ........................... ' ....... ' ........... . 

250183 
PAGE, 3 

OF, 5 

.......................................................... ·············· 
****************************t***************************••~•w***~*************** 

no. artcds type--descripti·1e information on property------­
additional descriptive in::",)rma:.ion- - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - • 

staler. 
value 

recover 
value 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
001 MISC E brd, 

---- mod, 
ser: 

coll, 
own#, 

:::012: 

sze: 
cal: 

dt last seen: 

NLV PROTO LINE UP CONTAINBG MARVIN ROBINSON/VIEWED BY I'/AH YOUNG 

·••********••·································•***********·•~··········••******* 
++++++++++++++++++++-+++++~++++++++++++++++ totals-------) 

**********************••··········~-·-··················~·••*•~················· type: E-evidence; F-f:iund; I-impounded; L-lost; 
0-other: R-:.-ecoverej; s-stoler.; T-released; >:-safekeeping 

*****************•••••w•••••••••••*•*•***********•****•***~•*•*•**************** 

records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
HANKS/ROBERT EDWARD JR 

..... 

ser no l detective Oureau p~•:>Cessed 
1255 

se::: no ! office:::- report:.Dg 
0995 ! PR:ETO/JESUS 

s 

ser no 

ser no 
0674 

App.0639



.c .... •,, ................ , ...•. , ............ , ................•.............. 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ' ..................... ' ............. ' .............. ''. 

CASE, 04015160 
DATE, 12/10/04 
~IME, 15,25 

----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF, 250183 
----·----------POLICE REPORT-------·-······· PAGE, 4 
---··--------NARRATIVE PORTION--------····· OF, 5 

.............................................................................. 
. . . . . '. ' ....................... ' ............ ' .. ' ......... ' .................. . -------------------------------------------------------------····-----------------

DURING MY INVESTIGATION I LEARNED THAT RICKIE SLAUGHTER W/'5 MAKING SEVERAL 
PHONE CALLS TO A SUBJECT LATER IDENTIFIED AS JACQUAN RICHARD, I\LSO KNOW AS 
MACK. DURING THESE CALLS SLAUGHTER AND RICHARD TALKED ABOUT THE ROBBERY, HOW 
SLAUGHTER COULD ·cREATE AN ALIBI AND VARIOUS ASPECTS OF THE INCIDENT. I MADE 
SEVERAL ATTEMPTS TO COIITACT RICHARD DURING THE INVESTIGATION. BUT I WAS NOT 
ABLE TO DO SO. 

PHOTO LINE UPS OF RICHARD WERE MADE AND SHOWN TO ALL OF THE VICTIMS. NONE 
OF THE VICTIMS WERE ABLE TO IDENTIFY RICHARD AS A SUSPECT. 

I LEARNED THAT RICHARD HAD A WARRANT THROUGH PAROLE AID PROBATION. I 
CONTACTED PAROLE AND PROBATION AND ASKED THAT I BE NOTIFIED IF RICHARD WAS 
ARRESTED FOR THE WARRAIIT. 

ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2004, I WAS CONTACTED BY THE CLARK COUNTY DETENTION 
CENTER (CCDC), THEY TOLD ME THAT RICHARD HAD BEEN ARRESTED FOR THE ABOVE LISTED 
WARRANT. 

I WENT TO CCDC AND CONTACTED RICHARD FOR AN INTERVIEW. HE WAS ADVISED OF 
HIS MIRANDA RIGHTS AND DURING A TAPED INTERVIEW TOLD ME WliI\T HE .KNEW ABOUT THE 
ROBBERY. RICHARD SAID THAT SLAUGHTER TOLD HIM THAT HE COMMITTED THE ROBBERY. 
RICHARD SAID THAT HE WENT OVER TO SLAUGHTER'S RESIDENCE ON THE NIGHT OF THE 
ROBBERY, RICHARD SAID THAT HE GOT TO HIS RESIDENCE: AFTER 7 :'!!AT NIGHT, BUT HE 
DOESN'T KNOW THE EXACT TIME. 

RICHARD WENT ON TO TELL ME VARIOUS DETAILS OF THE CRIME. DETAILS NOT 
RELEASED TO THE PUBLIC. RICHARD SAID THAT SLAUGHTER TOLD HIM THE ROBBERY WENT 
BAD AND SLAUGHTER liAD TO SHOJT SOMEONE. SLAUGHTER TOLD HIM PJlOUT ROBBING TWO 
-'SRSONS THAT CAME OVER TO THE RESIDENCE DURING THE ROBBERY. RICHARD SAID THAT 

WAS TOLD ABOUT SLAUGHTER 3ETTING THE CREDIT CARD AND ABOU':' (;ETTING SOME 
~EY FROM A VICTIM WHO WAS 20MING IN AS THEY ATTEMPTED TO LEAVE. DURING THE 

INTERVIEW I HAD TO STOP DURING INMATE DINNER SERVING. THIS WAS ABOUT 4,30. I 
RETURNED A COUPLE OF HOURS LATER AND CONTINUED THE INTERVIEW GETTING VARIOUS 
DETAILS. DURING THE INTERVIEs RICHARD IDENTIFIED SLAUGHTER'S ACCOMPLICE. 
RICHARD SAID T!'.AT SLAUGHTER fOLD HIM IT WAS LIITLE MARV A ::>Ot!NJ, GANG MEMBER. TO 
CONFIRM SLAUGHTER'S IDENTITY I SHOWED RI CHARD A PHOTO LINE UP THAT CONTAINED 
SLAUGHTER. HE POINTED :'0 SLAUGHTER. I DID NOT ASK HIM TO IN:•:·IJ,L THE LINE UP. 
SEE INTERVIEW FOR DETA:LS. 

THROUGH FURTHER IIIVESTI 3ATION LITTLE !'.ARV WAS IDENTIFIED AS MARVIN 
ROBINSON A DONNA STREE:' GANG MEMBER. I OBTAINED A PHOTO OF ROBlNSON FROM A 
PREVIOUS NORTH LAS VEGAS JAIL BOOKING. I THEN CREATED A PHo·~o LINE UP WHICH 
CONTAINED ROBINSON AND FIVE JTHER BLACK MALES SIMILAR IN APPEARANCE. 

ON SEPTEMBER 21, :!004 I WENT TO THE PRELIMINARY HEARING FDR RICKIE 
SLAUGHTER, AT THE NORTH LAS VEGAS ,TUSTICE COURT. THERE I CON':ACTED IVAN YOUNG, 
JENNIFER DENNIS, ARRON DENNIS, JOEY PASADA AND RYAN JOHN. 

AFTER THE HEARING I SHOilED EACH OF THE VICTIMS THE PHO':O LINE UPS TliAT I 
HAD PREPARED. YOUNG LOOKED AT THE l,INE UP AND SAID HE WAS 'JNSUF'.E, HE DEBATED 

----------------------··---------------------------------------------------------
records bureau processed 
SCARFF/DENISE 

supervisor approving 
liANKS/ROBERT EDWARD JR 

ser no ! detective bureau processed 
1259 ! 

ser no ! officer reporting 
0998 ! PRIETO/JESUS 

s 

ser no 

ser no 
0674 

App.0640Docket 82602   Document 2021-21063



''11-05-'09 ,14:29 FFlOM-... .. ' T-389 P002/006 F-370 

APPLIC:Ai'ION rum AFFIDAVIT FO~ ;Yi.cH ~ r-17e·~ ...... , 
STATE OF NEVADA 

881 Nov 5 2 os PH '09 
County of Clark ) .Jlltil 11: :: ~!.n:nr 

HOnTH Lh:J VEGAS, N"/ 
DETECTIVE J, PRIETO being f irat duly SWOZ'fh ~9 a~edfates on 

intormation and belief, that ,Affiant is a Detec~~th the North 

Las Vegaa Police Department (NLVPD) presently assigned · to the 

Detective Bure~u, has been with the North Las Vegas Police Department 

for over twenty two (23) yeara and has bl!!en asaigned to the 

Detecti~e Bureau tor over four (10) years. 

There is probable cause to believe that certain evidence will be 

tound, and is located inside the body of Rickie Slaughter DOB, 

-· 19B4, 
aocial security# --7827, to-witr 

The evidence referred to·and sought to be seized consiats of the 

•·· following· 
1; ' 

l, Buccal swab sample from inside the moueh. 

and as I am satisfied that there is probable cause to believe thae 

said person will be located at th~ Clark County_Detention Center, 330 

S Casino Center, City of Las Vegas, County of Clark. ·, 

The iteme described conetitutee evidence which tends to 

demonstrate that the criminal offenses of attempt murder· with a 

deadly weapan, rogbery with a deadly weapan, and burglary 11ith a 

d~adly weapon, 200,0JD, 200,381, 205,D60 have been committed, 

In support of your Affiant's assertion to constitute the 

1 

App.0641



· 11-0,5-' 09 ,14: 29 FROM- T-389 P003/006 F-370 

existence of probable cause I the following facts are offe~ed based on 

your Affiant's personal knowledge and on information and belief, 

On June 26 1 2004, detective Melgarejo and I responded to 2612 

Glory View, North Las Vegas, Nevada, 89030 in reference to a robbery 

that had been committed at that address. 

We arrived and were briefed by Officer Hoyt. Officer Hoyt said 

that when he arrived he found the victim Ivan Young shot in the face. 

Due to young's injury there was a large amount of blood at the scene, 

As a result of the investigation it was learned that an attempt 

murder, robbery, and burglary had been committed, 

During my investigation Rickie Slaughter was identified · as a 

suspect in the crime. The victims of the incident later positively 

identified Slaughter as the suspect who shot Young and robbed sevreal 

victims inside· Young.' S_/~".§:SJ_g.ence, I subsequently arrested Slaughter 

, for the above listed crimes. · 
- f 

! 

I During the investigation several items of evidence were 

recovered. One item recovered from Slaughter were his tennis shoes. 
=r-~-· -. ,;r-';. .,.._.:.,.,,:.,. -o:,- -.- -·-·-- .__.' _,_.- -· ---~...... _., ,_ ·- . ~ -- . . - .... , .... ,__..,,,,,..,_•~~--········. , .... --· - -----·-·······---··- .... -·--

i , I collected the shoes because It was believed they may h~ve been 
0 .. ~ ~ ~ L -~ 

... -- -,---·- ------- -- f • • t -~.-.',•~~-~• a••• 

exposed to the blood at the crime scene . 
. . 

The shoes were inspected and it appeared that blood was on the 
----- ·----- -~~ .... ------ -·--

bottom of the shoes and possibly on the edge of one of the shoes. 

On October 21, 2009; 'l completed a request and ·forwarded $ame to 

the identification bureau -reque::i"s"ting· the- shoes be tested far· b:J_ood. 

A test was conducted and' i wafi(.'later ·not"i'tled :as t"o·"~the ·resul"ts· ·of 

2 
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'11-05-'09 :J.4:29 FROM- T-389 P004/006 F-370 

the testing. The identification bureau advised me the substance on 

the shoes appeared to have been covered by some type of polish, 

possibly hide the blood like substance. They were not able to test 

the substance due to the polish, 

On October 23, 2009, I contacted Young and obtained a bucc~l swab 

from him for DNA te~ting. I subsequently sent the Young's buccal swab 

and Slaughter's tennis shoes to ,the Metropolitan Police Department 

Forensic Lab to conduct a comparison. 

On November S, 2009, I was contacted by the Forensic Lab. Kim 

Merga requested that I get a Buccal swab from Slaughter to eliminate 

him as a donor to the blood like substance on the ·shoes. 

WHEREFORE, Affiant requests that a Search Warrant issue 

directing a search for_and_seizure. of .. the .aforementioned .item. at the 

location set forth he;rei-n.-,-and···authorizing ·a --daytime search between 

the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p,m, 

-••••.:,_r:.: ~_,_£.'..., •-• '~ -.-- ·.. - - -,-·:;,, 

- - - •·· , -;-- :·_ ":_'" 

" - - ; .• ··-··:_ •... _.--·· ._ __""'.,_~--:;:-. ~ - ,. 

3 
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·11-05- 1 09 14:29 FROM-

STATE OF NEVADA 

County of Clark 
68. 
) 

T-389 P005/006 F-370 

SEARCH WARRAN'5 
1 
W a·_.....,;CA.~--· ~_,l _(o_6 __ 

The State of Nevada, to any Peace Officer in the County of Clark. 

Proof by Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant having been 

. made before me by DETECTIVE J. PRIETO said Application and Affidavit 

for Search Warrant incorporated herein by reference, that there is 

probable cause to believe that certain evidence, namely: 

1. Buccal Swab ·sample from inside the mouth. 

is presently located inside the body of Rickie Slaughter DOB, 

1984, social security # --7827, to-wit:, and I am 

satisfied that there is probable cause to believe that said prope~ty 

is located as set forth above and that based upon the Application-0and · 

Affidavit for Search Warrant there are sufficient grounds·· for the 
... . .. --· .. ___ __,_ ·•----- --- ----··· -- . 

issuance of the Search warrant~ 

You are hereby commanded-to forthwith collect buccal. swab s·amples 

for said evidence, serving this Search Warrant between the }Jours of -

7 a.m. and 7 p.m. at the Clark County Detention Center, 330 's"ca.sino· 

4 
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11-0~-'09 14:29 FROM- T-389 P006/006 F-370 
Center, City of Las Vegas, County of Clark, as set forth in the 

Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant in support hereto, and 

if the property there to seize it, prepare a written inventory of the 

property seized and make a return for me within ten (10) days. 

Dated this~ day of Novembers, 2009. 

,..., - ' .• +.-+- ·- ':"'' ~ -·~ -------~· ... -:- --;-,, --..--'""':-:-... -~·-.-:---."-;~-.- - ,. ···-·--·,, ___ , • --~-~-·-·· .:.. 
. --•---•·•---- -~ ~---- ---~~ - ~---.--Y---•~-· •+-- ~ .. ---;-· •. ••• • - - • -~-

-. ------~--',-_--"-_,.· . -~ :·_ -· .. -. ·.........,___,__ ·~.,..~~~~-, ---·~·,'- ··••---- -· - .. -- -- -- ··- -- - --·--.- -...... . 

. ' -- . --·· 

. ,. ·-·- -----= :-- -.. --1. -· --~r=-·- - - .. - .··.-.--.,_ ... _,.-.:,:.•,;;+-,,.·.- . -------

5 App.0645
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DATE: 7/06/04, -----~--------POLICE REPORT------- .... ·----- PAGE: 1_ 
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:. 

---------------------------·----INCIDEN':' FCL:.OW-JP-------- .. ·----------"-•---c------
classification/addit.iona: information: C •.: :,. •• 

MURD I AMURD 

invest b'J.reaus/units noti::ied: DETECTIVES 

:ocation :of occur::cer.ce: _ · ,c 

NLVDOC 
.I rpt dis t~DJ~ neighbo:i:hood: A..~'!\ 
! -nAVID 3 ·: ~ · ARROWHE1'.D ACRE 

.. - .. --- -..... ---·- .... - --- - ..... - - - -- .. - ..... -- ... -- - - -- .. ---- .. --- .. -- -- ... -------- - ~ .. - .. --- - -- - - -- ----- - -- ..... 
from: date / time J to: 

~<6/29/04 /12:CO l 

. . . . 

date/ ti~e ! report: 
__ 6/2 9/01,, / 12: a_o_ 1 -~ ~:-:: 

date/ time _ 
£/30/04 / 1s :oa :·_ - -

- hate c:rime? NO J gang ::elated? NO ! fingerprints? 11"0 
.. - , - ... --- ......... - -- - - - - - - - - - ................ - ...... - - ... - .. - .... - ......... - - ...... - ... - ... - - - - - - - -- - -· -- - .............. - -- - . - - - .. ... '_ .. -. .. . 

routir:g? -I prosec;ute?---- .~prop- report? ; vehl report? . ar:::est rpt:I J attI'l.chf: · 
DETECTIVE ! YES YES · NO -- NO 

** -t Ir******* ,Ii**** Ir** lrir Ir,\ Ir ... ,..,,,.- Ir****">'<****.* Ir Ir*·* 11 * -/r * "*"'***·* -t Ir* -1, * *****"I< 'I<*.*****-**-*~*:*-- ,: ·. - . 

- - • - - - - - - - - - -: -- - - - ~ - - - - - - - - ·· - -ME'IHOD Oc' OPERATION··-,;: - -_..,,- - ·· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ~ _ _:. ~ ~. 
:·:c:·;residential---type: 

non-residtl---type: 

entry----loc:ation: 
exit----location: 

suspect ac:.ions: 
A, 
D. 
G, 

8. 
E, 
H. 

· target: 

target: 

method: 
method; 

se-curity: 

ser.dity: 

C, 
F, 
I. 

******* "*"'** •** * ********* * • t ******'DISPOSITI01'iS 1"** .,*******-1r"1,;*** *************_-*·*:.._ .. ..,. -- -
[ ) -UNFOUNDED/NO CRIME-: - D ] -SUBMITTED :> .A. -- -- --5 [ ] -RECLASSIFY- - .,.-. -~-- :..-·-~o, ,_· •·---
( )-JUVEN:LE------------1 ]-ADMIN, CLS::ARED------6 [ ]-v:c REFUSED PROS,.--'11·-.: 
[ ]-:)JON DE'l'BCTIVE CLR---2 ]-EXCEPTIONALLY CLR---7 [ ] ·APFIDAVIT----~-:-:-~_:.::1:{ - .''.·:: _ 
[ J-DETEC:'lVE AR.,Esr----3 ]-SCREEN c:.EARED------8 [ ]-CA/DA DENIAL----'---_-13·. :,,,0: 
( 1 • SUBMITTED CITY ATTY-4 ]-NO CHGS FILED (NCF} --9 [ ] -0TEER-- -- - - ------: .:.-:-1~-- ' :_ .. 

( ] -SUBMI.1'.TED US ATTNY,_:'1f - -
***************************•****************************~****************•i1**** 
- - - • • - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - • - - - - - - - - -RECORDS - • - - - - - - - - - - - • - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ._ - . ·. :_ ---- _: _. ·: _. 

class code---ucr sid number l date ser r..o date - ser no 
I enter cleac-ed · .·: -

scope sc,::ipe 

- - -- - ...... ---- .. -- - - - - - .... .,.. -- ... -....... -- - - - ....... ---- ... -- ........ - -- ... ---- --- - ....... -· - - ----- --- -_,_ --- -·- - . 

- - .................. - ... - - - ....... - .. - - ..... - ....... - ..... - ~~ - .. - .. - - .... - ... - - - - - - - - - ..... - - - - - - - - - -, - ... - .. - - ... - - - - - • - - ... - ' - ' ·,· > •• 

records bureau processed ser no ! detective burea·J p:mcessed 
l 

ser n6 <, -
- - -- ...... ------ ........... - - --....... -- .. .. .. .. ... - ... - ....... - -- .. - ....... - ........ --... - ' . -- . . :. ', 

supervisor app~oving 
SYLVESTER/PAMELA ANN 

ser no t officer reparti~g 
1026 ! FISCHER/PATRICK 

ser_ no :i _ 
16_47 

t 

L 
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CASE: 04015160 
DATE: 7/06/04 
TIME; 7 :54 
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- - - - ·· • - - • - - - -·PEOPERTY · POR'I'ION~-"' - - .. - - - "" - -

24.6554. 
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~~***************************tt*******************************~********************'" 
no. artods type--descript:.ve information on property-......... stolen 
additional descriptive information- - ---- - - - - - - ---- - - - -- •·--- - value 

recover.• 
·value 

--·-------------------------------------------------------------------------. ---~ 
001 CLOTH! E· brd: REEBOI< 

- - - - - - • - - - mod : · SNEAIIBR . ~-
ser: 

sze: 
-~- cal: 

l0,5 

coll: WHI col2: BLU dt last seen: 
own#=: 

ITEM #1 1 REEBOK, WHITE AND BLUE SNEAKERS-BELONGING TO RICKY 
SLAUGHTER FROM NLVDCC Bo:m:NG 

***************************~*******'~**************************************~~ •• ~ 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++-+++++++++++++++++ totals-------> 

··***************************i'***********~**************i~~**********************~ 
type : E":·evidence; p.:. f:ound; I·· impounded; L- lost; 

0-other; R-recc)vered; S~stolen; T-released;, >:-safekeeping 
***************************~************************************************~.~~ 

···;·· ,' 

'.:. 

---------------------------------·------------------------------------ -- -----~: 
records bureau processed 

supervisor approving 
SYLVESTER/PAMELA ANN 

ser no I detective bureau pr~cessed 
I 

ser no l officer reporting 
1026 f FISCHER/PATRICK 

ser no· 
1647 

. . . 
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CASE: 0401516"0' ----KORTH LAS VEGAS ?OLICE DEPARTMEN':'-- -- REF: · · 246554 .. 
DATE: 7/06/04 ---··----------POLICE REPORT-------··------ .PAGE: ·3.: 
TIME: 7 :54 . · ---··-------·NARRATIVE PORTION---:..~:..--~:..·" ... "OF:. 3° :, .. 
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-----------------------------~---------- - -~----- - --------------------- -----

ON 062904 AT APPROXIMA'IELY 1200 HRS. I RECIEVED, A .REQUEST TO PROCESS .THE . 
SHOES OF RlCKY SLAUGHTER MF#B9534 FOR THE PRESENCE OF--BLOOD 'ivIUCH WERE HELD AT· 
lfLVDOC BOOEING FROM DETECTIVE .J. PREITO P#674, 
·- · _ · - I WENT TO NLVPD BOOKING AND COLLECTED ONE PAIR OF WHITE /lJID BLUE REEBOK_ 
SNEAKERS BELONGING TO 3-ICK'l SLAUGHTER FROM NLVDOC BOOKING OF'li'ICER PAM MORTON. I 
THEN TRANSPOR±"ED __ TH_EJ:1_,_TO _rl{E NLVPD CRIME LAB. I TCOK OVERALL VIEWS OF THE 
SHOES, DURING A VISUAL EXAMINATION I NOTED THAT THE SHOES WERE CLEAN. SOME_ ... 
RUSTY OR REDDISH ,STAINB WERE. OBSERVED ON THE SOLES OF BOTH T}lE LEFT AND RIGHT 

--- SOLES ... THESE WERE TESTED WI'IH SEPERATE HEMA TRACE KITS TO TEST FOR THE PRESENCE 
OF BLOOD WITH NEGATIVE RESUI TS. TlfE UPPERS WERE TESTED- AS WE LL WITH NEGATIVE 
RESULTS. NO OTHER SERVICES WERE PBRFORMED. 
· - · ·· ALL··ITEMS COLLECT3D AS EVIDENCE. BY ME WERE BOOKED INTO 'rH:E NLVPD EVIDENCE .. 
VAULT UNDER MY HAND, ALL PHCTOGRAPHS WERE TAKEN WITH MY DEP.ZL':l.TMENT ISSUED SONY .. 

· DIGITAL CAMEB,A ATTD .. UP·LOADEI:; __ INTO THE ... NLV:PD COMPUTER FILES FOR LATER STORAGE; .. A. 
CASE FILE JAKCET INDICATING THAT DITITAL PHOTOS WERE TAKEN 'dAS COMPLETED AND IS . 
MAINTAINED WITHIN THE NLVPD C. S, I. BUREAU. 

I , 

-· .... 
. ·.•' , 

' ... ,; . 

. '· ; ----------------------------------------------------------------------------~---
records bureau processed ser no J detective bureau pri)cessed 

I 

ser·no 
' . :·, 

•••••••••-••-••-•••----------•--•••-•••-----------•••••••••••••"-•••••••••••• .- - ' 

supervisor approving 
SYLVESTER/PAMELA ANN 

ser no l officer reporting 
1026 I FISCHER/PATRICK 

'ser no . 
'1647 ': ' 

- ...... - - ..... - ...... - ... - .. - - - - - - - - , .. - - - ...... - ... - - - - - - - - - ...... - - - .. - - - - - - - - - - - .. - - ·- .. - •• - - - ... - - - - _· - • -"•. - - - - < 
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''11-~5-'09 ,14:29 FBOM- T-389 P002/006 F-370 . . .. 

, , 

s.w .. -7Qcr--n;· .. ·········, 
APPttcA!l'ION rum AFFIDAVIT FOR SEARCH~ ¥, 6 

STATE OF NEV.ADA ) 
I Nov 5 2 os PH '09 881 

County of Clark ) .Jlltil 11: :: ~!.H:I\T 
HORTH LA:l VEGAS, H1 

DETECTIVE J. PRIETO being first duly swoZ'f1 ~s a,aeenates on 

information and belief, that .Affiant is a Detec~~th the North 

Las Vegaa Police Department (NLVPD) presently assigned · to the 

' Detective Bure~u, has been with the North Lae Vegas Police Department 

for cve:r twenty two (23) years and has bl!!en assigned to the 

Detecti!e Bureau tor over four (10) years. 

There is probable cause to believe that certain evidence will be 

found, and is located inside th!! body ot Rickie Slaughter DOB, 

-• 1984, aocial security# --7827, to-witr 

The evidence referred to·and sought to be seized consiats of the 

•·· following: 1: 
1. auccal swab sample from inside the mouth . 

. 
and as I am satisfied that there is probable cause to believe that 

said person will be located at the Clark Ccunty_Detenticn Center, 330 

S Casino Center, City of Las Vegas, County of Clark. ·, 

The itema deacribed conatitutes evidence which tends to 

de1monetrate that the criminal offenses of attempt murder ·with a 

deadly waapan, robba~ with a deadly weapon, and burglary ~ith a 

dmadly weapon, 200,030, 200,381, 205,D60 have been committed, 

In support of your Affiant's assertion to constitute the 

1 

App.0650



· 11-0,5-' 09 ,14: 29 FROM- T-389 P003/006 F-370 

existence of probable cause I the following facts are offe~ed based on 

your Affiant's personal knowledge and on information and belief, 

On June 26 1 2004, detective Melgarejo and I responded to 2612 

Glory View, North Las Vegas, Nevada, 89030 in reference to a robbery 

that had been committed at that address. 

We arrived and were briefed by Officer Hoyt. Officer Hoyt said 

that when he arrived he found the victim Ivan Young shot in the face. 

Due to young's injury there was a large amount of blood at the scene, 

As a result of the investigation it was learned that an attempt 

murder, robbery, and burglary had been committed, 

During my investigation Rickie Slaughter was identified · as a 

suspect in the crime. The victims of the incident later positively 

identified Slaughter as the suspect who shot Young and robbed sevreal 

victims inside· Young.' S_/~".§:SJ_g.ence, I subsequently arrested Slaughter 

, for the above listed crimes. · 
- f 

! 

I During the investigation several items of evidence were 

recovered. One item recovered from Slaughter were his tennis shoes. 
=r-~-· -. ,;r-';. .,.._.:.,.,,:.,. -o:,- -.- -·-·-- .__.' _,_.- -· ---~...... _., ,_ ·- . ~ -- . . - .... , .... ,__..,,,,,..,_•~~--········. , .... --· - -----·-·······---··- .... -·--

i , I collected the shoes because It was believed they may h~ve been 

\. 

0 .. ~ ~ ~ L -~ 

... -- -,---·- ------- -- f • • t -~.-.',•~~-~• a••• 

exposed to the blood at the crime scene . 
. . 

The shoes were inspected and it appeared that blood was on the 
"' -~----- ···--· , ..... .._.._. __ --

bottom 'of the shoes and possibly on the edge of one of the shoes. 

On October 21, 20"ci9 ;· '·l completed ~ reqUest and ·forward.ed ~ame to 

the identification bureau -reguefs"ting· the- shoes be tested ·tor· b:J_ood, 

A test was conducted and' I was·-:-'later ·not":i'f:led =as· t.t,·"·the ·resuJ:ts· .o"f 

2 
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'11-05-'09 :J.4:29 FROM- T-389 P004/006 F-370 

the testing. The identification bureau advised me the substance on 

the shoes appeared to have been covered by some type of polish, 

possibly hide the blood like substance. They were not able to test 

the substance due to the polish, 

On October 23, 2009, I contacted Young and obtained a bucc~l swab 

from him for DNA te~ting. I subsequently sent the Young's buccal swab 

and Slaughter's tennis shoes to ,the Metropolitan Police Department 

Forensic Lab to conduct a comparison. 

On November S, 2009, I was contacted by the Forensic Lab. Kim 

Merga requested that I get a Buccal swab from Slaughter to eliminate 

him as a donor to the blood like substance on the ·shoes. 

WHEREFORE, Affiant requests that a Search Warrant issue 

directing a search for_and_seizure. of .. the .aforementioned .item. at the 

location set forth he;rei-n.-,-and···authorizing ·a --daytime search between 

the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p,m, 

-••••.:,_r:.: ~_,_£.'..., •-• '~ 
- - - •·· , -;-- :·_ ":_'" -.-- ·.. - - -,-·:;,, 

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me 

this --:x- day of ~Q;;~~~e~/: 2o~r - :: : -., _,_, c:·- ~ -, _-----"~ ·: 

· '·: •· ~ ·- •' ' • ·• ••••• '' • • .... ~~ •-•• .... •~ ~ -...,:-,-7-;:rr-:.. • -,...,•:~ •c -·~•'"':'"':-

--:-- .... ~.•~. 

3 
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·11-05- 1 09 14:29 FROM-

STATE OF NEVADA 

County of Clark 
68. 
) 

T-389 P005/006 F-370 

SEARCH WARRAN'5 1 W a·_.....,;CA.~--· ~_,l _(o_6 __ 

The State of Nevada, to any Peace Officer in the County of Clark. 

Proof by Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant having been 

. made before me by DETECTIVE J. PRIETO said Application and Affidavit 

for Search Warrant incorporated herein by reference, that there is 

probable cause to believe that certain evidence, namely: 

1. Buccal Swab ·sample from inside the mouth. 

is presently located inside the body of Rickie Slaughter DOB, 

1984, social security # --7827, to-wit:, and I am 

satisfied that there is probable cause to believe that said prope~ty 

is located as set forth above and that based upon the Application-0and · 

Affidavit for Search Warrant there are sufficient grounds·· for the 
... . .. --· .. ___ __,_ ·•----- --- ----··· -- . 

issuance of the Search warrant·, 

You are hereby commanded-to forthwith collect buccal. s~a.b s·amples 

for said evidence, serving this search Warrant between the }:lours of ·-· 
:· ·-. -~- ill -· 

7 a.m. and 7 p.m. at the Clark County Detention Center, 330.S Casino 

4 

App.0653



' I 
.! -, 

-··1 

11-0~-'09 14:29 FROM- T-389 P006/006 F-370 
Center, City of Las Vegas, County of Clark, as set forth in the 

Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant in support hereto, and 

if the property there to seize it, prepare a written inventory of the 

property seized and make a return for me within ten (10) days. 

Dated this~ day of Novembers, 2009. 

,..., • ' .• +.-+- ·- ':"'' ~ -·~ -------~· ... -:- --;-,, --..--'""':-:-... -~·-.-:---."-;~-.- - ,. ·---~-~·,, ___ , • --~-~-·-·· .:.. 
. --•---•·•---- -~ ~---- ---~~ - ~---.--Y---•~-· •+-- ~ .. ---;-· •. ••• • - - • -~-

. . . ·-:. -, ' ~ •· -:,. ;"· .. . "''" '·,:~ ".:'" . .. •~ ... ::~ .. 

. . -
, ,. ··-·- ____ ,:.mr ,·-- ·, • .:..1 .. - •• -~r=-·-.,, , ·- ,"0,·,•·,·"I·:·., ,·.: 1:•:i: .. , ••• - ," ' •• 

5 

. . , .. , .... , - . ···-·' I• ,. : ••• .'.".~ .', 
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---------------------------·----INCIDEN':' FCL:.OW-JP-------- .. ·----------"-•---c------
classification/addit.iona: information: C •.: :,. •• 

MURD I AMURD 

invest b'J.reaus/units noti::ied: DETECTIVES 

:ocation :of occur::cer.ce: _ · ,c 

NLVDOC 
.I rpt dis t~DJ~ neighbo:i:hood: A..~'!\ 
! -nAVID 3 ·: ~ · ARROWHE1'.D ACRE 

.. - .. --- -..... ---·- .... - --- - ..... - - - -- .. - ..... -- ... -- - - -- .. ---- .. --- .. -- -- ... -------- - ~ .. - .. --- - -- - - -- ----- - -- ..... 
from: date / time J to: 

~<6/29/04 /12:CO l 

. . . . 

date/ ti~e ! report: 
__ 6/2 9/01,, / 12: a_o_ 1 -~ ~:-:: 

date/ time _ 
£/30/04 / 1s :oa :·_ - -

- hate c:rime? NO J gang ::elated? NO ! fingerprints? 11"0 
.. - , - ... --- ......... - -- - - - - - - - - - ................ - ...... - - ... - .. - .... - ......... - - ...... - ... - ... - - - - - - - -- - -· -- - .............. - -- - . - - - .. ... '_ .. -. .. . 

routir:g? -I prosec;ute?---- .~prop- report? ; vehl report? . ar:::est rpt:I J attI'l.chf: · 
DETECTIVE ! YES YES · NO -- NO 

** -t Ir******* ,Ii**** Ir** lrir Ir,\ Ir ... ,..,,,.- Ir****">'<****.* Ir Ir*·* 11 * -/r * "*"'***·* -t Ir* -1, * *****"I< 'I<*.*****-**-*~*:*-- ,: ·. - . 

- - • - - - - - - - - - -: -- - - - ~ - - - - - - - - ·· - -ME'IHOD Oc' OPERATION··-,;: - -_..,,- - ·· - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ~ _ _:. ~ ~. 
:·:c:·;residential---type: 

non-residtl---type: 

entry----loc:ation: 
exit----location: 

suspect ac:.ions: 
A, 
D. 
G, 

8. 
E, 
H. 

· target: 

target: 

method: 
method; 

se-curity: 

ser.dity: 

C, 
F, 
I. 

******* "*"'** •** * ********* * • t ******'DISPOSITI01'iS 1"** .,*******-1r"1,;*** *************_-*·*:.._ .. ..,. -- -
[ ) -UNFOUNDED/NO CRIME-: - D ] -SUBMITTED :> .A. -- -- --5 [ ] -RECLASSIFY- - .,.-. -~-- :..-·-~o, ,_· •·---
( )-JUVEN:LE------------1 ]-ADMIN, CLS::ARED------6 [ ]-v:c REFUSED PROS,.--'11·-.: 
[ ]-:)JON DE'l'BCTIVE CLR---2 ]-EXCEPTIONALLY CLR---7 [ ] ·APFIDAVIT----~-:-:-~_:.::1:{ - .''.·:: _ 
[ J-DETEC:'lVE AR.,Esr----3 ]-SCREEN c:.EARED------8 [ ]-CA/DA DENIAL----'---_-13·. :,,,0: 
( 1 • SUBMITTED CITY ATTY-4 ]-NO CHGS FILED (NCF} --9 [ ] -0TEER-- -- - - ------: .:.-:-1~-- ' :_ .. 

( ] -SUBMI.1'.TED US ATTNY,_:'1f - -
***************************•****************************~****************•i1**** 
- - - • • - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - • - - - - - - - - -RECORDS - • - - - - - - - - - - - • - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ._ - . ·. :_ ---- _: _. ·: _. 

class code---ucr sid number l date ser r..o date - ser no 
I enter cleac-ed · .·: -

scope sc,::ipe 

- - -- - ...... ---- .. -- - - - - - .... .,.. -- ... -....... -- - - - ....... ---- ... -- ........ - -- ... ---- --- - ....... -· - - ----- --- -_,_ --- -·- - . 

- - .................. - ... - - - ....... - .. - - ..... - ....... - ..... - ~~ - .. - .. - - .... - ... - - - - - - - - - ..... - - - - - - - - - -, - ... - .. - - ... - - - - - • - - ... - ' - ' ·,· > •• 

records bureau processed ser no ! detective burea·J p:mcessed 
l 

ser n6 <, -
- - -- ...... ------ ........... - - --....... -- .. .. .. .. ... - ... - ....... - -- .. - ....... - ........ --... - ' . -- . . :. ', 

supervisor app~oving 
SYLVESTER/PAMELA ANN 

ser no t officer reparti~g 
1026 ! FISCHER/PATRICK 

ser_ no :i _ 
16_47 

t 

L 
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CASE: 04015160 
DATE: 7/06/04 
TIME; 7 :54 

----HORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: 
- - - - ·· • - --:.- -- - • POLICE REPORT-------··- .. •- --
- - - - ·· • - - • - - - -·PEOPERTY · POR'I'ION~-"' - - .. - - - "" - -

24.6554. 
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~~***************************tt*******************************~********************'" 
no. artods type--descript:.ve information on property-......... stolen 
additional descriptive information- - ---- - - - - - - ---- - - - -- •·--- - value 

recover.• 
·value 

--·-------------------------------------------------------------------------. ---~ 
001 CLOTH! E· brd: REEBOI< 

- - - - - - • - - - mod : · SNEAIIBR . ~-
ser: 

sze: 
-~- cal: 

l0,5 

coll: WHI col2: BLU dt last seen: 
own#=: 

ITEM #1 1 REEBOK, WHITE AND BLUE SNEAKERS-BELONGING TO RICKY 
SLAUGHTER FROM NLVDCC Bo:m:NG 

***************************~*******'~**************************************~~ •• ~ 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++-+++++++++++++++++ totals-------> 

··***************************i'***********~**************i~~**********************~ 
type : E":·evidence; p.:. f:ound; I·· impounded; L- lost; 

0-other; R-recc)vered; S~stolen; T-released;, >:-safekeeping 
***************************~************************************************~.~~ 

···;·· ,' 

·, :·. :::<,> :'·'.·': 

---------------------------------·----------------------------·------- -. ----~1;·• 
records bureau processed ser no I detective bureau pr~cessed 

I 
- - - - - .... -- ... --.. ---------- ... -- ...... -- -- - - --- - -- -- --...... - ... - ...... --.. ---................. ------- - - · .. ---· -·- - -

supervisor approving 
SYLVESTER/PAMELA ANN 

ser no l officer reporting 
1026 f FISCHER/PATRICK 

ser no· · 
1647. 

-- - - - -- - - ------ -- - ---- -- - - ----------- ...... -....... - ... - - - -- - ......... -.. '' ........ -..... ------- ... -----·- .. . . 
_,. ,'·. ·.-:.,. ,'. 

_,•·,,.'. 

App.0657



~ • • ~ t t -i I ~ t • I I • I .. 0 t +- -, t I • • • ~ I • • I I t I t f O • I I I • • • I • O I • I ~ o o • o I 1 'I l I t ,t, t • • • O • p • 0, O I t ,O- I ' ' • 

I '• , w ·~ii~ ' , , , , , :, .. • : , ' 
"' o t It It• It• I I•. It I IO f P •II• I• 1 '1 I I I;, I. I Io. j • •• .- 't t It I ... fr+ p ,j, I., It t .- • 1 o o .- t • o t • t,,4"o • • • • 

CASE: 0401516"0' ----KORTH LAS VEGAS ?OLICE DEPARTMEN':'-- -- REF: · · 246554 .. 
DATE: 7/06/04 ---··----------POLICE REPORT-------··------ .PAGE: ·3.: 
TIME: 7 :54 . · ---··-------·NARRATIVE PORTION---:..~:..--~:..·" ... "OF:. 3° :, .. 
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-----------------------------~---------- - -~----- - --------------------- -----

ON 062904 AT APPROXIMA'IELY 1200 HRS. I RECIEVED, A .REQUEST TO PROCESS .THE . 
SHOES OF RlCKY SLAUGHTER MF#B9534 FOR THE PRESENCE OF--BLOOD 'ivIUCH WERE HELD AT· 
lfLVDOC BOOEING FROM DETECTIVE .J. PREITO P#674, 
·- · _ · - I WENT TO NLVPD BOOKING AND COLLECTED ONE PAIR OF WHITE /lJID BLUE REEBOK_ 
SNEAKERS BELONGING TO 3-ICK'l SLAUGHTER FROM NLVDOC BOOKING OF'li'ICER PAM MORTON. I 
THEN TRANSPOR±"ED __ TH_EJ:1_,_TO _rl{E NLVPD CRIME LAB. I TCOK OVERALL VIEWS OF THE 
SHOES, DURING A VISUAL EXAMINATION I NOTED THAT THE SHOES WERE CLEAN. SOME_ ... 
RUSTY OR REDDISH ,STAINB WERE. OBSERVED ON THE SOLES OF BOTH T}lE LEFT AND RIGHT 

--- SOLES ... THESE WERE TESTED WI'IH SEPERATE HEMA TRACE KITS TO TEST FOR THE PRESENCE 
OF BLOOD WITH NEGATIVE RESUI TS. TlfE UPPERS WERE TESTED- AS WE LL WITH NEGATIVE 
RESULTS. NO OTHER SERVICES WERE PBRFORMED. 
· - · ·· ALL··ITEMS COLLECT3D AS EVIDENCE. BY ME WERE BOOKED INTO 'rH:E NLVPD EVIDENCE .. 
VAULT UNDER MY HAND, ALL PHCTOGRAPHS WERE TAKEN WITH MY DEP.ZL':l.TMENT ISSUED SONY .. 

· DIGITAL CAMEB,A ATTD .. UP·LOADEI:; __ INTO THE ... NLV:PD COMPUTER FILES FOR LATER STORAGE; .. A. 
CASE FILE JAKCET INDICATING THAT DITITAL PHOTOS WERE TAKEN 'dAS COMPLETED AND IS . 
MAINTAINED WITHIN THE NLVPD C. S, I. BUREAU. 

I , 

-· .... 
. ·.•' , 

' ... ,; . 

. '· ; ----------------------------------------------------------------------------~---
records bureau processed ser no J detective bureau pri)cessed 

I 

ser·no 
' . :·, 

•••••••••-••-••-•••----------•--•••-•••-----------•••••••••••••"-•••••••••••• .- - ' 

supervisor approving 
SYLVESTER/PAMELA ANN 

ser no l officer reporting 
1026 I FISCHER/PATRICK 

'ser no . 
'1647 ': ' 
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